
GRANTS SCRUTINY 
SUB-COMMITTEE

________________________________________________

Thursday, 30 November 2017 at 6.30 p.m.

C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 
London, E14 2BG

This meeting is open to the public to attend. 

Members:
Chair: Councillor Andrew Wood
Vice-Chair: Councillor Clare Harrisson

Councillor Ayas Miah, Councillor Candida Ronald, Councillor Shafi Ahmed, Councillor 
Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim, Margherita De Cristofano, Sirajul Islam and 1 Vacancy

Deputies: 
Councillor Danny Hassell, Councillor Dave Chesterton, Councillor John Pierce and 
Councillor Mahbub Alam

[The quorum for this body is 3 Members]

Contact for further enquiries:
Farhana Zia, Democratic Services
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG
Tel: 020 7364 0842
E-mail: farhana.zia@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

Scan this code 
for an 
electronic 
agenda:

Page 1



Public Information
Attendance at meetings.
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis. 

Audio/Visual recording of meetings.
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page.

Mobile telephones
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting. 

Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.     

Bus: Routes: 1 D3, D6, D7, D8, 15, 108, and115 
all stop near the Town Hall. 
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry Place 
Blackwall station. Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall. 
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 
display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm)

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx) 
Meeting access/special requirements. 
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officer shown on the front of the agenda 

Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned.
Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.  

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for
the relevant committee and meeting date.

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.  

QR code for 
smart phone 
users.

Page 2

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


PAGE
NUMBER(S)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 5 - 8

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  9 - 14

To approve as a correct record of proceedings, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 19th October 2017. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC SUBMISSIONS 

Consideration of any written comments received from members of the 
public in relation to any of the reports on the agenda.

[Any submissions should be sent to the clerk listed on the agenda front 
page by 5pm the day before the meeting]

5. GRANTS DETERMINATION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING 
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

5 .1 Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3 2017-18  15 - 74

5 .2 Mental Health User Led Grants Programme 2018-20  75 - 104

Page 3



5 .3 IDF: Approval of the Allocation of S106 and CIL Funding for the 
Following NHS Projects: Wellington Way Health Centre (New Build 
Extension); Aberfeldy Village Health Centre; and Suttons Wharf 
Health Centre  

To follow.

5 .4 Tower Hamlets  Affordable Housing Grant - Continuous Market 
Engagement  

105 - 120

5 .5 Grants Register  121 - 132

6. SUB COMMITTEE REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT 

Next Meeting of the Committee:
Wednesday, 31 January 2018 at 6.30 p.m.  to be held in the C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG

Page 4



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 

When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:-
Asmat Hussain, Corporate Director for Governance and Monitoring Officer.Tel: 0207 364 4800

Page 6



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



GRANTS SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
19/10/2017

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

1

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS

MINUTES OF THE GRANTS SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON THURSDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2017

C1, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON, E14 2BG

Members Present:

Councillor Andrew Wood (Chair)
Councillor Clare Harrisson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Candida Ronald (Member)
Councillor Shafi Ahmed (Member)
Margherita De Cristofano (Co-Optee) Ms
Councillor Danny Hassell
Officers Present:

Mohammed Ahad Community Programmes Officer, Third Sector Team
Jonathan Fox Legal Services
Steve Hill Head of Benefits Services
Ludovica Orlando Strategy, Policy and Performance Officer
Rachael Sadegh Service Manager Substance Misuse

Others Present
Rebecca Omonira Open Democracy 
Susie Camplin Open Democracy 
Chloe Leung Goldsmiths University 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ayas Miah and 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim. Apologies were also received from 
Sirajul Islam, co-opted member of the sub-committee.

Councillor Danny Hassell was deputising for Councillor Ayas Miah.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Candida Ronald and Councillor Clare Harrisson declared they 
knew of the organisations referred in the report, item 7.1, as they were in their 
respective wards however they have had no formal or informal contact with 
the organisations mentioned.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes from the previous meeting of 6th September were approved as a 
correct and accurate record of the meeting.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



GRANTS SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
19/10/2017

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

2

4. CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC SUBMISSIONS 

The Sub-Committee noted that no public submissions had been submitted to 
the Committee Officer by the deadline. (5p.m. the day before the meeting.)

5. GRANTS DETERMINATION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS FOR 
CONSIDERATION 

6. SUB COMMITTEE REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

6.1 Ocean Regeneration Trust Grant Funding 2017/18 

Officers from the Place Directorate were not in attendance to present their 
report. 

Members had several questions in relation to the report and made the 
following points:

 Are the units being used?
 What has been done to diversify income?
 Almost identical report from last year. It would be useful if the previous 

report was referenced – i.e. when it last came to Grants Scrutiny and 
Grants Determination Committee. 

 Sustainability of project needs to be drawn out. Need to see the 
strategy on how the gap income will be closed. 

 Point 1.1 refers to second quarter 2018. What constitutes the 2nd 
quarter? Is there a gap in the financial year? 

 Point 2.2 – for how long does the council need to fund? 
 Point 2.1 – will they not receive funding from education sources? 
 Appendix 1 – Ground Rent - Has full income yet been realised?
 What other fundraising are they doing? 

In conclusion the Grants Scrutiny Sub-Committee agreed not to support the 
recommendation of granting £80k to the Ocean Regeneration Trust as 
Members required more information. 

They AGREED to request the Grants Determination Sub-Committee to 
DEFER this item until their next meeting. 

6.2 MSG Performance Monitoring April  to June 2017 

Steve Hill, Head of Benefit Services presented his quarterly report on the 
Main Stream Grant (MSG) 2015/18 for quarter April to June 2017.

Page 10



GRANTS SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
19/10/2017

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

3

He explained projects were classified as Green, Amber or Red within the 
Council’s agreed performance management framework. For the period of April 
to June 2017 there were 8 Red rated projects and 2 Amber rated projects. 

Members of the Sub-Committee made the following comments and asked 
questions in relation to the report: 

 For those classified as Red, is attendance by participants also 
considered? 

 The issue with Pollyanna Training Theatre has been outstanding for 
some time. For how long have the performance issues been going on? 

 The current achievements of the projects should also be reflected

ACTION: Steve Hill agreed to provide Members with a 2 page summary of 
each project, outlining the cost of each in a separate pdf pack to be circulated 
to members with the agenda, via email but will not printed.

Members of the Sub-Committee AGREED to recommend to the Grants 
Determination Sub-Committee to 

i. Consider the recommendations relating to the releasing of MSG 
payments to the 12 organisations as set out in sections 3.8 to 3.16 of 
the report

6.3 Innovation Fund Phase 1& 2 Update 

Steve Hill, Head of Benefit Services stated the report provided members with 
an update on the pledges made through the Council’s Innovation Fund. The 
Innovation Fund is being used to match fund for voluntary and community 
sector organisations that are crowdfunding through the Council’ ‘Our Tower 
Hamlets’ crowdfunding portal (via spacehive) 

Members of the sub-committee made the following comments and asked 
questions:

 In reference to the table on Page 107, can you clarify what the 
crowdfunding target refers to and the pitch amount?

 Is £120K – point 5.2 the total amount of money in the fund?
 What analysis are you going to do on those projects/organisations that 

you match fund? 
 Project 1 and Project 3 appear to be similar. What are they trying to 

achieve?

Members of the Sub-Committee agreed to recommend the Grant’s 
Determination committee to:

i. Note the report, in particular the pledges made to organisations as 
detailed in 5.5 of the report.

Page 11



GRANTS SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
19/10/2017

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

4

6.4 Emergency Funding Application - Phase 10, Ashaadibi Education & 
Cultural Centre 

Steve Hill Head of Benefit Services presented this report, stating the 
Ashaadibi Educational and Cultural Centre were seeking emergency funding 
as part of the Council’s Emergency Funding Scheme. However they did not 
meet the eligibility criteria for this type of funding and the recommendation 
was not to grant the funding however offer to support them in a non-financial 
way.

Members of the Sub-Committee made the following comments and asked 
questions:

 Is the grant being sought to make their new building useable? 
 In reference to the sums provided these do not add up.

Members agreed with the recommendation contained within the report to 
recommend to the Grants Determination Sub-Committee that:

i. The officer recommendation not to award emergency funding based on 
the analysis set out in paragraph 5.2 of the report be agreed and

ii. That the decision making for future application relating to the 
Emergency Funding Programme be delegated to the Corporate 
Director of Resources, after consultation with the Executive Mayor, as 
detailed in 5.4 of the report.

6.5 Substance Misuse Prescribing Costs 

Rachael Sadgeh, Service Manager for Substance Misuse presented her 
report.  She informed Members the Council commissioned a number of 
treatment interventions for individuals who misuse drugs and alcohol. The 
primary service providing such interventions is Reset drug/alcohol treatment 
which is currently contracted to East London Foundation Trust (ELFT). She 
informed members the cost for this service is met via the Public Health Grant 
and an important element of treatment is pharmacological therapy. Drugs 
such as Methadone and Buprenorphine are used as substitutes for illicit 
opiates. 

The cost of prescribing these drugs has been shared over time between the 
Council and the Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group. A grant to the 
value of £210k is required to reimburse THCCG for the proportion of costs 
they have incurred on behalf of the Council, on an annual basis.

Members of the Sub-Committee asked the following questions:

Page 12



GRANTS SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE, 
19/10/2017

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

5

 Why does this need to be a grant? Should it not be part of the Council’s 
commissioning arrangement?

 Can the service work with the Commissioning unit and think about how 
it can align the cost of this service in the future? 

Members agreed the recommendations contained within the report that:

1. The Grants Determination Sub-Committee approve the annual grant to 
THCCG to the value of £210K to fund drug costs associated with 
substance misuse treatment interventions for the duration of the 
current Reset contract with ELFT(due to end on 30th October 2018 or 
30th October 2019 if the option to extend is exercised).

2. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Health, Adults and 
Community to approve risk share agreement between THCCG and 
LBTH.
Note that payment of the grant will be made in arrears at the end of the 
year in which expenditure was incurred. The first payment will therefore 
be for the contract year 31st October 2016 to 30th October 2017.

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 

Members of the Grants Scrutiny Sub-Committee had a discussion about 
which topic it should scrutinise as part of a challenge session at future 
meetings. 

They agreed they would examine Youth Sport Grants as a topic and the Chair 
will work with the Officer to agree the basis of the enquiry. 

The meeting ended at 7.40 p.m. 

Chair, Councillor Andrew Wood
Grants Scrutiny Sub-Committee

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Determination Sub-Committee

Tuesday 5th December 2017

Report of: Debbie Jones, Corporate Director, Children’s 
Services.

Classification:
Unrestricted

Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3, 2017-18

Lead Member Cabinet Member for Culture and Youth
Originating Officer(s) Alison Denning
Wards affected All Wards
Key Decision? No, no decision required
Community Plan Theme One Tower Hamlets 

Executive Summary
The Event Fund is a small grant fund, totalling £52,500 per annum, for community 
arts events which has been operating successfully for a number of years. It works on 
a rolling programme operating to quarterly deadlines from 1st April 2017. 

The Event Fund is designed to support small scale local events with arts content to 
encourage participation from the local community across the borough.  The Event 
Fund provides small grants for high quality public events and festivals, which are 
accessible to, and of benefit to, the community; and to promote the One Tower 
Hamlets principles across the borough, which are:

 Tackling Inequality
 Strengthening Community Cohesion and,
 Building Community Leadership

The fund is part of the Council’s revenue budget and is intended to support the 
delivery of the Council’s Community Plan priorities and contribute to its four  themes:

A Great Place to Live  
A Fair and Prosperous Community  
A Safe and Cohesive Community 
A Healthy and Supportive Community

The projects are expected to demonstrate:

Administration and management of events
 An engaging programme of events which are either directly delivered  or  which 

are provided  in partnership with groups or community organisations. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5.1



A robust process for collaborating with community groups or organisations
 Evidence that they have a strong approach to partnership, and its processes, 

working with local organisations across the borough. 

A strong understanding of equality, including:
 Understanding of the council’s commitment to equality through the Community 

Plan as detailed in the Single Equality Framework. 

 A proposal that articulates the issues or topics that will be addressed through 
the events; why these issues have been identified; and how resolving the 
issues will  assist the council to achieve the One Tower Hamlets principles.

Mayor’s Priorities:
The Event Fund contributes towards the following strands of the Mayor’s key 
priorities:

 Creating Jobs and supporting the growth of the Local Economy;
 Young People and Schools;
 Older People and Health;
 Community Safety and Community Cohesion;
 Environment and Public Realm; and
 Arts, Heritage, Leisure and Culture.

Monitoring and  evaluation
 Organisations are expected to have a system in place to measure the outputs 

and outcomes.

 Delegated authority to  award the Events Grant was granted by the 
Commissioners, on 9th September 2015, to the  Divisional Director, Sports, 
Leisure and Culture 

This report provides an overview of  Event Fund applications for events taking place 
within quarters 1 to 3 (between April 1st and December 31st 2017), and the outcome 
of events in quarter 1 (April – June inclusive). The report provides information about  
applications submitted, including details of those that were and were not successful, 
with an explanation and breakdown of the amounts spent; the wards covered and 
the number of beneficiaries expected in quarters 1 to  3 and details of actual delivery 
for quarter 1. 

Recommendations:

The Grants Determination Sub-Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the contents of this report. 

Page 16



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 This report is for information only.

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 There are no alternative options.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1 The total budget available for the Event Fund is £52,500 per year. The Event 
Fund has run on a rolling programme of monthly deadlines for applications for 
many years, and the Financial year 2017-18 is the first year that the deadlines 
have moved from monthly to quarterly. The decision to move to quarterly was 
taken to ensure that there is a more even spread of funding across the year 
as quarterly decisions will be made in one go.

3.2 An Eligibility Quiz was introduced in 2017-18 which applicants are required to 
complete before they start on their application form. The Eligibility Quiz asks a 
number of questions which all require a ‘yes’ answer in order to proceed with 
the form including information about the organisation and the event e.g. the 
Event has Arts content, is open to the general public, takes place in Tower 
Hamlets. However some applicants may tick ‘yes’ and proceed, even though  
they are not actually eligible, e.g. a school is not eligible for funding if their 
project takes place entirely within their premises as this is not open to the 
general public. These would then have been rejected as part of the 
assessment process.

3.3 Applications were all assessed by three officers independently of each other. 
Applications were initially checked for eligibility. If not eligible they were 
rejected and not assessed. If eligible, applications were scored across  the 
following areas: 

 Track record of delivery for the organisation, 
 Event outline, 
 Benefit - how it meets the Event Fund Priorities, and objectives of One 

Tower Hamlets , 
 Accessibility and marketing,
 Partnerships and community involvement, 
 Outcomes, and 
 Value for money. 

These areas form 7 sections on the assessment form for the Event Fund 
2017-18 and each area attracts a maximum score of 5, with the overall 
application receiving a maximum score of 35 by each assessor. The three 
assessors’ scores are then added together to give a maximum score of 105 
where score 1= very poor and score 5 = Excellent.  Applications not scoring 

Page 17



sufficiently during the assessment process were declined. The minimum score 
of 3 out of 5 for each section, was recommended by the Commissioners. A 
minimum score of 3   needed to be achieved for the response to the question 
about  Benefit, in order  for the application to be considered for funding. The 
ultimate decision on successful awards and amounts was made by the 
Divisional Director, Sports, Leisure and Culture on a quarterly basis once 
applications had been assessed and scored by officers. For full details of the 
Guidelines and Criteria, please see Appendix A.

Please see APPENDIX E: Application Form Questions Quarters 1 and 2.

Feedback from the Grants Determination Sub-Committee (GDSC), Assessors 
and Applicants concluded that the amount of information required was 
excessive and a review was carried out to simplify the process and forms.

Following the review, the new and greatly simplified application form and 
scoring system were utilised for the third round of applications (quarter 3) 
which now has 2 funding options: An up to £500 funding option; and £501 - 
£2500 funding option. 

A trial version of the up to £500 options was used for a special allocation of 
funding to support the Great Get Together / Big Lunch initiative in honour of 
the late Jo Cox, MP (quarter 2). For quarter 3, the applications were assessed 
against 8 sections on the assessment form, with each section scoring a 
maximum of 5 points, where score 1= very poor and score 5 = Excellent, 
raising the maximum score to 120. 

Please see APPENDIX F: Application Form Questions Quarter 3.

3.4 Quarter 1:  A total of £ 7,870 was awarded for events that benefited 9,250 
beneficiaries covering events in Weavers; Blackwall and Cubitt Town; 
Spitalfields and Banglatown; and Bow East wards.

A total of 6 applications were received 
A total of 5 applications were awarded funding.
A total of 1 application was declined funding.

Quarter 2: - A total of £15,000 was awarded for events that were estimated to 
benefit 88,010  beneficiaries covering events in  Mile End, Poplar,  Blackwall 
and Cubitt Town, St Peter's, Shadwell, Limehouse, Bow West, Bow East, 
Bethnal Green, Whitechapel, Spitalfields and Banglatown, St Katharine's 
Wapping,  Weavers, Lansbury, and St Dunstans wards. 

One event also covered Hackney and City as part of the of the Art Nights 
programme (which also  included Whitechapel, St Katharine's Wapping 
Spitalfields and Banglatown wards).

A total of 17 applications were received.
A total of 11 applications were awarded funding.

Page 18



A total of 6 applications were declined funding.

Great Get Together / Big Lunch -– A total of £2,725 was awarded for events 
that were estimated to benefit 1132 beneficiaries covering events in St Peters, 
Bow West, Weavers, Bethnal Green, Mile End, and Bow East wards 

A total of 11 applications were received
A total of 11 applications were awarded funding
A total of 0 applications were declined funding

Quarter 3:  - A total of £18,300 was awarded for events that were estimated 
to benefit 49,950 beneficiaries covering events in  Lansbury, St Peter’s, 
Whitechapel, Bethnal Green, St Dunstan, Spitalfields and Banglatown,  
Weavers, Canary Wharf,  Island Gardens, Bow East,  St Katharine's and 
Wapping wards. 

A total of 22 applications were received
A total of 17 applications were awarded funding
A total of 5 applications were declined funding.

The total number of beneficiaries for quarters 2 and  3, and the Jo Cox events 
are based on the projected numbers given on the applications and the final 
numbers will be included in the Annual Report once the evaluations have 
been received.

Quarter Total Award Number of 
applications 

Number 
awarded

Number 
declined

1 £7870 6 5 1
2 £15,000 17 11 6

Great Get 
Together / Big 

Lunch 

£2725 11 11 0

3 £18,300 22 17 5
Total £43,895 56 44 12

A full list of the applications received for quarters 1 to 3 can be seen in 
Appendix B.

Quarter one monitoring results

3.5 With the new quarterly deadlines, there is a new timeline for receiving Event 
Fund evaluations post event. It is therefore only possible to provide the 
monitoring information for quarter 1. 

3.6 The full monitoring for 2017/18 will be included in the Event Fund Annual 
Report in July / August 2018. For Monitoring information please see Appendix 
C. Please note, that the majority of the monitoring information provided is 
based on estimates. Due to the nature of many of the events taking place, it is 
not always possible to glean actual numbers of people attending or a 

Page 19



breakdown of ethnic group, age etc. For full details of application and 
evaluations deadlines, see Appendix A. Guidelines and Criteria.  

3.7 Further revision was made of the forms and a new version will be used in 
quarter 4 which applicants access via a link on the Tower Hamlets website: 
http://www.towerhamletsarts.org.uk/?s=45

3.8 Applications were received for events in all 20 wards. However, following 
assessment, events receiving awards are due to take place in 19 wards with 
the exception being Bromley North. For full list of applications received and 
where each event was proposed to take place, and for a breakdown of venues 
and wards see Appendix D.

3.9 Applications were received for events to take place in 67 venues.  however, 
some of these venues changed or will change, so the final list will be included 
in the Event Fund Annual Report .

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

4.1 This report complies with the requirement to provide updates to the Grants 
Determination Sub Committee on payments awarded from the Events Fund. 
The total amount available for the community arts events fund in 2017/18 is 
£52,000.

4.2 A total of £43,895 has been awarded for quarters 1 to 3 in 2017/18 and there 
is no overspend anticipated at the end of the financial year.

5. LEGAL COMMENTS 

5.1  The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.  This is referred to as the Council's best value 
duty.  Best Value considerations have also been addressed in paragraph 7 of 
the report.

5.2 Applying this duty to grants, the Council must operate a fair and open 
application procedure to process a request to obtain funding.  Requests for 
grant funding should ordinarily be measured against a predetermined set of 
criteria and the criteria themselves must be fair and transparent.  The grant 
agreement should include a clear monitoring process against defined 
parameters in order for the Council to demonstrate either: that delivery is in 
line with the application and, therefore, the grant achieved its purpose; or 
provide clear delineation where outcomes were not achieved and the reasons 
for such failure are apparent. Monitoring should therefore include measuring 
performance against the expected outcomes.

Page 20



5.3 This report provides the Grants Determination Sub-Committee with a 
performance update for quarters 1 to 3 of 2017/2018 on applications received 
for grants from the Events Fund.

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 The Event Fund is designed to support small local events that bring people 
together and help promote a sense of community.  The Event Fund helps to 
support the diverse local community to celebrate this richness of cultures 
helping to promote cultural understanding, a sense of inclusion and tolerance 
and promoting conditions conducive to a sense of wellbeing, community and 
local pride.  Many of the events promote diversity, equality and 
intergenerational work which support the Council’s One Tower Hamlets 
theme, making a significant contribution to creating a cohesive community.

6.2  All applicants must demonstrate that they will comply with the Equality Act 
2010 and will not discriminate on the grounds of any of the protected 
characteristics specified in the Act.  All groups funded must fill in the 
monitoring forms supplied to them which include a template for recording the 
nine protected characteristics.  This information may be used by the Council 
to assess the degree to which funded events are successfully serving people 
with protected characteristics. Further work has been done with the One 
Tower Hamlets team, and some of the protected characteristics will no longer 
be required in the monitoring of events, however, events cannot discriminate 
on grounds of any of the nine protected characteristics.

6.2 An equality analysis has been completed (Appendix G); the 
Equality Checklist (Appendix H), and Monitoring Information for Quarter 1 is 
also attached (Appendix C). 

6.3 The monitoring data collated from the first round of applications indicated in 
the report, provides an overview of the characteristics and wards which have 
been met, and identifies those areas that need to be targeted for future rounds 
and officers endeavour to pro-actively engage with the community to increase 
participation in these areas through social media, workshops and other 
targeted means. However, with limited resources, we have limited success in 
increasing participation. The introduction of workshops in different locations 
around the borough before each application deadline has sought to address 
this and continue with raising awareness and encouraging participation and 
applications to the Event Fund.

6.4 We received feedback from the Commissioners and Grants Scrutiny Sub 
Committee when presenting the Quarter 1 Report on 8 November 2016 that 
the process is difficult for some organisations and that further work is needed 
to engage with the community across the borough. This has been addressed 
through the review of the application process and the introduction of 
workshops. The first 2 quarters of 2017/18 continued with the old version of 
the application form, however a revised and shortened / simplified version was 
introduced for quarter 3 applications.

Page 21



 
7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The conditions of the Event Fund state that it cannot be the sole source of funding, 
so it helps to lever in other funding and assistance in kind for community activity. It 
supports valuable community led activity supporting a range of key strategic 
objectives of the Council in a cost effective manner which would otherwise be 
unlikely to take place (annually it supports circa 40 – 50 community events).  The 
Council therefore receives added value from the events supported through their 
additional funding received from other sources. 

The exceptions to this are certain strategic priorities such as Black History Month and 
special one off events such as the Great Get Together in honour of Jo Cox MP, 
where some of the applicants may have small events where there is no additional 
funding. For these, some of the criteria are relaxed, including the need for additional 
cash funding. This tends to just apply to the smaller requests for funding of amounts 
of £500 or less. With the introduction of the new application forms for 2017-18 
following the review, there are now 2 versions and the one for under £500 has less 
stringent requirements for additional funding. 

7.2 The new quarterly deadlines for applications will ensure that each quarter is 
assessed fairly and equal weight is given to all applications within that quarter and 
funding amounts can be more consistent. 

 
8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

8.1 N/A

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The Council retains a 20% proportion of the grant which is paid on receipt of satisfactory 
monitoring information post event. Any group not providing required information 
would lose their second payment and may not be eligible for future funding. The 
Grant process is audited as determined by corporate risk management 
arrangements.   

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 Free community events help to promote community cohesion which in turn 

helps to reduce crime and disorder, particularly where young people are 
engaged in volunteering and supporting local events.

10.2 Priority is given to arts events which involve young people, encourage 
personal responsibility and making a positive contribution to the community. 

11. SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS

11.1 [Authors should identify any safeguarding risks or benefits from the proposals 
detailed in the report.] 

____________________________________

Page 22



Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE

Appendices
 APPENDIX A: GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA QUARTERS 1&2
 APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3
 APPENDIX C: MONITORING INFORMATION QUARTER 1 (TO FOLLOW)
 APPENDIX D: VENUES AND WARDS QUARTERS 1-3 
 APPENDIX E: APPLICATION FORM QUESTIONS QUARTERS 1&2
 APPENDIX F: APPLICATION FORMS QUARTER 3 QUESTIONS
 APPENDIX G: EQUALITIES ANALYSIS (TO FOLLOW)
 APPENDIX H: EQUALITIES CHECKLIST (TO FOLLOW)
 APPENDIX I: GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA QUARTER 3

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

 List any background documents not already in the public domain including 
officer contact information.

 These must be sent to Democratic Services with the report
 State NONE if none.

Officer contact details for documents:
Or state N/A

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award
Amount

Brief Project Description - number
of

events

Themes

OTHER
ASIAS

DIY CULTURES
2017

14May17 14May17 Rich Mix WEAVERS 1700 £ 1,000.00 £ 20,168.00 £ 1,000.00 DIY Cultures 2017:  A daylong festival of zines,
artist books, comics, talks, exhibitions, workshops the
spirit of independence, autonomy & alternatives.
Exhibition: DIY Knowledge.
Curated by Hamja Ahsan, Sofia Niazi
and Helena Wee.

1

DIY Cultures day
festival emphasises
Black, Asian, Islamic,
feminist, migrant and
LGBT viewpoints. 

NEIGHBOU
RS IN
POPLAR

POPLAR
HISTORY
WEEK

19May17  26 MAY 2017St. Matthias Community
Centre,
Workhouse Leisure
Centre,E14
Wigram House
Community Centre, 14

BLACKWALL
AND CUBITT
TOWN

200 £ 1,120.00 £ 1,470.00 £ 1,120.00 Poplar History Week, Past, Present & Future. This
will be a week of story telling, art workshops,
dramatic presentations, displays and general
gatherings of local people in an attempt to re
discover the glorious history behind the Poplar Ward.

7

local community all
ages celebrating
diversity

RAINBOW
FILM
SOCIETY

18TH
RAINBOW FILM
FESTIVAL

09Apr17 16Apr17 Genesis Cinema,
Rich Mix Centre,
Brady Arts Centre

SPITALFIELDS
AND
BANGLATOWN

700 £ 3,000.00 £ 12,170.00 £ 2,000.00 18th Rainbow Film Festival will take place across
East London. There will be around 18 films from
different countries including feature, short and
documentary. For full details please visit
www.rainbowfilmsociety.com

25

cultural diversity,
promoting racial
harmony and
community cohesion

RADHARAM
AN
SOCIETY

BAUL AND
VAISHNAV
MUSIC
FESTIVAL

29Apr17 30Apr17 Montefiore Centre,
Rich Mix, Kobi Nazrul
Centre, Cafe Grill
Bricklane,
Sonar Gaon Brick lane, 

WEAVERS &
SPITALFIELDS
AND
BANGLATOWN

400 £ 2,000.00 £ 5,100.00 £ 1,750.00 Baul and Vaishnav Music Festival on 29 and 30 April
featuring the ecstasy of the heartarresting, unmarred
melody that evolved from the soil of Bengal. 2

all ages, celebrating
diversity

ARBYTE
GALLERY

CENSORSHIP 21Jun17 21Jun17 Watermans (Brentford),
Cruise Boat on the
Thames from
Watermans to
Limehouse,
walking tour from
Limehouse to Hackney
Wick, arebyte Gallery, 

BOW EAST
BUT MAINLY
OUT OF
BOROUGH

50 £ 2,500.00 £ 9,680.00 £  CensorSHIP is a day of performative workshops
taking place on a cruise ship traveling on the Thames
addressing human rights issues.

Through a series of playful workshops and games led
by Desearch Repartment art collective, Censorship
will take the passengers through unique and critically
engaging experiences. Does not sufficiently
demonstrate benefit or engagement with local
residents.

DASH ARTS DASH ARTS
DACHA 2017

16Jun17 12Jul17 Rich Mix, advance
workshops for
schools/community
groups across Tower
Hamlets in May 2017.

WEAVERS 6200 £ 2,500.00 £ 15,800.00 £ 2,000.00 The Dash Arts Dacha is a 12 hour,
everchanging performance venue modelled on the
iconic Russian country house, based at Rich Mix
from 12th June  12th July. Enter an enchanting
space laced with performances, live music, films, djs
and a kitchen stocked with hot tea and snacks

30

Post Soviet and
Former Eastern Bloc
Communities in
Tower Hamlets 
celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

£ 7,870.00

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award Amount Project Description Number
of

Events

Themes

P
age 25



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Approach
Gardens

The Great Get
Together 
Approach
Garden Party

09/07/2017 24.4.17 Approach Community
Gardens

ST PETERS 140 £ 250.00 £ 340.00 £ 250.00 garden party for local residents to enjoy community
garden, allotments, wildlife garden, pond, bug hotel
etc. folk music, food and drink to share

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

St Andrew's
Health
Centre part
of the
Bromley By
Bow Health
Partnership
(BBBHP)

The Great St
Andrews Village
Get Together, 

08/07/2017 27/04/2017 St Andrews Village
(moved to Victoria Park)

BROMLEY
SOUTH (moved
to Bow West)

100 £ 250.00 £ 1,000.00 £ 250.00 street party for neighbours honouring British values
and celebrating diversity. Bunting making,  sing a
long, school performances, interactive map showing
community of TH.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Columbia
School /
Friends of
Columbia / in
support of
the formation
of Friends of
Ion Square

The Big Ion
Square Clean
up Part 1 &2

17/06/2017 27/04/2017 Ion Square Gardens WEAVERS 80 £ 250.00 £ 570.00 £ 250.00 graffiti cleaning, litter picking, prepare wall and
shared refreshments day one, paint wall, clean up
and more refreshments day 2

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Columbia
Tenants and
Residents
Association

East End
Summer
Gathering (As
part of Great
Get Together)

15/07/2017 27/04/2017 Ravenscroft Park WEAVERS 100 £ 855.00 £ 855.00 £ 250.00 community bring and share picnic, to build
community relations and kick start future clean up
and gardening schemes. Fun day for family with
games, activities and music and dance

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Globe
Community
Food Garden

Globe
Community
Food Garden's
Jo Cox Get
Together

18/06/2017
DATES
CHANGED
TO 9 JULY 

27.4.17 Globe Community
Garden

BETHNAL
GREEN

52 £ 250.00 £ 800.00 £ 250.00 open garden, food to share, childrens games. Seed
sowing, plant and preserves sale. Mindfulness and
wellbeing workshops, band, magician.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Leaders in
Community
(LiC)

Share in Sunday 09/07/2017 27.4.17 St Paul's Way Centre MILE END 100 £ 250.00 £ 2,559.00 £ 250.00 celebration of cultural diversity in the area, food,
conversation, art, intergenerational event,celebrating
cultural diversity

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Mohila
Ongon
Association

Street Party 16/07/2017 26.4.17 Dence House, Turin
Street

WEAVERS 100 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 street party for neighbours in Turin Street. Activities
for kids, face painting, art and craft

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

St Hilda's
East

Our Tower
Hamlets

8.7.17 27.4.17 St Hilda's East &
Cookham House
Courtyard

WEAVERS 200 £ 250.00 £ 1,100.00 £ 250.00 tea party, craft stalls, face painting, mural and
showing flm by yound disabled group Surjamuki

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

The Young
Foundation

The Big Lunch
with the Young
Foundation

16/06/2017 27/04/2017 Young Foundation BETHNAL
GREEN

60 £ 250.00 £ 360.00 £ 250.00 lunch party by invitation only celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

West Indian
Over 50's
Social Club

Great Get
Together Event

08/07/2017 25/04/2017 Centurion Road, Bow BOW EAST 150 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 Music, Sound system, dancing, bouncy castle, face
painting and afrocaribbean food.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Working Well
Trust and
Pritchards
Day Centre
and Baking
Well Social
Enterprise

Pritchards
Centre Picnic

07/06/2017 27.4.17 Pritchard Centre ST PETERS 50 £ 250.00 £ 450.00 £ 250.00 cup cake decorating & get together with neighbouring
organisations

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

£ 2,750.00

P
age 26



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award Amount Brief Project Description 
Number
of Events

Themes

Friends of
Tower
Hamlets
Cemetery
Park

Summer Fair 
celebrating
steam

01/07/2017 01/07/2017 Tower Hamlets
Cemetery Park

Mile End 800 £ 2,000 £ 7,000 £ 2,000.00 Free.
celebrating the wonder of Steam.

Traditional woodland crafts such as basket weaving,
ride a penny farthing bicycle, face painting, learning
about local history, and see steam powered models
and ride a replica steam powered bus

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Neighbours
In Poplar

Blackwall Road
Show

30/07/2017 24/08/2017 5 Estate in Lap 7 
Poplar High Street E14

Poplar and
Blackwall and
Cubitt Town

700 £ 1,000 £ 3,200 £ 1,000.00 6 Estate based FunDays in Poplar during August. 
tea parties and a Poplar's got talent "competition" at
the end of the month, and a programme of sport
events in the Workhouse Leisure Centre.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Green
Candle
Dance
Company

Sagacity! 03/07/2017 04/07/2017 Oxford House St Peter's 130 £ 1,200 £ 4,150 £ 1,000.00 Sagacity!  London's annual celebration of older
people's dance: 3rd, 4th July at Oxford House in
Bethnal Green,

July 3rd: Workshops celebrate Green Candle's 30th
Birthday, focusing on dance, music and film from
1987, + free lunch and film showing

July 8th: Older people's dance groups from across
London perform.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
Older people

Cornucopia
Theatre
Company

Pericles 07/07/2017 30/07/2017 Glamis adventure
playground

Shadwell 1,200 £ 2,500 £ 30,050 £ 1,500.00 PERICLES  by William Shakespeare.

Director Mark Duncan
ComposerJames Hesford
Designer Andie Scott
Singer/narrator Na jma Akhtar
Performance Dates: July 7,8,9/14,15,16/21,22,
23/28,29,30 (2017)

12

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
Young people

Limehouse
Community
Forum

LIMEFest 02/07/2017 02/07/2017 Ropermakers Fields Limehouse 2,000 £ 2,500 £ 7,125 £ 1,500.00 A fun packed day for all the family .
Dog show, come and try e.g. bell ringing. Live Bands,
fitness and  children's areas, food court, market stalls
and much much more,

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All Ages

Friends of
Mile End
Park

Park Life  Mile
End Park
Community Fair
& Dog Show
2017

09/07/2017 09/07/2017 Event Field, Haverfield
Road, Mile End Park

Bow West 600 £ 2,300 £ 12,113 £ 2,000.00 Park Life  Mile End Park Community Fair & Dog
Show is a free event for people of all ages and
includes face painting, tshirt printing, Stixx sculpting
and juggling workshops, Mr Bubbles, fair rides, a
bellydancing troupe, food stalls, Dog Agility training
and DOG SHOW

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All Ages

P
age 27



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

arebyte
Gallery

Crowd Control 21/07/2017 23/07/2017 arebyte Gallery + public
spaces and other
venues across Tower
Hamlets

Bow East 600 £ 2,500 £ 14,800 £  During three days of happenings across Tower Haml
ets, Crowd Control invites youth groups, elderly popul
ations and the wider community in Tower Hamlets to
take part in creative experiments exploring collective
behaviour.
							
Crowd Control is a collaboration between arebyte Gal
lery with artist Heather Barnett, and behavioural scie
ntist Dr Andrew King. Did not sufficiently demonstr
ate engagement or participation from local reside
nts or wider community.

Sweet 'Art Femfest 04/09/2017 10/09/2017 Off Quay (E14) Poplar 300 £ 4,901 £ 10,851 £  Femfest will be a week long event showcasing the
work of 40 visual artists exploring themes of feminist
issues in the workplace and the reclaiming of
traditionally masculine spaces. There will be an
exciting programme of associated performances,
talks and workshops for visitors to get involved in
throughout the event. Did not have any partners
beyond venue, outcomes not clear, high costs for
number of beneficiaries. 

Kazzum Arts
Project

MerryMaker
Summer Tour

24/07/2017 31/08/2017 tour of different public lo
cations each day Housi
ng Associations, Playce
ntres and Adventure Pla
ygrounds.  e.g.:
1.	Weavers Field,
2.	Linc Centre 
3.St Paul's Way

Bethnal Green 500 £ 2,000 £ 3,200 £ 2,000.00 MerryMaker is a fun and enjoyable and interactive
walkabout performance for families, presented by a
performer using a mobile trike, who entertains and
interacts with people, regaling them with a personal
rap, on the spot!

The work will be toured in accessible locations
including the Museum of Childhood, and playspaces.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
Young people

OffthePage Offthe_page
present 
AmianActor
AmiaDancer
AmiaSinger

23/07/2017 23/07/2017 Chisenhale dance
space OR Oxford
House 

Bow West 80 £ 600 £ 615 £  Little or No experience, Dancing, Acting, Singing 25
99+ any age, London. Workshops. Did not
sufficiently demonstrate benefit, partners not
clear, outcomes not clear, budget not clear.

ArtCity
Nights

Art Night 2017 01/07/2017 01/07/2017 The Cass, ,
Whitechapel Gallery,
Village Underground
St Katharine's Dock,
London Dock
White Chapel Building
Masonic Temple,
Exchange Square,
Middlesex Street Estate
and Petticoat Lane

Whitechapel,
Spitalfields and
Banglatown, St
Katharine's
Wapping, & City
and Hackney

75,000 £ 2,500 £ 20,500 £ 1,000.00 Art Night is a free annual contemporary arts festival
that transforms London for one unforgettable night,
presenting acclaimed international art in unusual
locations across the city, this year in the East End, in
collaboration with the Whitechapel Gallery and
curated by independent curator and writer FatoÅŸ
Ãœstek.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Certain
Blacks

Arts Ensamble 
Harlem

07/09/2017 11/09/2017 Rich Mix  Weavers 1,000 £ 2,000 £ 58,360 £  The Harlem Renaissance describes a period in
1920's Harlem area of new your when Black theatre,
literature, music and arts found its own unique voice
within American culture. The festival will be based
around an R n D staging of Invisible Man by Ralph
Ellison. Did not demonstrate sufficent
engagement or benefit to local residents. High
ticket prices.

P
age 28



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Saudha
Society Of
Poetry and
Indian Music

Bangla Music
Festival

02/09/2017 22/10/2017 Rich Mix, Kobi Nazrul
Centre, Idea Store,
Townhouse, Poplar
Union, The Water Poet
Pub, Husk Coffee and
Creative Space, 

Weavers,
Spitalfields and
Banglatown,
Lansbury, St
Dunstans

1,500 £ 2,000 £ 8,500 £ 1,000.00 Showcasing the splendour of Bangla Music and its
spectacular latitude through mind blowing
performances

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
COMMUNITY

Surbandhan
Society

Raaga Factory's
Mughal  to
Modern  A
Celebration of
Indian Classical
Music

10/06/2017 22/07/2017 Brady Arts centre Spitalfields and
Banglatown

200 £ 2,500 £ 3,380 £  A Classical Music journey through the Mughal times
with Raaga Factories Mughal to Modern. Did not
score highly enough, did not demonstrate how
would involve local people, very scant
information.

Yard Theatre
Ltd

Summer
Celebration

30/07/2017 30/07/2017 Hub67, The Yard
Theatre

Bow East 400 £ 2,000 £ 5,900 £ 1,000.00 Free performances and workshops for all ages,
including spoken word, rangoli art, dance and live
music, the Makers Market, food, drink and a chance
to meet your neighbours.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Zoe Gospel
Promotions

FRI: DEM 10/08/2017 25/08/2017 Bethnal Green Hall and
Bow Road Methodist
church halls

Bethnal Green 200 £ 1,200 £ 2,900 £ - FRIË�DÆ�M is a 5 week participatory project that
will support 60 young people  from  6 different school
s or communities in  East London as they learn how t
o sing as a group and work towards  show casing the
ir art in 5 community venues across East and south L
ondon. Not clear how much of the project would b
e in Newham, info sketchy and did not sufficiently
demonstrate engagement with wider community i
n TH.

V&A
Museum of
Childhood

Museum of
Childhood
Summer
Festival

23/07/2017 23/07/2017 V&A Museum of
Childhood

Bethnal Green 2,800 £ 1,000 £ 4,000 £ 1,000.00 The Museum's annual Summer Festival with a
colourful mix of live entertainment. The Museum
grounds will come alive with a buzzing programme of
live music, dance, designer stalls, food, face paints,
rickshaw rides, games and lots for kids to make and
do.

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  

£ 15,000.00

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award
Amount

Project Description

Number
of Events

Themes

Bygrove
Primary
School

Black History
Week

09/10/2017 20/10/2017 Within school LANSBURY 200-300 £ 500.00 £ 500.00 £  focus on one person from history who inspires us in
different ways, examples being Martin Luther King, Rosa
Parks etc.workshops in areas such as steel pans and tribal
masks NOT ELIGIBLE AS WITHIN A SCHOOL

1

P
age 29



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Kayd Somali
Arts & Culture

Somali Week
Festival 2017

20/10/2017 28/10/2017 Oxford House,
British Library
Southbank Centre
University College London 

ST PETER'S  AND
OUT OF
BOROUGH

4500 £ 2,000.00 £ 126,460.00 £ 1,750.00 SWF 2017 will take place over 10 days, offering 15 events,
performances, panel discussions, workshops, family
events, featuring 70 artists. Over 50% of the events will
take place in Somali and English.  The festival will open at
the British Library and SWF will co-promote an event
featuring four young women poets at Southbank Centre's
Poetry International Biennale. Events at UCL and SOAS.
Theme is Home and Displacement, placing the festival at
the centre of current debates about migration and
belonging.

15

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  SOMALI
ARTS

Bangladeshi
Mental Health
Forum

BMHF- World
Mental Health
Day 2017

10/10/2017 10/10/2017 London Muslim Centre, Whitechapel 300- 400 £ 500.00 £ 3,500.00 £ 500.00 A mental health awareness day which will take place on
World Mental Health Day (10th October) to raise
awareness of mental health, challenge stigma and
improve knowledge of local mental health services and
support mechanisms. Live interactive play, film screening,
presentations on local mental health services, stalls,
creative ways of collecting service user/carer feedback,
service users / carers telling their personal experiences. 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  HEALTH
AND WELLBEING,
BANGLADESHI
COMMUNITY

Genesis
Entertainemtn
Ltd

Black History
Month: The
Amazing James
Baldwin - Course
and Free
Screenings

10/10/2017 14/11/2017 Genesis Cinema Bethnal Green 400+ £ 500.00 £ 1,500.00 £ 500.00 Five part course on the work of the iconic James Baldwin
accompanied by a series of free screenings of related
films - I Am Not Your Negro, Get Out, Hidden Figures and
Moonlight.  free spaces to Tower Hamlets residents 9

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
BLACK HISTORY
MONTH  

Half Moon
Young
People's
Theatre

What Once Was
Ours

10/10/2017 10/10/2017 Half Moon,
43 White Horse Road
E1 0ND

St Dunstans 57 £ 800.00 £ 1,610.00 £ 800.00 A new show for teenagers about identity and belonging.
'What Once Was Ours' explores the relationship between
half-siblings Katie and Callum: their different heritage,
different cities, different opportunities. Created against
the background of Brexit, developed in consultation with
young people.
Teenagers to participate in pre-show workshop and to
share their thoughts on identity and difference 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
BLACK HISTORY
MONTH  

Sohaya Visions Silent Sisters-
Brothers
Unhinged

06/11/2017 18/11/2017 Workshops / rehearsals
/open playreading and
rehearsal to invited
audience at Brady Arts
Performances at Rich Mix 

Spitalfields and
Banglatown &
Weavers

350 £ 2,000.00 £ 8,508.00 £ 500.00 Silent Sisters-Brothers Unhinged is a powerful new drama
based on British Asian memories of partition in 1947.The
play aims to challenge the collective amnesia around this
subject and to get people to talk about this as a way of
healing across religious, racial and ethnic divides. It
focuses on both the eastern (Bangladesh) and western
sides of partition, the former not having received much
attention in theatre.

5

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

Purple Moon
Drama

Side Effects 20/10/2017 27/10/2017 Poplar Union,
Christian Street Centre,
Brady Arts Centre, 

LANSBURY,
Whitechapel,
Spitalfields and
Banglatown

320 £ 2,450.00 £ 5,600.00 £ 2,000.00 Side Effects is a play written by young writer Iman
Qureshi. The cast has 11 local young people. The play
centres around issues to do with race, heritage and
science. The theme in the play are to do with race and
heritage with a diverse cast. The project will also provide
work for local artists in terms of technical and
photographic assistance.

3

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
BLACK HISTORY
MONTH  

P
age 30



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Bishwa
Shahittya
Kendra
Limited

Represents
multiculturalism

04/11/2017 11/11/2017 Brady Arts Centre Spitalfields and
Banglatown

65 £ 500.00 £ 700.00 £  application withdrawn as 2 submitted

2

Udichi Shilpi
Gosthi

Cultural Festival
and Children's
song Contest

01/10/2017 01/10/2017 Rich Mix Weavers 600 £ 2,500.00 £ 13,000.00 £  The programme includes multicultural poetry session,
children's song contest , photographic,  painting exbition
and display of publication from the local writers and
poets. INSUFFICIENT DETAIL ON FORM TO BE
CONSIDERED FOR FUNDING.

2

Surbandhan
Society

From Mughal to
Modern: Raga
Factory

04/11/2017 16/12/2017 Oxford House St Peter's 30,000 £ 2,500.00 £ 8,304.20 £ 1,250.00 Exploring, learning and appreciating raga music inclu
ding the history of arts of the Mughal era, consisting
of:  	6 intensive worshops, performance
and 	 Audio & vide capture of reflective moments &
performances

7

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

The Rokeya
Project

'SOLD'
presented by The
Rokeya Project
for A Season Of
Bangla Drama

22/11/2017 25/11/2017 Preview Sampled
Performances:
Crossrail Place Roof
Gardens
Main Performances
(Matinee and Evening):
The Space Theatre

Canary Wharf &
Island Gardens

325 £ 2,250.00 £ 4,150.00 £ 500.00 SOLD' is a highly visual Dance Theatre Production with
strong elements of story telling, Poetry and Narration,
which focuses on raising awareness on the global issue of
Sex Trafficking. The performance will have elements of
strong Contemporary Dance, Hip Hop and South Asian
Classical and Creative Dance.

4

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

Cause2Create Beyond the
Problem:
Celebrating and
supporting
equality through
creativity

17/11/2017 18/11/2017 EXP Cantina -
Stour Space Gallery
Formans Smokehouse,
White Post Cafe -
The Atrium
Das Kino Pop Up Cinima
Grow Hackney, 

7 x Bow East,
Grow Hackney
out of Borough.

3000 £ 2,500.00 £ 36,388.00 £ 1,500.00 An annual celebration of Creativity for Good. This year's
theme is Beyond the Problem: delving into the root issues
of many of the issues we see in society today. We reach
into four theme areas of: Equality, Division, Perception
and Home, through a range of creative mediums
including: Art, Design, & Illustration, Photography, Talks,
Film Screenings, Music, Food, Creative Workshops and
Performance.

8

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  

ice&fire
Theatre
Company

Asylum
Monologues

24/10/2017 24/10/2017 Idea Store - Whitechapel Spitalfields and
Banglatown

1387 £ 2,250.00 £ 3,087.50 £ 1,000.00 Centering around AFHR's flagship script Asylum
Monologues, a first-hand account of the UK asylum
system in the words of people who have experienced it,
performed by actors. This powerful, stripped-back reading
will be followed by a short, complementary creative
performance from an artist sourced by our Actors in
Residence. The evening culminates in a short Q&A with a
representative from a local refugee action charity 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  MIGRATION
ANDY ASYLUM

P
age 31



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Teatro Vivo TWISTOV 09/10/2017 18/11/2017 multiple venues still in
negotiation, but will
include:
Nomadic Community
garden,
St. Leonard's, (out of
Borough)
Rich Mix, 3

Spitalfields and
Banglatown,
Weavers & out of
borough

3164 £ 2,500.00 £ 71,005.00 £ 1,500.00 TWISTOV, inspired by Charles Dickens' Oliver Twist, will
be immersive theatre taking audiences into the world of
immigrant life in contemporary London.
The script for TWISTOV has been developed through a
process of research and workshops with migrants and
refugees coordinated by Teatro Vivo. working with UK
based migrant artists to produce the final script, and the
project will culminate in 18 promenade performances
delivered on the streets of East London. the audiences
will follow as silent witnesses.

18

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  IDENTITY

Spitalfields
City Farm

Catalyst 10 -
Roots and Wings

07/10/2017 07/11/2017 Spitalfields City Farm
Buxton street
London
E1 5AR

Spitalfields and
Banglatown

1500 £ 1,500.00 £ 2,300.00 £ 1,500.00 The event is a free all-day Arts event located at
Spitalfields City Farm in Tower Hamlets open to all
members of the community featuring talks about
wellbeing, a children?s theatre-workshop, a drumming-
workshop, an exhibition of visual arts; film, photography
and installation, supported by live music by female solo
artists, finishing up with some poetry readings. The event
will take place on Saturday 7th October 2017 and will
serve to open a one month long exhibition of art with the
purpose of bringing more visitors to the farm and
benefitting the community in a sustainable way.

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  

Half Moon
Young
People's
Theatre

Fun Palaces 2017 07/10/2017 07/10/2017 Half Moon Theatre
43 White Horse Road
London
E1 0ND

St Dunstans 500 £ 1,630.00 £ 3,590.00 £ 1,500.00 Third Fun Palaces day for families in Tower Hamlets
focused on the theme of space and astrology. 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  FAMILIES
AND YOUNG
PEOPLE

Arts Initiative
Limited

Beheld 03/10/2017 22/10/2017 Pennington Street
Warehouse, Pennington
Street, London E1W 2AD

St Katharine's
and Wapping

2400 £ 1,000.00 £ 24,000.00 £  This is a presentation of Graeme Miller's ongoing
installation project Beheld at the Pennington Street
Warehouse in Wapping, East London in conjunction with
Bow Arts.
Application withdrawn due to venue pulling out.

1

African
Women's
Welfare
Association
(Ayoka
Project)

Theatre Focused
Black History
Workshops

29/09/2017 30/09/2017 St. Margaret's House, &
1 Lochnagar St., Poplar 

ST PETER'S  AND
Lansbury

1200 £ 500.00 £ 500.00 £ 500.00 This is a 2-days FREE event, featuring 3-
presentations/sessions each day. Each session begins with
a 30 minute speech delivered by External Speaker who
interfaces with a narrator and subject matter expert.
Drummer accompanies dancers (Clad in traditional
costume) to interpret/translate the message into dance. 

2

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
ALL AGES   BLACK
HISTORY MONTH  

P
age 32



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

NARRATIVE
EYE

YOUNG OTHELLO 05/11/2017 30/11/2017 THEATRE AND A
COMMUNITY
SPACES/SCHOOLS - not
confirmed

TBC 162 £ 500.00 £ 650.00 £ 500.00 Young Othello is a play based on the life of Shakespeare's
Othello and explores the early years of a character that is
shrouded in mystery.  Set within a prosperous ancient
African kingdom untouched by slavery or colonialism,  the
event will bring Othello to life through presentations and
small sketches from the play.  Targeted at a wide range of
people including the Black community and those isolated
from the arts to experience,  this project will enable
people to experience Shakespeare in a context that they
can understand while providing volunteers the
opportunity to access theatre programmes and a new
career path.

3

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
ALL AGES   BLACK
HISTORY MONTH  

Cardboard
Citizens

Music Lab Sharing 05/12/2017 05/12/2017 Cardboard Citizens, 77a
Greenfield Road, London,
E1 1EJ

Whitechapel 65 £ 2,000.00 £ 4,994.00 £ 2,000.00 End of term sharing event of Music Lab, a term of
workshops for young people aged 16-25 affected by
homelessness. The young people will produce brand new
music to share at the event, and will support the event's
planning.
The event will be open to homeless/vulnerable people
from across the community, as well as social sector staff
and Cardboard Citizens' partners. 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
HOMELESSNESS

Bishwo
Shahitto
Kendro
London

The Cafe 03/11/2017 04/11/2017 The Brady Arts Centre
192-196 Hanbury Street
London E1 9HZ

Spitalfields and
Banglatown

355 £ 2,121.00 £ 4,201.00 £ 500.00 The Cafe - a new play by Bulbul Hasan based on the post
Brexit socioeconomic events that will affect the residents
of East London.

The Café depicts the mismatched life of Bengali
Londoners stuck in their own dilemma trapped in
between British mainstream and traditional Bengali
culture. 

2

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

£ 18,300.00

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award
Amount

Brief Project Description - number
of

events

Themes

OTHER
ASIAS

DIY CULTURES
2017

14May17 14May17 Rich Mix WEAVERS 1700 £ 1,000.00 £ 20,168.00 £ 1,000.00 DIY Cultures 2017:  A daylong festival of zines,
artist books, comics, talks, exhibitions, workshops the
spirit of independence, autonomy & alternatives.
Exhibition: DIY Knowledge.
Curated by Hamja Ahsan, Sofia Niazi
and Helena Wee.

1

DIY Cultures day
festival emphasises
Black, Asian, Islamic,
feminist, migrant and
LGBT viewpoints. 

NEIGHBOU
RS IN
POPLAR

POPLAR
HISTORY
WEEK

19May17  26 MAY 2017St. Matthias Community
Centre,
Workhouse Leisure
Centre,E14
Wigram House
Community Centre, 14

BLACKWALL
AND CUBITT
TOWN

200 £ 1,120.00 £ 1,470.00 £ 1,120.00 Poplar History Week, Past, Present & Future. This
will be a week of story telling, art workshops,
dramatic presentations, displays and general
gatherings of local people in an attempt to re
discover the glorious history behind the Poplar Ward.

7

local community all
ages celebrating
diversity

RAINBOW
FILM
SOCIETY

18TH
RAINBOW FILM
FESTIVAL

09Apr17 16Apr17 Genesis Cinema,
Rich Mix Centre,
Brady Arts Centre

SPITALFIELDS
AND
BANGLATOWN

700 £ 3,000.00 £ 12,170.00 £ 2,000.00 18th Rainbow Film Festival will take place across
East London. There will be around 18 films from
different countries including feature, short and
documentary. For full details please visit
www.rainbowfilmsociety.com

25

cultural diversity,
promoting racial
harmony and
community cohesion

RADHARAM
AN
SOCIETY

BAUL AND
VAISHNAV
MUSIC
FESTIVAL

29Apr17 30Apr17 Montefiore Centre,
Rich Mix, Kobi Nazrul
Centre, Cafe Grill
Bricklane,
Sonar Gaon Brick lane, 

WEAVERS &
SPITALFIELDS
AND
BANGLATOWN

400 £ 2,000.00 £ 5,100.00 £ 1,750.00 Baul and Vaishnav Music Festival on 29 and 30 April
featuring the ecstasy of the heartarresting, unmarred
melody that evolved from the soil of Bengal. 2

all ages, celebrating
diversity

ARBYTE
GALLERY

CENSORSHIP 21Jun17 21Jun17 Watermans (Brentford),
Cruise Boat on the
Thames from
Watermans to
Limehouse,
walking tour from
Limehouse to Hackney
Wick, arebyte Gallery, 

BOW EAST
BUT MAINLY
OUT OF
BOROUGH

50 £ 2,500.00 £ 9,680.00 £  CensorSHIP is a day of performative workshops
taking place on a cruise ship traveling on the Thames
addressing human rights issues.

Through a series of playful workshops and games led
by Desearch Repartment art collective, Censorship
will take the passengers through unique and critically
engaging experiences. Does not sufficiently
demonstrate benefit or engagement with local
residents.

DASH ARTS DASH ARTS
DACHA 2017

16Jun17 12Jul17 Rich Mix, advance
workshops for
schools/community
groups across Tower
Hamlets in May 2017.

WEAVERS 6200 £ 2,500.00 £ 15,800.00 £ 2,000.00 The Dash Arts Dacha is a 12 hour,
everchanging performance venue modelled on the
iconic Russian country house, based at Rich Mix
from 12th June  12th July. Enter an enchanting
space laced with performances, live music, films, djs
and a kitchen stocked with hot tea and snacks

30

Post Soviet and
Former Eastern Bloc
Communities in
Tower Hamlets 
celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

£ 7,870.00

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award Amount Project Description Number
of

Events

Themes

P
age 35



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Approach
Gardens

The Great Get
Together 
Approach
Garden Party

09/07/2017 24.4.17 Approach Community
Gardens

ST PETERS 140 £ 250.00 £ 340.00 £ 250.00 garden party for local residents to enjoy community
garden, allotments, wildlife garden, pond, bug hotel
etc. folk music, food and drink to share

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

St Andrew's
Health
Centre part
of the
Bromley By
Bow Health
Partnership
(BBBHP)

The Great St
Andrews Village
Get Together, 

08/07/2017 27/04/2017 St Andrews Village
(moved to Victoria Park)

BROMLEY
SOUTH (moved
to Bow West)

100 £ 250.00 £ 1,000.00 £ 250.00 street party for neighbours honouring British values
and celebrating diversity. Bunting making,  sing a
long, school performances, interactive map showing
community of TH.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Columbia
School /
Friends of
Columbia / in
support of
the formation
of Friends of
Ion Square

The Big Ion
Square Clean
up Part 1 &2

17/06/2017 27/04/2017 Ion Square Gardens WEAVERS 80 £ 250.00 £ 570.00 £ 250.00 graffiti cleaning, litter picking, prepare wall and
shared refreshments day one, paint wall, clean up
and more refreshments day 2

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Columbia
Tenants and
Residents
Association

East End
Summer
Gathering (As
part of Great
Get Together)

15/07/2017 27/04/2017 Ravenscroft Park WEAVERS 100 £ 855.00 £ 855.00 £ 250.00 community bring and share picnic, to build
community relations and kick start future clean up
and gardening schemes. Fun day for family with
games, activities and music and dance

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Globe
Community
Food Garden

Globe
Community
Food Garden's
Jo Cox Get
Together

18/06/2017
DATES
CHANGED
TO 9 JULY 

27.4.17 Globe Community
Garden

BETHNAL
GREEN

52 £ 250.00 £ 800.00 £ 250.00 open garden, food to share, childrens games. Seed
sowing, plant and preserves sale. Mindfulness and
wellbeing workshops, band, magician.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Leaders in
Community
(LiC)

Share in Sunday 09/07/2017 27.4.17 St Paul's Way Centre MILE END 100 £ 250.00 £ 2,559.00 £ 250.00 celebration of cultural diversity in the area, food,
conversation, art, intergenerational event,celebrating
cultural diversity

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Mohila
Ongon
Association

Street Party 16/07/2017 26.4.17 Dence House, Turin
Street

WEAVERS 100 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 street party for neighbours in Turin Street. Activities
for kids, face painting, art and craft

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

St Hilda's
East

Our Tower
Hamlets

8.7.17 27.4.17 St Hilda's East &
Cookham House
Courtyard

WEAVERS 200 £ 250.00 £ 1,100.00 £ 250.00 tea party, craft stalls, face painting, mural and
showing flm by yound disabled group Surjamuki

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

The Young
Foundation

The Big Lunch
with the Young
Foundation

16/06/2017 27/04/2017 Young Foundation BETHNAL
GREEN

60 £ 250.00 £ 360.00 £ 250.00 lunch party by invitation only celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

West Indian
Over 50's
Social Club

Great Get
Together Event

08/07/2017 25/04/2017 Centurion Road, Bow BOW EAST 150 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 £ 250.00 Music, Sound system, dancing, bouncy castle, face
painting and afrocaribbean food.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

Working Well
Trust and
Pritchards
Day Centre
and Baking
Well Social
Enterprise

Pritchards
Centre Picnic

07/06/2017 27.4.17 Pritchard Centre ST PETERS 50 £ 250.00 £ 450.00 £ 250.00 cup cake decorating & get together with neighbouring
organisations

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion

£ 2,750.00

P
age 36



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award Amount Brief Project Description 
Number
of Events

Themes

Friends of
Tower
Hamlets
Cemetery
Park

Summer Fair 
celebrating
steam

01/07/2017 01/07/2017 Tower Hamlets
Cemetery Park

Mile End 800 £ 2,000 £ 7,000 £ 2,000.00 Free.
celebrating the wonder of Steam.

Traditional woodland crafts such as basket weaving,
ride a penny farthing bicycle, face painting, learning
about local history, and see steam powered models
and ride a replica steam powered bus

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Neighbours
In Poplar

Blackwall Road
Show

30/07/2017 24/08/2017 5 Estate in Lap 7 
Poplar High Street E14

Poplar and
Blackwall and
Cubitt Town

700 £ 1,000 £ 3,200 £ 1,000.00 6 Estate based FunDays in Poplar during August. 
tea parties and a Poplar's got talent "competition" at
the end of the month, and a programme of sport
events in the Workhouse Leisure Centre.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Green
Candle
Dance
Company

Sagacity! 03/07/2017 04/07/2017 Oxford House St Peter's 130 £ 1,200 £ 4,150 £ 1,000.00 Sagacity!  London's annual celebration of older
people's dance: 3rd, 4th July at Oxford House in
Bethnal Green,

July 3rd: Workshops celebrate Green Candle's 30th
Birthday, focusing on dance, music and film from
1987, + free lunch and film showing

July 8th: Older people's dance groups from across
London perform.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
Older people

Cornucopia
Theatre
Company

Pericles 07/07/2017 30/07/2017 Glamis adventure
playground

Shadwell 1,200 £ 2,500 £ 30,050 £ 1,500.00 PERICLES  by William Shakespeare.

Director Mark Duncan
ComposerJames Hesford
Designer Andie Scott
Singer/narrator Na jma Akhtar
Performance Dates: July 7,8,9/14,15,16/21,22,
23/28,29,30 (2017)

12

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
Young people

Limehouse
Community
Forum

LIMEFest 02/07/2017 02/07/2017 Ropermakers Fields Limehouse 2,000 £ 2,500 £ 7,125 £ 1,500.00 A fun packed day for all the family .
Dog show, come and try e.g. bell ringing. Live Bands,
fitness and  children's areas, food court, market stalls
and much much more,

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All Ages

Friends of
Mile End
Park

Park Life  Mile
End Park
Community Fair
& Dog Show
2017

09/07/2017 09/07/2017 Event Field, Haverfield
Road, Mile End Park

Bow West 600 £ 2,300 £ 12,113 £ 2,000.00 Park Life  Mile End Park Community Fair & Dog
Show is a free event for people of all ages and
includes face painting, tshirt printing, Stixx sculpting
and juggling workshops, Mr Bubbles, fair rides, a
bellydancing troupe, food stalls, Dog Agility training
and DOG SHOW

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All Ages

P
age 37



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

arebyte
Gallery

Crowd Control 21/07/2017 23/07/2017 arebyte Gallery + public
spaces and other
venues across Tower
Hamlets

Bow East 600 £ 2,500 £ 14,800 £  During three days of happenings across Tower Haml
ets, Crowd Control invites youth groups, elderly popul
ations and the wider community in Tower Hamlets to
take part in creative experiments exploring collective
behaviour.
							
Crowd Control is a collaboration between arebyte Gal
lery with artist Heather Barnett, and behavioural scie
ntist Dr Andrew King. Did not sufficiently demonstr
ate engagement or participation from local reside
nts or wider community.

Sweet 'Art Femfest 04/09/2017 10/09/2017 Off Quay (E14) Poplar 300 £ 4,901 £ 10,851 £  Femfest will be a week long event showcasing the
work of 40 visual artists exploring themes of feminist
issues in the workplace and the reclaiming of
traditionally masculine spaces. There will be an
exciting programme of associated performances,
talks and workshops for visitors to get involved in
throughout the event. Did not have any partners
beyond venue, outcomes not clear, high costs for
number of beneficiaries. 

Kazzum Arts
Project

MerryMaker
Summer Tour

24/07/2017 31/08/2017 tour of different public lo
cations each day Housi
ng Associations, Playce
ntres and Adventure Pla
ygrounds.  e.g.:
1.	Weavers Field,
2.	Linc Centre 
3.St Paul's Way

Bethnal Green 500 £ 2,000 £ 3,200 £ 2,000.00 MerryMaker is a fun and enjoyable and interactive
walkabout performance for families, presented by a
performer using a mobile trike, who entertains and
interacts with people, regaling them with a personal
rap, on the spot!

The work will be toured in accessible locations
including the Museum of Childhood, and playspaces.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
Young people

OffthePage Offthe_page
present 
AmianActor
AmiaDancer
AmiaSinger

23/07/2017 23/07/2017 Chisenhale dance
space OR Oxford
House 

Bow West 80 £ 600 £ 615 £  Little or No experience, Dancing, Acting, Singing 25
99+ any age, London. Workshops. Did not
sufficiently demonstrate benefit, partners not
clear, outcomes not clear, budget not clear.

ArtCity
Nights

Art Night 2017 01/07/2017 01/07/2017 The Cass, ,
Whitechapel Gallery,
Village Underground
St Katharine's Dock,
London Dock
White Chapel Building
Masonic Temple,
Exchange Square,
Middlesex Street Estate
and Petticoat Lane

Whitechapel,
Spitalfields and
Banglatown, St
Katharine's
Wapping, & City
and Hackney

75,000 £ 2,500 £ 20,500 £ 1,000.00 Art Night is a free annual contemporary arts festival
that transforms London for one unforgettable night,
presenting acclaimed international art in unusual
locations across the city, this year in the East End, in
collaboration with the Whitechapel Gallery and
curated by independent curator and writer FatoÅŸ
Ãœstek.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Certain
Blacks

Arts Ensamble 
Harlem

07/09/2017 11/09/2017 Rich Mix  Weavers 1,000 £ 2,000 £ 58,360 £  The Harlem Renaissance describes a period in
1920's Harlem area of new your when Black theatre,
literature, music and arts found its own unique voice
within American culture. The festival will be based
around an R n D staging of Invisible Man by Ralph
Ellison. Did not demonstrate sufficent
engagement or benefit to local residents. High
ticket prices.

P
age 38



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Saudha
Society Of
Poetry and
Indian Music

Bangla Music
Festival

02/09/2017 22/10/2017 Rich Mix, Kobi Nazrul
Centre, Idea Store,
Townhouse, Poplar
Union, The Water Poet
Pub, Husk Coffee and
Creative Space, 

Weavers,
Spitalfields and
Banglatown,
Lansbury, St
Dunstans

1,500 £ 2,000 £ 8,500 £ 1,000.00 Showcasing the splendour of Bangla Music and its
spectacular latitude through mind blowing
performances

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
COMMUNITY

Surbandhan
Society

Raaga Factory's
Mughal  to
Modern  A
Celebration of
Indian Classical
Music

10/06/2017 22/07/2017 Brady Arts centre Spitalfields and
Banglatown

200 £ 2,500 £ 3,380 £  A Classical Music journey through the Mughal times
with Raaga Factories Mughal to Modern. Did not
score highly enough, did not demonstrate how
would involve local people, very scant
information.

Yard Theatre
Ltd

Summer
Celebration

30/07/2017 30/07/2017 Hub67, The Yard
Theatre

Bow East 400 £ 2,000 £ 5,900 £ 1,000.00 Free performances and workshops for all ages,
including spoken word, rangoli art, dance and live
music, the Makers Market, food, drink and a chance
to meet your neighbours.

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages

Zoe Gospel
Promotions

FRI: DEM 10/08/2017 25/08/2017 Bethnal Green Hall and
Bow Road Methodist
church halls

Bethnal Green 200 £ 1,200 £ 2,900 £ - FRIË�DÆ�M is a 5 week participatory project that
will support 60 young people  from  6 different school
s or communities in  East London as they learn how t
o sing as a group and work towards  show casing the
ir art in 5 community venues across East and south L
ondon. Not clear how much of the project would b
e in Newham, info sketchy and did not sufficiently
demonstrate engagement with wider community i
n TH.

V&A
Museum of
Childhood

Museum of
Childhood
Summer
Festival

23/07/2017 23/07/2017 V&A Museum of
Childhood

Bethnal Green 2,800 £ 1,000 £ 4,000 £ 1,000.00 The Museum's annual Summer Festival with a
colourful mix of live entertainment. The Museum
grounds will come alive with a buzzing programme of
live music, dance, designer stalls, food, face paints,
rickshaw rides, games and lots for kids to make and
do.

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  

£ 15,000.00

Organisation EVENT NAME EVENT Start
Date

EVENT End
Date

VENUE VENUE WARD NUMBER OF
BENEFICIARIE
S

AMOUNT
REQUESTED
FROM EVENT
FUND

Total Budget Award
Amount

Project Description

Number
of Events

Themes

Bygrove
Primary
School

Black History
Week

09/10/2017 20/10/2017 Within school LANSBURY 200-300 £ 500.00 £ 500.00 £  focus on one person from history who inspires us in
different ways, examples being Martin Luther King, Rosa
Parks etc.workshops in areas such as steel pans and tribal
masks NOT ELIGIBLE AS WITHIN A SCHOOL

1

P
age 39



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Kayd Somali
Arts & Culture

Somali Week
Festival 2017

20/10/2017 28/10/2017 Oxford House,
British Library
Southbank Centre
University College London 

ST PETER'S  AND
OUT OF
BOROUGH

4500 £ 2,000.00 £ 126,460.00 £ 1,750.00 SWF 2017 will take place over 10 days, offering 15 events,
performances, panel discussions, workshops, family
events, featuring 70 artists. Over 50% of the events will
take place in Somali and English.  The festival will open at
the British Library and SWF will co-promote an event
featuring four young women poets at Southbank Centre's
Poetry International Biennale. Events at UCL and SOAS.
Theme is Home and Displacement, placing the festival at
the centre of current debates about migration and
belonging.

15

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  SOMALI
ARTS

Bangladeshi
Mental Health
Forum

BMHF- World
Mental Health
Day 2017

10/10/2017 10/10/2017 London Muslim Centre, Whitechapel 300- 400 £ 500.00 £ 3,500.00 £ 500.00 A mental health awareness day which will take place on
World Mental Health Day (10th October) to raise
awareness of mental health, challenge stigma and
improve knowledge of local mental health services and
support mechanisms. Live interactive play, film screening,
presentations on local mental health services, stalls,
creative ways of collecting service user/carer feedback,
service users / carers telling their personal experiences. 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  HEALTH
AND WELLBEING,
BANGLADESHI
COMMUNITY

Genesis
Entertainemtn
Ltd

Black History
Month: The
Amazing James
Baldwin - Course
and Free
Screenings

10/10/2017 14/11/2017 Genesis Cinema Bethnal Green 400+ £ 500.00 £ 1,500.00 £ 500.00 Five part course on the work of the iconic James Baldwin
accompanied by a series of free screenings of related
films - I Am Not Your Negro, Get Out, Hidden Figures and
Moonlight.  free spaces to Tower Hamlets residents 9

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
BLACK HISTORY
MONTH  

Half Moon
Young
People's
Theatre

What Once Was
Ours

10/10/2017 10/10/2017 Half Moon,
43 White Horse Road
E1 0ND

St Dunstans 57 £ 800.00 £ 1,610.00 £ 800.00 A new show for teenagers about identity and belonging.
'What Once Was Ours' explores the relationship between
half-siblings Katie and Callum: their different heritage,
different cities, different opportunities. Created against
the background of Brexit, developed in consultation with
young people.
Teenagers to participate in pre-show workshop and to
share their thoughts on identity and difference 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
BLACK HISTORY
MONTH  

Sohaya Visions Silent Sisters-
Brothers
Unhinged

06/11/2017 18/11/2017 Workshops / rehearsals
/open playreading and
rehearsal to invited
audience at Brady Arts
Performances at Rich Mix 

Spitalfields and
Banglatown &
Weavers

350 £ 2,000.00 £ 8,508.00 £ 500.00 Silent Sisters-Brothers Unhinged is a powerful new drama
based on British Asian memories of partition in 1947.The
play aims to challenge the collective amnesia around this
subject and to get people to talk about this as a way of
healing across religious, racial and ethnic divides. It
focuses on both the eastern (Bangladesh) and western
sides of partition, the former not having received much
attention in theatre.

5

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

Purple Moon
Drama

Side Effects 20/10/2017 27/10/2017 Poplar Union,
Christian Street Centre,
Brady Arts Centre, 

LANSBURY,
Whitechapel,
Spitalfields and
Banglatown

320 £ 2,450.00 £ 5,600.00 £ 2,000.00 Side Effects is a play written by young writer Iman
Qureshi. The cast has 11 local young people. The play
centres around issues to do with race, heritage and
science. The theme in the play are to do with race and
heritage with a diverse cast. The project will also provide
work for local artists in terms of technical and
photographic assistance.

3

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
BLACK HISTORY
MONTH  

P
age 40



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Bishwa
Shahittya
Kendra
Limited

Represents
multiculturalism

04/11/2017 11/11/2017 Brady Arts Centre Spitalfields and
Banglatown

65 £ 500.00 £ 700.00 £  application withdrawn as 2 submitted

2

Udichi Shilpi
Gosthi

Cultural Festival
and Children's
song Contest

01/10/2017 01/10/2017 Rich Mix Weavers 600 £ 2,500.00 £ 13,000.00 £  The programme includes multicultural poetry session,
children's song contest , photographic,  painting exbition
and display of publication from the local writers and
poets. INSUFFICIENT DETAIL ON FORM TO BE
CONSIDERED FOR FUNDING.

2

Surbandhan
Society

From Mughal to
Modern: Raga
Factory

04/11/2017 16/12/2017 Oxford House St Peter's 30,000 £ 2,500.00 £ 8,304.20 £ 1,250.00 Exploring, learning and appreciating raga music inclu
ding the history of arts of the Mughal era, consisting
of:  	6 intensive worshops, performance
and 	 Audio & vide capture of reflective moments &
performances

7

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

The Rokeya
Project

'SOLD'
presented by The
Rokeya Project
for A Season Of
Bangla Drama

22/11/2017 25/11/2017 Preview Sampled
Performances:
Crossrail Place Roof
Gardens
Main Performances
(Matinee and Evening):
The Space Theatre

Canary Wharf &
Island Gardens

325 £ 2,250.00 £ 4,150.00 £ 500.00 SOLD' is a highly visual Dance Theatre Production with
strong elements of story telling, Poetry and Narration,
which focuses on raising awareness on the global issue of
Sex Trafficking. The performance will have elements of
strong Contemporary Dance, Hip Hop and South Asian
Classical and Creative Dance.

4

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

Cause2Create Beyond the
Problem:
Celebrating and
supporting
equality through
creativity

17/11/2017 18/11/2017 EXP Cantina -
Stour Space Gallery
Formans Smokehouse,
White Post Cafe -
The Atrium
Das Kino Pop Up Cinima
Grow Hackney, 

7 x Bow East,
Grow Hackney
out of Borough.

3000 £ 2,500.00 £ 36,388.00 £ 1,500.00 An annual celebration of Creativity for Good. This year's
theme is Beyond the Problem: delving into the root issues
of many of the issues we see in society today. We reach
into four theme areas of: Equality, Division, Perception
and Home, through a range of creative mediums
including: Art, Design, & Illustration, Photography, Talks,
Film Screenings, Music, Food, Creative Workshops and
Performance.

8

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  

ice&fire
Theatre
Company

Asylum
Monologues

24/10/2017 24/10/2017 Idea Store - Whitechapel Spitalfields and
Banglatown

1387 £ 2,250.00 £ 3,087.50 £ 1,000.00 Centering around AFHR's flagship script Asylum
Monologues, a first-hand account of the UK asylum
system in the words of people who have experienced it,
performed by actors. This powerful, stripped-back reading
will be followed by a short, complementary creative
performance from an artist sourced by our Actors in
Residence. The evening culminates in a short Q&A with a
representative from a local refugee action charity 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  MIGRATION
ANDY ASYLUM

P
age 41



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

Teatro Vivo TWISTOV 09/10/2017 18/11/2017 multiple venues still in
negotiation, but will
include:
Nomadic Community
garden,
St. Leonard's, (out of
Borough)
Rich Mix, 3

Spitalfields and
Banglatown,
Weavers & out of
borough

3164 £ 2,500.00 £ 71,005.00 £ 1,500.00 TWISTOV, inspired by Charles Dickens' Oliver Twist, will
be immersive theatre taking audiences into the world of
immigrant life in contemporary London.
The script for TWISTOV has been developed through a
process of research and workshops with migrants and
refugees coordinated by Teatro Vivo. working with UK
based migrant artists to produce the final script, and the
project will culminate in 18 promenade performances
delivered on the streets of East London. the audiences
will follow as silent witnesses.

18

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  IDENTITY

Spitalfields
City Farm

Catalyst 10 -
Roots and Wings

07/10/2017 07/11/2017 Spitalfields City Farm
Buxton street
London
E1 5AR

Spitalfields and
Banglatown

1500 £ 1,500.00 £ 2,300.00 £ 1,500.00 The event is a free all-day Arts event located at
Spitalfields City Farm in Tower Hamlets open to all
members of the community featuring talks about
wellbeing, a children?s theatre-workshop, a drumming-
workshop, an exhibition of visual arts; film, photography
and installation, supported by live music by female solo
artists, finishing up with some poetry readings. The event
will take place on Saturday 7th October 2017 and will
serve to open a one month long exhibition of art with the
purpose of bringing more visitors to the farm and
benefitting the community in a sustainable way.

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  

Half Moon
Young
People's
Theatre

Fun Palaces 2017 07/10/2017 07/10/2017 Half Moon Theatre
43 White Horse Road
London
E1 0ND

St Dunstans 500 £ 1,630.00 £ 3,590.00 £ 1,500.00 Third Fun Palaces day for families in Tower Hamlets
focused on the theme of space and astrology. 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages  FAMILIES
AND YOUNG
PEOPLE

Arts Initiative
Limited

Beheld 03/10/2017 22/10/2017 Pennington Street
Warehouse, Pennington
Street, London E1W 2AD

St Katharine's
and Wapping

2400 £ 1,000.00 £ 24,000.00 £  This is a presentation of Graeme Miller's ongoing
installation project Beheld at the Pennington Street
Warehouse in Wapping, East London in conjunction with
Bow Arts.
Application withdrawn due to venue pulling out.

1

African
Women's
Welfare
Association
(Ayoka
Project)

Theatre Focused
Black History
Workshops

29/09/2017 30/09/2017 St. Margaret's House, &
1 Lochnagar St., Poplar 

ST PETER'S  AND
Lansbury

1200 £ 500.00 £ 500.00 £ 500.00 This is a 2-days FREE event, featuring 3-
presentations/sessions each day. Each session begins with
a 30 minute speech delivered by External Speaker who
interfaces with a narrator and subject matter expert.
Drummer accompanies dancers (Clad in traditional
costume) to interpret/translate the message into dance. 

2

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
ALL AGES   BLACK
HISTORY MONTH  

P
age 42



APPENDIX B: APPLICATIONS RECEIVED FOR QUARTERS 1-3

NARRATIVE
EYE

YOUNG OTHELLO 05/11/2017 30/11/2017 THEATRE AND A
COMMUNITY
SPACES/SCHOOLS - not
confirmed

TBC 162 £ 500.00 £ 650.00 £ 500.00 Young Othello is a play based on the life of Shakespeare's
Othello and explores the early years of a character that is
shrouded in mystery.  Set within a prosperous ancient
African kingdom untouched by slavery or colonialism,  the
event will bring Othello to life through presentations and
small sketches from the play.  Targeted at a wide range of
people including the Black community and those isolated
from the arts to experience,  this project will enable
people to experience Shakespeare in a context that they
can understand while providing volunteers the
opportunity to access theatre programmes and a new
career path.

3

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
ALL AGES   BLACK
HISTORY MONTH  

Cardboard
Citizens

Music Lab Sharing 05/12/2017 05/12/2017 Cardboard Citizens, 77a
Greenfield Road, London,
E1 1EJ

Whitechapel 65 £ 2,000.00 £ 4,994.00 £ 2,000.00 End of term sharing event of Music Lab, a term of
workshops for young people aged 16-25 affected by
homelessness. The young people will produce brand new
music to share at the event, and will support the event's
planning.
The event will be open to homeless/vulnerable people
from across the community, as well as social sector staff
and Cardboard Citizens' partners. 

1

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
YOUNG PEOPLE,
HOMELESSNESS

Bishwo
Shahitto
Kendro
London

The Cafe 03/11/2017 04/11/2017 The Brady Arts Centre
192-196 Hanbury Street
London E1 9HZ

Spitalfields and
Banglatown

355 £ 2,121.00 £ 4,201.00 £ 500.00 The Cafe - a new play by Bulbul Hasan based on the post
Brexit socioeconomic events that will affect the residents
of East London.

The Café depicts the mismatched life of Bengali
Londoners stuck in their own dilemma trapped in
between British mainstream and traditional Bengali
culture. 

2

celebrating cultural
diversity and
community cohesion.
All ages
BANGLADESHI
ARTS

£ 18,300.00

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C MONITORING INFORMATION FOR QUARTER 1 APPLICATIONS

Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3, 2017-18    GRANTS DETERMINATION SUB COMMITTEE DEC 5TH 2017

BenefitOrganisation Project Date of 
proposed 
project (from 
Application 
Form)

When did the 
event/project 
take place? 
(From 
Evaluation 
Form) 

Participants 

audience

artists

m
anagers 

/organisers

total 
attendance

Other Asias DIY Cultures 
2017 

14 May 2017 
and 3 May to 2 
June 2017

 250 3,439 662 3 4354

Neighbours in 
Poplar

Poplar History 
Week

19-26 May 
2017

19-26 May 
2017

400 200 13 5 618

Rainbow Film 
Festival

18th Rainbow 
Film Festival

09.04.17 - 
16.04.17

May 29 at 
12.00 , 30 May 
to 3 June daily 
at 6.00, 4 & 5 
June daily 
12.00, 300, 
6.00

21 1038 19 
(including 
guests)

14 1073

RadhaRaman 
Society

Baul & 
Vaishnav 
Music Festival

29.04.17 - 
30.04.17

29th and 30th 
April 2017. 
The festival 
also started 
from 21 April 
from Nehru 
centre.

106 436 18 14 574

Dash Arts Dash Arts 
Dacha 2017

12.6.2017 - 
12.7.2017

1-3 July 2017 All 
artsits

1500 40 4 1544

TOTAL  8163

WhiteOrganisation Project 

B
ritish

Irish

Traveller 
Irish

Turkish / 
C

ypriot

G
reek / 

C
ypriot

G
ypsy / 

R
om

a

European

O
ther

N
ot 

K
now

n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 
2017 

38% 1.9%

     

13%

 

Neighbours in 
Poplar

Poplar History 
Week

310
  

Rainbow Film 
Festival

18th Rainbow 
Film Festival

4%   2%   6%   

RadhaRaman 
Society

Baul & Vaishnav 
Music Festival

187

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 
2017

14% 6%     31% 17%  

AsianOrganisation Project 

A
sian 

B
ritish

B
angladeshi

O
ther

Indian

Pakistani

M
ixed / D

ual 
H

eritage

C
hinese

Vietnam
ese

N
ot K

now
n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 

 

5.7% 3.8% 3.8% 3.8%

 

1.9%

  

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week   224        
Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film 

Festival
1% 78%  7%  1%    

RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav 
Music Festival

220      6   

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 
2017

       3%  

Page 45



APPENDIX C MONITORING INFORMATION FOR QUARTER 1 APPLICATIONS

Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3, 2017-18    GRANTS DETERMINATION SUB COMMITTEE DEC 5TH 2017

BlackOrganisation Project C
aribbean

A
frican

B
lack B

ritish

Som
ali

M
ixed / D

ual 
H

eritage

O
ther

Latin 
A

m
erican

O
ther ethnic 

group

N
ot K

now
n

Preferred not 
to say

Other Asias DIY Cultures 
2017 

 9.4% 1.9
%

1.9%
    

3.8%

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History 
Week

 61    23       

Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow 
Film Festival

1%          

RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav 
Music Festival

3   20       

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 
2017

 6%   14% 3% 6%    

GenderOrganisation Project W
om

en

M
en

Transgen
der

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 58.5% 35.8%

 

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week    
Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival 51% 49%  
RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival 205 231  
Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017 55% 45%  

AgeOrganisatio
n 

Project 
0-4

5-9

10-14

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65+

N
ot 

K
now

n

Other Asias DIY 
Cultures 
2017 

   

16-24 
24.5%

25-34 41.5% 35-44 
20.8%

45-54 
7.5%

55-64 - 
3.8%

1.9
%

 

Neighbours 
in Poplar

Poplar 
History 
Week

               

Rainbow 
Film Festival

18th 
Rainbow 
Film 
Festival

   1% 2% 3% 8% 12% 22
%

7
%

12
%

7% 7% 14
%

5%

RadhaRama
n Society

Baul & 
Vaishnav 
Music 
Festival

              100
%

Dash Arts Dash Arts 
Dacha 
2017

 
 Under 14 - 7%

1% 2% 24% 29% 19% 10
%

2
%

1% 2% 1% 2%  

Page 46



APPENDIX C MONITORING INFORMATION FOR QUARTER 1 APPLICATIONS

Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3, 2017-18    GRANTS DETERMINATION SUB COMMITTEE DEC 5TH 2017

Organisation Project Disability

  

A
lzheim

er's

D
em

entia

D
eaf / Partially 

D
eaf

B
lind / 

Partially Sight

Physical 
D

isability

Learning 
D

isability

N
ot K

now
n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 Yes - 3.9% No - 94.1% 2%

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week       

Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival        

RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival       100%

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017  7% of of audience consider themselves to 
have a disability

ReligionOrganisation Project 

A
gnostic

N
o religion

C
hristian

Jew
ish

M
uslim

B
uddhist

Sikh

H
indu 

H
um

anist

A
nother 

religion

N
ot K

now
n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 
2017 

30
.2
%

17.
1%

7.5
%

1.9
%

11.3
%

3.8
%

1.9
%

 

5.7
%

 

20.8%

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History 
Week

           

Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow 
Film Festival

 8% 7%  65% 2%  11
%

2%  5%

RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav 
Music Festival

          100%

Dash Arts Dash Arts 
Dacha 2017

          100%

Sexual OrientationOrganisation Project 

H
eterosexual

Lesbian

G
ay

B
isexual

N
ot K

now
n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 62.3% 1.9% 13.2
%

7.6%

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week      

Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival 50%   3% 47%

RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival   More 
than 18

  

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017     100%

Page 47



APPENDIX C MONITORING INFORMATION FOR QUARTER 1 APPLICATIONS

Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3, 2017-18    GRANTS DETERMINATION SUB COMMITTEE DEC 5TH 2017

Pregnancy / 
Maternity

Organisation Project 

Pregnant

B
reastfeedi

ng N
ot K

now
n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 

   
Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week    
Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival  1% 99%
RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival   100%

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017   100%

Relationship StatusOrganisation Project 
C

ivil 
Partnership

M
arried

Single

C
o-habiting

D
ivorced

N
ot K

now
n

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 

      

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week       
Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival  47% 8% 3% 3% 39%

RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival      100%

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017      100%

Postcode AreasOrganisation Project E1 E2 E3 E14

E1W

O
ther

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 

      

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week       
Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival 27% 5% 8% 11% 7%  
RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival 130+ 20+ 50+ 30+ 10+  

Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017 9% 5% 3% 3%   

Postcode AreasOrganisation Project 

E1 E2 E3 E14

E1W

O
ther

Other Asias DIY Cultures 2017 

      

Neighbours in Poplar Poplar History Week       
Rainbow Film Festival 18th Rainbow Film Festival 27% 5% 8% 11% 7%  
RadhaRaman Society Baul & Vaishnav Music Festival 130+ 20+ 50+ 30+ 10+  
Dash Arts Dash Arts Dacha 2017 9% 5% 3% 3%   

Page 48



APPENDIX D: VENUES AND WARDS QUARTERS 1-3

Venues Wards NO OF
REQUE

STS

NO OF
EVENTS

New venues
used

1 Lochnagar St. Poplar Lansbury 1 1 Y
5 Estates in Lap 7, Poplar High St Poplar 2 2
Approach Community Gardens St Peter's 1 1 Y
Arbyte Gallery Bow East 2 0
Bethnal Green Methodist church hall Bethnal Green 1 0
Bow Road Methodist church halls Bromley North 1 0
Brady Arts centre Spitalfields and Banglatown 6 4
Bygrove Primary School LANSBURY 1 0
Café Grill Brick Lane Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1 Y
Cardboard Citizens Whitechapel 1 1
Centurion Road, Bow (changed) Bow East (Changed) 1 0
Chisenhale Dance Space Bow West 1 0
Christian Street Centre Whitechapel 1 1 Y
Cookham House Courtyard Weavers 1 1 Y
Crossrail Place Roof Gardens Canary Wharf 1 1
Das Kino Pop Up Cinema Bow East 1 1 Y
Dence House, Turin Street Weavers 1 1 Y
EXP Cantina Bow East 1 1 Y
Formans Smokehouse Bow East 1 1
Genesis Cinema Bethnal Green 2 2
Glamis Adventure Playground Shadwell & St Katharine's and Wapping 1 1
Globe Community Garden Bethnal Green 1 1 Y
Half Moon Theatre St Dunstan's 2 2
Hub 67 Bow East 1 1
Husk Coffee & Creative Space St Dunstan's 1 1
Idea Store - Whitechapel Spitalfields and Banglatown 3 3
Ion Square Gardens Weavers 1 1 Y
Kobi Nazrul Centre Spitalfields and Banglatown 2 2
Linc Centre Bromley South. 1 1
London Muslim Centre Whitechapel 1 1
Milddlesex Street Estate Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1
Mile End Park, Haverfield Road Bow West 1 1
Montefiore Centre Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1
Nomadic Community Garden Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1 Y
Off Quay (E14) Poplar 1 1 Y
Oxford House St Peter's 4 3
Pennington Street Warehouse, St Katharine's and Wapping 1 0 Y
Petticoat Lane Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1 Y
Poplar Union LANSBURY 2 2 Y
Pritchard Centre St Peter's 1 1 Y
Ravenscroft Park Weavers 1 1 Y
Rich Mix Weavers 10 8
Ropemakers Fields Limehouse 1 1
Sonar Gaon Brick Lane Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1 Y
Spitalfields City Farm Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1
St Andrew's Village (moved to VP) Bromley South (moved to Bow West 1 0
St Hilda's East Weavers 1 1
St Katherine's Dock St Katherine's and Wapping 1 1 Y

Page 49



APPENDIX D: VENUES AND WARDS QUARTERS 1-3

St Matthias Blackwall and Cubitt Town 1 1
St Paul's Way Centre Mile End 2 2
St. Margaret's House ST PETER'S 1 1
Stour Space Gallery Bow East 1 1
TH Cemetery Park Mile End 1 1
The Atrium Bow East 1 1 Y
The Cass Whitechapel 1 1 Y
The Space Theatre Island Gardens 1 1
The Water Poet Pub Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1 Y
The Yard Theatre Bow East 1 1
Town House 1 1 Y
V & A Museum of Childhood Bethnal Green 1 1
Weavers Fields St Peter's 1 1
White Chapel Building Whitechapel 1 1 Y
White Post Café Bow East 1 1 Y
Whitechapel Gallery Spitalfields and Banglatown 1 1
Wigram Community Centre Blackwall and Cubitt Town 1 1 Y
Workhouse Leisure centre Blackwall and Cubitt Town 1 1 Y
Young Foundation Bethnal Green 1 1 Y
69 VENUES REQUESTED 61 USED, 28 NEW VENUES OR SITES

USED.

Wards NO OF REQUESTS NO OF
EVENT

S
Bethnal Green 6 5
Blackwall and Cubitt Town 4 4
Bow East 11 9
Bow West 2 1
Bromley North 1 0
Bromley South (moved to Bow West 2 1
Bromley South. 1 1
Canary Wharf 1 1
Island Gardens 1 1
LANSBURY 4 3
Limehouse 1 1
Mile End 3 3
Poplar 2 2
Shadwell 1 1
Spitalfields and Banglatown 20 18
St Dunstans 3 3
St Katharine's and Wapping 2 1
St Peter's 8 7
Weavers 15 13
Whitechapel 5 5

Page 50



Page 1 of 6

Event Fund Application Form 2017-18

The Event Fund provides small grants to support high quality arts events and community arts 
festivals, which are open to, and of benefit to the general public. 

Please pay careful attention to the following information and refer to the Guidelines and Criteria 
before completing this form to ensure you are fully eligible for funding. 

Please note that due to high demand, eligibility does not guarantee that you will receive funding.

Please click on link to view Event Fund Criteria, timelines and Guidance Notes on the Council's 
webpage Click for the Event page

Timelines

The Event Fund operates on an annual programme and has moved to QUARTERLY DEADLINES. 
Applications should adhere to the timeframe below.

Applications must be received by the end of the deadline day (12:00 Noon). 

Late submissions WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

 Quarter 1 (Events taking place between 1st April and 30th June 2017) – Application Deadline 2nd 
February 2017

 Quarter 2 (Events taking place between 1st July and 30th September 2017) – Application Deadline 
27th April 2017

 Quarter 3 (Events taking place between 1st October and 31st December 2017) – Application 
Deadline 20th July 2017

 Quarter 4 (Events taking place between 1st January and 31st March 2018) – Application Deadline 
2nd November 2017

Eligibility Quiz
Please tick all boxes to acknowledge that you agree with each of the following statements

1. My organisation has read and understood the eligibility criteria for the funding theme we are 
applying for.  

2. My organisation has a constitution or articles of association, which we will provide as part of the 
application process. 

3. My organisation has a bank account in the name of the organisation which requires two 
signatures (of people who are unrelated) to authorise payments. 

4. My event is aimed at and open to the general public in Tower Hamlets. 
5. My event is primarily arts based. 
6. My event and associated activity takes place in Tower Hamlets 
7. My event and associated activity takes place within the quarter for which I am applying. 

Page 51

http://www.towerhamletsarts.org.uk/?s=45


Page 2 of 6

8. My organisation if based in a Tower Hamlets Council owned property has an appropriate 
property agreement in place for the occupation of the land and buildings.  

Please select option to show you have read the Event Fund Guidance and Criteria

All sections of the Event Fund Form must be completed in full. 

You should answer the questions in your own words, giving evidence and examples where 
appropriate.

 
If you chose to type your answers in Word and copy and paste them into the relevant sections of 
the form, please be aware that an attempt to copy bullet points, tables, monetary symbols and 
unusual characters may cause a problem. Please use text only.

Organisational & Administration Details

Your Organisation

1. Prefix ……………….
2. First Name……………………
3. Last Name……………………
4. Job Title/ Position in Organisation……………………….
5. Organisation Name………………………….
6. Registered Address…………………………
7. City……………………..
8. Postal Code…………………..
9. Geographical Area Based……………………
10. Please specify in which ward your organisation is located…………….
11. Is your organisation based in a Council owned building? 
12. Do you have and appropriate property agreement / lease in place for the use and occupation of 

the building?
13. Office Phone………………….
14. Mobile Phone……………………..
15. E-mail……………………
16. Web. Address……………………

General Organisational Administration and Management

Please answer all of the following questions:
When was your organisation formally constituted or established?
(Please attach your organisation's constitution on the Attachments page)

Background
Please describe the work of your organisation. How is your organisation managed? Include a 
mission statement if you have one. Give details of your organisation's long-term 

Page 52



Page 3 of 6

objectives/strategy. Maximum 200 words.

Legal Status
What is the legal status of the organisation?
Other
Please specify
Charity Number (if applicable)
Company Registration Number (if applicable)

Type of Organisation
Please tick all of the boxes which apply to your organisation

Work solely or mainly with/for people who are deaf and disabled
Work solely or mainly with/for women
Work solely or mainly with/for men
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are transgender
Work solely or mainly with/for people of a particular ethnic heritage
If yes, please specify
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are young/older
If yes, please specify
Work solely or mainly with/for faith groups
If yes, please specify which faith(s)
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are heterosexual
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are lesbian
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are gay
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are bisexual
Work solely or mainly with/for women who are pregnant
Work solely or mainly with/for women who are currently breastfeeding
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are in civil partnerships
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are married
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are single
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are co-habiting
Work solely or mainly with/for people who are divorced
Work solely or mainly with/for people with mental health conditions
Work solely or mainly with/for people with long standing illness or health conditions
Other
Please specify

Event Management
Give details of one recent / similar event your organisation has managed. Include size, 
scale and audience attendance, as well as the size of budget/s you are used to managing. 
Maximum 400 words.

Responsibility 
Who will be responsible for delivering the event/project? Include a brief account of their 
ability to manage the event/project (i.e. track record). Which other personnel (paid or 
unpaid) will be involved? Maximum 400 words.

Event Details

Page 53



Page 4 of 6

Fund Event
What is the total amount of funding you are applying for from the Event Fund? …….

Have you received funding from LB Tower Hamlets in the previous 4 years? If yes, please give the 
name and date of your event and funding award. (Please note, previous funding does not guarantee 
funding in subsequent years.)

Title of Event/Project
Start Date 
End Date 

Your event may take place over one or more than one day, or have multiple events / venues. Please 
let us know how many individual events will there be in total. 

Venue/s
Where will the event/project be taking place?
Are the venues accessible yes / no
In which ward(s) is your event taking place?

Description of Event
What is the Event? Please give a description of your event and include details such as the event 
content, audience profile, how the event will improve access to arts based activities and how it is 
different to other events in the borough.
You should demonstrate that your event is accessible, innovative, creative and of high quality. 
Maximum1500 words.

Details of workshops or skills development
Please give details of the content of any workshops related to the project or event. Please ensure 
that you include the number of workshops, where and when they will take place, number of people 
taking part, community development, employment opportunities etc. (Please make sure that the 
dates are included in the overall event dates.) Maximum 600 words.

Attendance and Participation
How many people do you expect to benefit from your event?
Please detail the breakdown of the following in the appropriate boxes. You may not need to 
complete all boxes, and only use one category for each person:

1. Audience
2. Participants
3. Artists / Performers
4. Community Volunteers
5. Organisers

Total

Benefit of the Event
Please demonstrate which of the Event Fund mandatory criteria, priorities and Mayor’s Priorities  
your event addresses and how your project meets these, giving examples and evidence. (outlined 
in section 4 & 5 of the guidelines and criteria)

In order to understand the benefit to the community we need to know the potential of your event to 
develop audiences, encourage participation and increase community involvement in the arts.  
Please give a clear outline of how you will engage with the wider community from across Tower 

Page 54



Page 5 of 6

Hamlets in your answer. Maximum 600 words.

Community Plan Themes
Which of the following Community Plan Themes will your project contribute towards? 

Please demonstrate how your event / project contributes to supporting one or more of the themes 
marked below. Maximum 100 words per answer.

1. A Prosperous Community   
2. A Healthy and Supportive Community   
3. A Safe and Cohesive Community   
4. A Great Place to Live   

Accessibility and Marketing
Accessibility
Is your event ticketed? 
Please give the number of free, full price and concessionary tickets available and the price for each. 

How will you ensure that your event/project is open and accessible to the whole community across 
the borough? This includes physical, financial, social and cultural accessibility. Please make 
reference to the mandatory criteria 4b, 4c, 4d. Please also demonstrate how you will meet your 
obligations regarding the Equality Act 2010.  Maximum 400 words.

Marketing
Please demonstrate how your marketing plan will reach the general public across the whole 
borough. Please include how you will attempt to reach new audiences, and how you plan to 
increase participation and engagement from all wards. Please include electronic and social media 
in your marketing and outreach outline.  Maximum 400 words.

Partners/Community Involvement

Partnerships
Who are your partners supporting this project and what is their role? Include details of funding, 
project delivery, help in-kind and collaborative work e.g. cash funding, venue hire, office space, free 
marketing, use of equipment etc. Include any other funding/in kind help from other Tower Hamlets 
Council departments. Maximum 400 words

Community Involvement
Please outline how the wider community of Tower Hamlets will be involved in the organisation, 
facilitation, support or delivery of your event? Please include details of community volunteers, 
target groups and organisations.  Maximum 400 words

Outcomes
Please indicate which of the outcomes listed below relate to your event and provide a brief 
description of how your project/event will specifically meet these outcomes. Maximum 50 words per 
outcome.

1. Increased access to arts activities and participation in the arts for Tower Hamlets residents
2. Skills development opportunities and progression routes for participants from Tower 

Hamlets
3. Increased community cohesion and cross-cultural understanding
4. Increased sustainable partnerships, new collaborations and organisational development and 

how this fits into your organisation's long term objectives/strategy
5. Any additional outcomes which are not outlined above

Page 55



Page 6 of 6

Event Budget
Income
Please complete the separate budget spreadsheet  give name of source or funder in box marked 
‘Source’ and quantify all in-kind support in monetary terms. (In-kind means goods and services that 
are part of the event but are being provided free of charge, and have a monetary value.)
Include any anticipated income from ticket sales if applicable. Put the totals from the budget 
spreadsheet into the boxes as indicated below.

1. Event Fund                                           £                       
2. Ticket Income:                                     £                       
3. Total Cash Agreed                               £
4. Total Cash Pending                             £
5. Total In-Kind Agreed                           £
6. Total In-Kind Pending                         £

Grand Total                                                £

Expenditure
Give details for the TOTAL projected expenditure of the proposal. 

1. Total In Kind                                           £
2. Total Cash                                              £

Grand Total                                                   £

Page 56



APPENDIX F: NEW APPLICATION FORMS QUESTIONS UP TO £500 AND £501-£2500

Event Fund
EF2 – APPLICATION FORM QUESTIONS FOR UP TO £500

Eligibility Y/N
1. My organisation has a constitution, terms of reference or articles of association and can provide documentation to 

support this. Y/N
2. My organisation has a bank account requiring at least 2 signatures from people who are not related to each other. 

Y/N
3. Event/activity takes place in Tower Hamlets. Y/N
4. Event is open to the general public in Tower Hamlets. Y/N
5. Event will take place in the quarter to which the application refers. Y/N
6. I have read and understood eligibility criteria and guidance notes. Y/N

Deadlines/timetable 
Your event MUST take place in the quarter for which the application is submitted

Event Date Quarter Application Deadline Evaluation Deadline
April-June 2017 1 12 noon 2 February 2017 30 September 2017
July-September 2017 2 12 noon 27 April 2017 31 December 2017
October-December 2017 3 12 noon 20 July 2017 31 March 2018
January-March 2018 4 12 noon 2 November 2017 30 June 2018

3. About the Event 
a. Title of Event
b. When will it take place (include start and end date if more than one day) Let us know how many events if multiple 

events)
c. Where will it take place (address and postcode – if multiple venues, list all)
d. Brief description of event (100 words max)
e. Tell us how arts are part of your event – be specific (100 words max)
f. How much funding are you seeking from LBTH?

4. Who Will Benefit
a. Is your event aimed at a particular section of the community – if so please describe (100 words max)
b. How many people in total do you expect to benefit from your event?
c. Please provide an estimate breaking down those who will benefit from your event. Put people into the categories 

that fit best.

Groups Audience Participants Performers Organisers
White
African or Caribbean 
Bangladeshi 
Chinese
Vietnamese
Somali
Other Asian
Other ethnic groups
Older People 65+
Adults 26-64
Young People 14-25
Children 0-14
People with limited mobility
People with sensory disability
People with learning difficulties

d. How will your event involve the community of Tower Hamlets? (100 words max)
e. How will you know if your event has been successful? (100 words max)

5.  Accessibility
a. Is your event taking place in fully accessible venue(s)? Y/N
b. Is there a cost to the public for the event? If yes, please give price/concessions/free tickets and numbers of each. 
c. How will you promote your event to make sure it reaches everyone community, (e.g. people who speak other 

languages, people who do not read, people who don’t access the internet or social media). Make specific 
reference to your target beneficiaries. (100 words max)

6.  Event Budget Page 57



a. Income
Event Fund                                 £                       
Ticket Income:  £                       
Total Cash Agreed                         £
Total Cash Pending                        £
Total In-Kind Agreed                       £
Total In-Kind Pending                      £

Grand Total                                     £

b. Expenditure
Give details for the TOTAL projected expenditure of the proposal. 
Total In Kind                                           £
Total Cash                                              £

Grand Total                                             £

7.  Declaration
I confirm that the information provided on this form is accurate at the time of completion Y/N
 
Event Fund 
EF1 APPLICATION FORM QUESTIONS £501 TO £2500

Eligibility Y/N
7. My organisation has a constitution, terms of reference or articles of association and can provide documentation to 

support this. Y/N
8. My organisation has a bank account requiring at least 2 signatures from people who are not related to each other. 

Y/N
9. Event/activity takes place in Tower Hamlets. Y/N
10. Event is open to the general public in Tower Hamlets. Y/N
11. Event is primarily arts based. Y/N
12. Event will take place in the quarter to which the application refers. Y/N
13. I have read and understood eligibility criteria and guidance notes. Y/N

Deadlines/timetable 
Your event MUST take place in the quarter for which the application is submitted

Event Date Quarter Application Deadline Evaluation Deadline
April-June 2017 1 12 noon 2 February 2017 30 September 2017
July-September 2017 2 12 noon 27 April 2017 31 December 2017
October-December 2017 3 12 noon 20 July 2017 31 March 2018
January-March 2018 4 12 noon 2 November 2017 30 June 2018

3. About the Event 
a. Title of Event
b. When will it take place (include start and end date if more than one day) Let us know how many events if multiple 

events)
c. Where will it take place (address and postcode – if multiple venues, list all)
d. Who will manage the event (provide name and position in organisation)
e. Brief description of event (100 words max)
f. Tell us how arts are part of your event – be specific (100 words max)
g. How much funding are you seeking from LBTH?

4. Who Will Benefit
a. Is your event aimed at a particular section of the community – if so please describe (100 words max)
b. How many people in total do you expect to benefit from your event?
c. Please provide an estimate breaking down those who will benefit from your event. Put people into the categories 

that fit best. 

Groups Audience Participants Performers Organisers
White
African or Caribbean 
Bangladeshi 
Chinese
Vietnamese
Somali
Other Asian

Page 58



Other ethnic groups
Older People 65+
Adults 26-64
Young People 14-25
Children 0-14
People with limited mobility
People with sensory disability
People with learning difficulties

d. How will your event involve the community of Tower Hamlets? (100 words max)
e. How will your event develop audiences, encourage participation and community involvement in the arts. (100 

words max)
f. How will your event develop skills of participants (100 words max)
g. How will you know if your event has been successful? (100 words max)

5.  Partnerships
Is the event being organised in partnership with local communities or organisations? Please tell us who you are 
working with and how the partnership will operate. (100 words max)

6.  Innovation
a. Is your organisation taking an unusual or adventurous approach to planning or programming? Please describe 

this. (100 words max)
b. How will your event bring new audiences to the arts? (100 words max)

7.  Accessibility
d. Is your event taking place in fully accessible venue(s)? Y/N
e. Please explain how your event will be accessible to the whole community? (e.g. people from other parts of the 

borough, other language groups, other ages, etc.) (100 words max)
f. Is there a cost to the public for the event? If yes, please give price/concessions/free tickets and numbers of each. 
g. How will you promote your event to make sure it reaches the whole community, (e.g. people who speak other 

languages, people who do not read, people who don’t access the internet or social media, people from other parts 
of the borough). Make specific reference to your target beneficiaries. (100 words max)

8.  Tower Hamlets Community Plan
Please describe how your event will address at least one of the priorities for the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
(more detail in guidance notes). 
(100 words max for each priority your event addresses)

a. A great place to live
b. A fair and prosperous community
c. A safe and cohesive community
d. A healthy and supportive community

9. Event Budget
Give details for the TOTAL planned income and expenditure of the event 
a. Income
Event Fund                                 £                       
Ticket Income: £                       
Total Cash Agreed                             £
Total Cash Pending                            £
Total In-Kind Agreed                           £
Total In-Kind Pending                         £
Grand Total                                              £

b. Expenditure
Total In Kind                                            £
Total Cash                                               £
Grand Total                                             £

10.  Declaration
I confirm that the information provided on this form is accurate at the time of completion Y/N
 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX G 

Equality Analysis (EA) 
Section 1 – General Information (Aims and Objectives)

EVENT FUND REPORT FOR APPLICATIONS RECEIVED QUARTERS 1-3, 
2017-18

This is to analyse the implementation of the Event Fund during the
period of quarters 1 of the financial year of  2017-18. 
(the evaluation data has not been received for quarters 2 & 3 so this can
Not be included).

Service area:
Children’s

Team name:
Culture, Learning and Leisure

Service manager:
Judith St. John, Divisional Director for Sports, Leisure and Culture
Name and role of the officer completing the EA:
Alison Denning, Festival and Events Officer 

Section 2 – Evidence (Consideration of Data and Information)

What initial evidence do we have which may help us think about the impacts or likely impacts on service users or staff?

The service collects the following data:

1. Protected characteristics that the events intended to focus on. This information was collected by the evaluation form.

2. Equalities data of people who benefited from the project in percentage.  This information is collected by the successful applicants and 
included in the event evaluation form.  The form requires the event organisers to specify if the number is actual or estimate. 

Financial Year

2016/17

See Appendix 
A

Current decision 
rating

P
age 61



2

2. Equality data of people who benefited from the events

The data is based on the 5 events in Quarter 1, in which a total of 8163 people benefited. 

Data provided is based on a mix of information provided through online surveys, face to face, feedback forms and observations at the event.

All event applications need to demonstrate that their events will be accessible to deaf and disabled people, this includes venues, content and 
with some of the applications they specifically mentioned disabled people benefiting.

5 out of 5 organisations have submitted the evaluation form including the equality data of people who benefited from the events to the service. 
The details of the returned data are as attached Appendix C: Monitoring Information for Quarter 1 applications. It should be noted that the 
majority of the data is based on estimates and some evaluation forms did not give data for all categories.

Section 3 – Assessing the Impacts on the 9 Groups

Target Groups Impact – 
Positive or 
Adverse

What impact will 
the proposal 
have on specific 
groups of 
service users or 
staff?

Reason(s)
 Please add a narrative to justify your claims around impacts and,
 Please describe the analysis and interpretation of evidence to support your conclusion as this will inform  decision 

making
Please also how the proposal with promote the three One Tower Hamlets objectives?  
-Reducing inequalities
-Ensuring strong community cohesion

     -Strengthening community leadership

Race Positive The given data suggest that a range of communities of this group participated in the events. DIY 
Cultures specifically featured work of Black, Asian, and migrant viewpoints.
The Baul and Vaishnav Music Festival featured music from the Bengali community. The Dash Arts 
Dacha featured Post Soviet and Former Eastern Bloc communities but was designed to involve diverse 
communities.

Disability Positive The given data shows that this group participated in events during this period. DIY Cultures specifically 
featured work on mental illness and creativity, spoken poetry, body size acceptance, disability and 
neurodiversity. All venues were accessible.

Gender Positive The given data suggest that both male and female participated in the events. DIY Cultures specifically 
featured feminist and LGBT viewpoints. The Rainbow Film Festival featured films by women directors.

P
age 62



3

Gender 
Reassignment

Positive The given data does not show any Trans people attended however DIY Cultures featured LGBT 
viewpoints. 

Sexual Orientation Positive There is data that this group participated in five funded events ( the majority answered not known). DIY 
Cultures specifically featured LGBTQ viewpoints. 

Religion or Belief Positive  It appears that various groups participated in at least eight funded events. ( the majority answered not 
known) DIY Cultures specifically advertised through links with local Muslim (Bengali, Arab, Somali), 
other Asian groups. The Baul and Vaishnav Music Festival featured music from the Bengali Hindu and 
Muslim (Sufi) and all faith communities from the Diaspora, India and Bangladesh.

Age Positive  The given data suggest that different age groups participated in the events. The Rainbow Film Festival 
had free screenings to older people from the borough it also had young people included in Q&A sessions 
as part of the festival. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnerships.

Positive The data suggests the relationship status of the participants at one event. It is nolonger a requirement in 
the monitoring for Event Fund events, and the data is collated from different versions of the Evaluation 
form.

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Positive The given data suggest that people of this group participated in two events.

Other 
Socio-economic
Carers

Positive DIY Cultures included viewpoints of migrants however there is not a specific category on the monitoring 
form which captures socio-economic data.

P
age 63



4

Section 4 – Mitigating Impacts and Alternative Options  

N/A

From the analysis and interpretation of evidence in section 2 and 3 - Is there any evidence or 
view that suggests that different equality or other protected groups (inc’ staff) could be 
adversely and/or disproportionately impacted by the proposal?

Yes?      No?  

If yes, please detail below how evidence influenced and formed the proposal? For example, 
why parts of the proposal were added / removed?

(Please note – a key part of the EA process is to show that we have made reasonable and informed 
attempts to mitigate any negative impacts. An EA is a service improvement tool and as such you may 
wish to consider a number of alternative options or mitigation in terms of the proposal.)

Where you believe the proposal discriminates but not unlawfully, you must set out below your objective 
justification for continuing with the proposal, without mitigating action.

     

Section 5 – Quality Assurance and Monitoring

N/A

Have monitoring systems been put in place to check the implementation of the proposal and 
recommendations? 

Yes?      No?       

How will the monitoring systems further assess the impact on the equality target groups?

     

Does the policy/function comply with equalities legislation?
(Please consider the OTH objectives and Public Sector Equality Duty criteria)

Yes?      No?      

If there are gaps in information or areas for further improvement, please list them below:

     

How will the results of this Equality Analysis feed into the performance planning process? 

     

Page 64



5

Section 6 - Action Plan

As a result of these conclusions and recommendations what actions (if any) will be included in your business planning and wider review 
processes (team plan)? Please consider any gaps or areas needing further attention in the table below the example.

Recommendation Key activity Progress milestones including 
target dates for either completion 
or progress

Officer 
responsible

Progress

Example

1. Better collection of 
feedback, consultation and 
data sources

2. Non-discriminatory 
behaviour 

      

1. Create and use feedback forms.
Consult other providers and experts

2. Regular awareness at staff 
meetings. Train staff in specialist 
courses

1. Forms ready for January 2010
Start consultations Jan 2010

2. Raise awareness at one staff 
meeting a month. At least 2 specialist 
courses to be run per year for staff.

1.NR & PB

2. NR

Recommendation

1. Better outreach and 
geographical 
spread of the Event 
Fund across the 
borough

Key activity

1. Set up 2 workshops prior to 
each quarterly application 
deadline in venues across 
the borough. Working with 
THCVS to deliver. To 
encourage more participation 
and to widen the spread of 
funding across the borough.

Progress milestones including 
target dates for either completion 
or progress

1. some workshops have already 
taken place, and they have 
been useful in connecting to 
the community and 
understanding their concerns 
re. applying for funds. They 
have also enabled us to 
express the priorities and 
purpose of the fund and target 
specific areas.

Officer 
responsible

1 AD / EF-R

Progress

1. First 
workshops 
were done 
Jan 2017 
(ongoing)

P
age 65



6

2. More streamlined 
collection and 
collation of 
monitoring data and 
simplify.

3. Simplified 
Application forms

2. Create new simplified 
monitoring and evaluation 
forms for 2017-18. 

 

3. Review of the application 
form and criteria to simplify 
process and increase 
involvement from less 
confident communities 

2. One TH have revised the 
requirement for the Event 
Fund. Review of processes  
and evaluation forms to be put 
online for 1718. We will work 
towards implementing the 
online Evaluation form to 
enable us to gather more 
consistent monitoring statistics 
within quarter 3 of 1718.

3. Overhaul of application 
process for 1718 with new 
application forms for £500 and 
under and £501 to £2500

AD / NSJ / 
EF-R

AD / NSJ

2. Evaluation 
form to be 
online by end 
of August 
2017 (In 
progress)

New forms 
and 
guidelines 
and criteria 
online by 
Quarter 3 
2017-18

P
age 66



APPENDIX H: EQUALITIES CHECKLIST 

Name of ‘proposal’ and how has it been implemented
(proposal can be a policy, service, function, strategy, project, 
procedure, restructure/savings proposal)

Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 
3 2017-18

Directorate / Service Children’s / Culture, Learning and Leisure

Lead Officer  Steve Murray, Head of Arts, Parks and Events

Signed Off By (inc date)

Summary – to be completed at the end of completing 
the QA (using Appendix A)
(Please provide a summary of the findings of the Quality 
Assurance checklist. What has happened as a result of 
the QA? For example, based on the QA a Full EA will be 
undertaken or, based on the QA a Full EA will not be 
undertaken as due regard to the nine protected groups is 
embedded in the proposal and the proposal has low 
relevance to equalities)

            
           Proceed with implementation

An Equality Analysis is attached.

   

Stage Checklist Area / Question
Yes / 
No /

Unsure

Comment (If the answer is no/unsure, please ask 
the question to the SPP Service Manager or 
nominated equality lead to clarify) 

1 Overview of Proposal
a Are the outcomes of the proposals clear? Yes Annual Report showing the awards made from the Event 

Fund for the period 1st April 2017 to 31 December 2017. 

b Is it clear who will be or is likely to be affected by what 
is being proposed (inc service users and staff)? 

Yes An Equality Analysis (Appendix G) identifies the positive 
impact on the protected characteristics.

P
age 67



Is there information about the equality profile of those 
affected? 

Monitoring data included in the Evaluation Form provide an 
audience profile. 

The evaluation highlights benefits for residents, including 
involving equalities groups (e.g. young people, older people, 
families, under-represented communities) and enhancing 
cross-cultural understanding and cohesion.

2 Monitoring / Collecting Evidence / Data and Consultation
a Is there reliable qualitative and quantitative data to 

support claims made about impacts?
Yes Evaluation / monitoring forms reflect this data.

Is there sufficient evidence of local/regional/national 
research that can inform the analysis?

Yes The applicants provide necessary information by completing 
Events fund application 

b
Has a reasonable attempt been made to ensure 
relevant knowledge and expertise (people, teams and 
partners) have been involved in the analysis?

Yes The service have evaluated the data and information 
provided by the applicants and recommended events making 
high enough scores.

c
Is there clear evidence of consultation with 
stakeholders and users from groups affected by the 
proposal?

Yes Covered in application process

3 Assessing Impact and Analysis

a

Are there clear links between the sources of evidence 
(information, data etc) and the interpretation of impact 
amongst the nine protected characteristics?

Yes The online Event Fund Application Form and guidelines and 
criteria include expected benefits and impact on the different 
protected characteristics.
The assessment questions and score sheet provide 
interpretation of impact against different protected 
characteristics.

b
Is there a clear understanding of the way in which 
proposals applied in the same way can have unequal 
impact on different groups?

Yes See above.

4 Mitigation and Improvement Action Plan

a
Is there an agreed action plan? Yes The report is retrospective, however the Monitoring 

information from quarter 1 applications  (Appendix C) 
highlights areas to be included in an action plan for 
increasing outreach for the Equalities 9 protected 

P
age 68



Characteristics.

b
Have alternative options been explored Yes Applications which did not fully meet the criteria and priorities 

outlined in the Event Fund  Guidelines and Criteria 2017/18 
were not successful.

5 Quality Assurance and Monitoring

a
Are there arrangements in place to review or audit the 
implementation of the proposal?

Yes The fund procedures are reviewed annually along with its 
criteria and how it is marketed. Additional reviews are 
ongoing to ensure that any areas not being addressed are 
targeted.

b

Is it clear how the progress will be monitored to track 
impact across the protected characteristics??

Yes The successful applicants will be asked to provide a 
completed evaluation form.

The second payment of 20% will not be made until the 
Council receive required documents including a completed 
evaluation form and equalities monitoring. 

6 Reporting Outcomes and Action Plan

a
Does the executive summary contain sufficient 
information on the key findings arising from the 
assessment?

Yes P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Tower Hamlets Event Fund Guidelines and Criteria 2017-18                                                                    1

APPENDIX I: GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA QUARTER 3

Tower Hamlets Event Fund
Guidelines and Criteria 2017/18

1.  Deadlines/timetable 
Your event MUST take place in the quarter for which the application is submitted

Event Date Quarter Application Deadline Evaluation Deadline
April-June 2017 1 12 noon 2 February 2017 30 September 2017
July-September 2017 2 12 noon 27 April 2017 31 December 2017
October-December 2017 3 12 noon 20 July 2017 31 March 2018
January-March 2018 4 12 noon 2 November 2017 30 June 2018

Applications must be received by MIDDAY of the deadline day (12:00). 
Late submissions WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED

2.  Process
 We aim to assess applications as quickly as possible after the deadlines. However, 

please take into consideration that it can take up to a month for a decision to be 
made and a further month for you to receive the first 80% of funding. 

 Applications will be assessed on how well the proposed event will meet the criteria 
and priorities listed below.

 Grants will be paid in two installments. 80% will be paid on acceptance of the offer of 
funding along with any required supporting documents. The final 20% will be paid on 
receipt of the event evaluation report. You must be aware that there will be time 
required for the Council to process your payment once documentation has been 
submitted. 

3.  Criteria
Applicants will need to demonstrate how the event meets each of the criteria listed below 
and how the event will address of at least one of the Community Plan priorities. Be 
specific, use examples. Each answer should be no more than 100 words unless 
otherwise specified. 

 Benefit for the Community of Tower Hamlets – how will local people benefit 
from this event or activity? Who will benefit and how will you know if the benefits 
you intend are achieved?

 Partnership working – are you working with local organisations or communities? 
How are they involved and how will your partnership(s) work?

 Innovation - is your organisation taking an unusual or adventurous approach to 
planning or programming? Are you bringing new audiences to the arts?

AND

The activities must contribute directly to at least one of the priorities in the Tower 
Hamlets Community Plan and must mainly benefit people who live in Tower Hamlets. 
The Community Plan prioritises equality, cohesion and community leadership. For more 

Page 71



Tower Hamlets Event Fund Guidelines and Criteria 2017-18                                                                    2

information go to: 
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/community_and_living/community_plan/community_
plan.aspx

 A Great Place to Live: Promoting a wide range of free or affordable arts 
provision to residents of the borough, bringing together residents from different 
communities both as audience and participants to celebrate the richness, vibrancy 
and energy that our communities provide. 

 A Fair and Prosperous Community: To have a Tower Hamlets in which 
everyone, regardless of their background and circumstances, has the aspiration 
and opportunity to achieve their full potential. At the heart of this theme is a focus 
on combating social exclusion, reducing poverty and improving the life chances of 
all residents. Working in partnership with large and small businesses, delivering 
activities for older people, young people and children. 

 A Safe and Cohesive Community: To have a safer Tower Hamlets: a place 
where everyone feels safe, gets on better together and difference is not seen as 
threat but a core strength of the borough. 

 A Healthy and Supportive Community: To support residents to live healthier, 
more independent lives and reduce the risk of harm and neglect to vulnerable 
children and adults. Promoting healthy living and mental wellbeing through arts 
and events. 

4.  Things we won’t fund
 Events with no art or cultural content.
 Core activities, i.e. rent/utilities/salaries/usual activities (unless directly related to the 

event).
 Profit making activities.
 Raising funds for a charity, religion or politics or to promote the interests of an 

individual.
 Events promoting a particular faith or religion.
 Events not open to the general public (e.g. within a school solely for the school 

community).
 Organisations in debt to the Council.
 Events where Tower Hamlets is the sole source of income unless this application is 

for less than £500. For over £500, LBTH will expect to see 10% of the total budget 
raised in cash from other sources i.e. sponsorship, tickets sales.

 Events or activities which have already taken place.
 Individuals or personal bank accounts

5.  Priorities
Priority will be given to events that:
 Are free to the public
 Offer opportunities for participation to the communities of Tower Hamlets
 Increase the geographic spread of events. For 2017-18 we wish to particularly 

encourage applications for events taking place in the east of Tower Hamlets.

6.  Publicity and Promotion
Those organisations receiving an award must submit details of the event directly onto the 
Tower Hamlets Arts website and acknowledge the support of Tower Hamlets Council 
(including using the Tower Hamlets logo) in all digital and other publicity and promotional 

Page 72

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/community_and_living/community_plan/community_plan.aspx
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/community_and_living/community_plan/community_plan.aspx


Tower Hamlets Event Fund Guidelines and Criteria 2017-18                                                                    3

material. Details will be in your acceptance pack. 

7.  Evaluation
Evaluation – You will be required to submit an evaluation of the event/s. This must be 
returned by the end of the quarter after the event or activity has taken place. 
 You will need to think about how you will evaluate your event BEFORE the event or 

activity takes place. Think beyond how many people turn up (and who they are), to 
consider how you know the event has been successful.

 We will expect you to use the information you have put on your application form to 
help you evaluate your event. 

 We will expect you to ask participants to complete a ‘Self Monitoring Form’ and to 
prepare a summary of the returned forms as part of your evaluation.

 If you do not complete your evaluation form in the time required, you will lose your 
second instalment, and it may have an effect on future funding bids. 

8.  Accessibility
 Events / activities must be open to the general public (i.e. not be restricted to closed 

groups such as members of an organisation or an educational establishment). Make 
sure you demonstrate how you will promote your event and how you will include the 
wider community. 

 Events / activities should take place in accessible venues and must demonstrate 
support for the Council’s vision to improve the quality of life for everyone living or 
working in the borough by ensuring they are compliant with the Equality Act 2010 and 
not discriminating on grounds of Age, Disability, Gender Reassignment, Pregnancy 
and Maternity, Race, Religion or Belief (or lack of belief), Sex, Sexual Orientation, 
Marriage and Civil Partnership. For further guidance go to: Equalities and Diversity 

 Events / activities charging a fee need to demonstrate that the event remains 
accessible to the wider community. The number of tickets and ticket prices must be 
clearly specified in the application and in the budget. Events or activities with a ticket 
price may not be eligible unless they can demonstrate adequate additional free 
content that is accessible to the wider community. 

9.  Finance
 The budgets you put into your application should be as realistic as possible. They are 

estimates, but you will need to tell us how much you actually spent in your evaluation 
report.

 You should show income in cash and in kind – this means things you get for free that 
would normally cost money, so a venue or equipment loaned for free and volunteer 
time. You should put a value on this kind of support and include it as income. Make 
sure you include the in kind items as part of your expenditure as well as income. 

 All cash and in kind amounts should be included, as well as any projected income 
from ticket sales, if applicable. 

 Events seeking more than £500 funding will be asked to demonstrate cash 
partnership funding or support of at least 10% of the total event budget. 

 Check your addition, make sure it all adds up and that income and expenditure 
are the same. 

10.  Permissions and Insurances
 Applicants must take out appropriate and adequate public liability insurance for the 

event. Events / activities must comply with statutory requirements for entertainment 

Page 73

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/community_and_living/equality_and_diversity/equality_and_diversity.aspx


Tower Hamlets Event Fund Guidelines and Criteria 2017-18                                                                    4

licensing, health and safety, safeguarding children and vulnerable adults, copyright 
etc. Organisers must obtain all necessary consents. For further guidance regarding 
licensing go to: Licensing. Evidence of compliance with regulations may be required 
as part of the grant offer. 

 Organisations who are occupying Council facilities and applying for grants, need to 
have entered into an appropriate property agreement for their use and occupation of 
land and buildings, which cover the entire period of grant award. 

11.  False Information
Any payments granted to organisations supplying false information on their application 
forms are to be repaid in full to the Council. 

12.  Cancellation or Change of Plans
 Events / activities cancelled after receiving an award will require organisations to 

repay the award in full. 
 Any substantial changes to the programme or timetable should be discussed with the 

Festivals & Events Officer prior to the event date, and we reserve the right to 
reconsider our funding commitment and to require repayment of any monies paid. 

Page 74

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/business/licences/licences.aspx


1 | P a g e

Grants Committee Decision Report
14th November 2017

Report of: Denise Radley – Corporate Director Health, 
Adults & Communities.

Classification:
Unrestricted 

Mental Health User Led Grants Programme 2018 - 2020

Originating Officer(s) Carrie Kilpatrick
Wards affected All wards 
Key Decision? Yes
Community Plan Theme A safe and cohesive community

Executive Summary

User led groups are at the heart of the Council’s strategy to develop services that 
give more choice and control to service users. In particular the Health and Wellbeing 
Board Strategy places a significant emphasis on the fact that service users have told 
us that they want more choice and control over services. 

The Tower Hamlets Mental Health user led grants programme enables user led 
groups to provide a wide range of social and therapeutic activities to promote social 
inclusion, well-being, and independence for people with mental health problems 
aged over 18.

The mental health user led grants programme is aligned with the Mental Health 
Council Wide Strategy and facilitates the delivery of a number of core commitments 
within the strategy action plan. User Led groups deliver preventive services which 
increase wellbeing and keep people out hospital.1 They are effective value-for-
money ways of keeping people well in the community.2 Local JSNA data supports 
the success of the Tower Hamlets preventative approach in keeping people with 
mental health problems well in the community, thus preventing more acute and 
costly care and support needs.

The grant scheme has been running for 10 years and has steadily increased the 
level of peer support available in Tower Hamlets. The scheme invites small user-led 
groups for people with mental health problems to apply for a maximum grant of 
£5,000 per year to develop peer support networks.

1 Repper, J and Carter T.(2011). ‘A review of the literature on peer support in mental health Services.’ Journal 
of Mental Health, August 2011; 20(4): 392–411
2 http://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/news/2013_peer_support_workers.aspx

Page 75

Agenda Item 5.2



2 | P a g e

At a cost of £ £90,838 the programme presents good value for money in terms of the 
quality and the volume of services delivered;  enabling us to meet key priorities 
stated within the Tower Hamlets Mental Health strategy to:

 Reduce stigma and discrimination by offering alternatives to traditional 
segregated services; 

 Support people to take control of their lives; 
 Ensure that people are able to access support easily; and
 Promote service user involvement in developing and improving services. 
 Developing user led recovery culture in mental health services
 More people with mental health problems will have good physical

health

The current grants come to an end in March 2018; meaning there is a priority need 
to determine the future of this grants programme and commence the process for 
2018-19 and beyond. 

This paper recommends the continuation of the Tower Hamlets Mental Health User 
Led Grants Programme, recognising their role in facilitating the delivery of a number 
of core commitments within the following: 

 The Mental Health Council wide Strategy
 The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health
 The Care Act 2014

Recommendations:

The Grants Committee are recommended to: 

1. Agree the commencement of the Mental Health User Led grants 
programme for 2018- 2020 at the current level.

2. Agree the criteria under which the grants will be awarded
3. Delegate authority for grant awards to the Corporate Director for Health, 

Adults and Communities

Page 76



3 | P a g e

1. REASONS FOR THE GRANT PROGRAMME

1.1 Annual funding of the user led groups has proved immensely beneficial to the 
large majority of service users who use user led groups; with service users 
reporting that they feel very positive about their involvement in either 
facilitating groups or being an active member. Mental Health user led groups 
are becoming increasingly popular year on year, as they enable service users 
to take active control of meeting their own needs, to be innovative and 
creative in doing so, and to develop new skills and knowledge in the process.

1.2 User Led groups deliver preventive services which increase wellbeing and 
keep people out hospital.3 They are effective value-for-money ways of 
keeping people well in the community.4 Local JSNA data supports the 
success of the Tower Hamlets preventative approach in keeping people with 
mental health problems well in the community thus preventing more acute and 
costly care and support needs.

1.3 The programme presents good value for money in terms of the quality and the 
volume of services delivered. This is demonstrated in relation to the: 

 Number of workshops delivered by the programme; 
 Number of people who attended these workshops; 
 Choice and variety of different workshops and activities available; 
 Ability of the groups to offer services for hard to reach communities;
 Capacity to include people with multiple and complex needs; and, 
 Geographical distribution of groups in relation to need in the borough.
 The ability to access peer support during out of hours as highlighted by 

groups facilitators during a consultation

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 The user led group grant schemes continue to be an innovative approach to 
enabling peer groups to support recovery and improve well-being for 
participants. 

2.2 Taking into consideration the continued success and impact of the scheme no 
other viable options have currently been identified to create similar or better 
outcomes with the funding available. 

DETAILS OF REPORT

3 Repper, J and Carter T.(2011). ‘A review of the literature on peer support in mental health Services.’ Journal 
of Mental Health, August 2011; 20(4): 392–411
4 http://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/news/2013_peer_support_workers.aspx

Page 77



4 | P a g e

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 Mental Health is a national priority. One in four people will experience a 
mental health problem at some point in their lifetime and one in six adults has 
a mental health problem at any one time.  Among people under 65, nearly half 
of all ill health is mental illness. In other words, nearly as much ill health is 
mental illness as all physical illnesses put together. Tower Hamlets has a high 
prevalence of mental health problems. We have the fourth highest proportion 
of people with depression in London, the fourth highest incidence of first 
episode psychosis, and the highest incidence of psychosis in east London 
according to GP registers. In total there are approximately 30,000 adults 
estimated to have symptoms of a common mental health problem in the 
borough, with around 15,900 people known to their GP to have depression, 
and 3,300 known to have a serious mental illness, with a prevalence of c. 
1150 people with dementia.5

3.2 Mental health is also a local priority. Residents of Tower Hamlets experience 
some of the highest levels of Mental Health need in England; over 45% of 
people claiming incapacity benefit in Tower Hamlets are doing so due to a 
mental health problem.  

3.3 The Mental Health Strategy includes a number of commitments to build 
resilience in the population through supporting people to live well with a 
mental health problem. The model which enables people to live well with their 
mental health problems is the recovery model. There is a fundamental 
commitment within the strategy to develop recovery based services to:

 Reduce stigma and discrimination by offering alternatives to traditional 
segregated services 

 Support people to take control of their lives 
 Ensure that people are able to access support easily
 Promote service user involvement in developing and improving services. 

4. The Tower Hamlets Mental Health User Led Grants Programme

4.1 The Tower Hamlets Mental Health user led grants programme funds user led 
groups to provide a wide range of social and therapeutic activities to promote 
social inclusion, well-being, and independence for people with mental health 
problems aged over 18. A significant proportion meet out of usual office hours, 
including evenings and weekends and so provide social support when other 
services are not available. They provide targeted support to a wide range of 

5 
https://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/documents/s53391/5%201%202014%201%2022%20Tower%20Haml
ets%20Mental%20Health%20Strategy%20FINAL.pdf

Page 78



5 | P a g e

communities across the borough including some of our most vulnerable and 
hard-to-reach communities. 

4.2 User led groups are at the heart of the Council’s strategy to develop services 
that give more choice and control to service users. In particular the Health and 
Wellbeing Board Mental Health Strategy places a significant emphasis on the 
fact that service users have told us that they want more choice and control 
over services. 

4.3 The grant scheme has been running for 10 years and has steadily increased 
the level of peer support available in Tower Hamlets.  For 2016/17 and 
2017/18, the Council allocated £90,838 per year for a small grants programme 
to support user-led groups for people with mental health problems; currently 
the programme funds 24 user led groups (see Appendix A and B). Grant 
applications were requested for a maximum of up to £5,000 per year for a 2 
year period. The current grants come to an end in March 2018.

4.4 To qualify for a grant, groups have to be led by a person or people with a 
mental health problem. When a group of service users have ideas on how 
their social care needs could be better or more creatively met, through the 
user-led grant process, they therefore have the opportunity to apply for 
funding to realise their ideas in practice. Groups are offered support with the 
administrative and organisational aspects of running a group, along with help 
solving problems as they arise, through a separately commissioned Support 
User Network (SUN Network) coordinated by Community Options, a local third 
sector organisation specialising in mental health.

4.5 A high proportion of the funded user-led groups have been established over 
many years, with the firm foundation that they actively encourage and 
promote healthy lifestyles, focus on health promotion and endorse a positive 
outlook on the lives of service users through physical exercise and alternative 
therapies. The original purpose of the grants scheme was to: 

 Increase numbers of people with mental health problems involved in 
delivering services and/or activities

 Increase number of people in user group leader/involvement roles achieve 
personal goals and aspirations 

 Increase levels of peer support available in community settings

4.6 Service user engagement and coproduction is vital to the delivery of this 
agenda. User-led services provide many benefits which have an impact on 
our strategic priorities such as:

 Intrinsic value for the individual involved, for example, increased 
confidence in social situations and reduced social isolation;

 Increased capacity of services, for example, by using service users’ lived 
experience, time, skills, resources and networks we are providing a higher 
amount of higher quality services; and

Page 79



6 | P a g e

 Monetary value, for example, preventing more acute needs arising and so 
reducing the use of expensive crisis services.6

5. Mental Health User Led Grant Programme 2017- 18 : Outcomes and 
Value 

5.1 At a cost of £90,838 the provision presents good value for money in terms of 
the quality and the volume of services delivered. This is demonstrated through 
an analysis of monitoring data in relation to: 

 Number of workshops delivered by the programme; 
 Number of people who attended these workshops; 
 Choice and variety of different workshops and activities available; 
 Ability of the groups to offer services for hard to reach communities;
 Capacity to include people with multiple and complex needs; and, 
 Geographical distribution of groups in relation to need in the borough.

5.2 In order to receive funding from the Council user led groups are required to 
submit quarterly monitoring returns (qualitative and financial) as well as 
receive a minimum of one quarterly support meeting from the Development 
Worker based in the Coproduction Project. Support meetings actively monitor 
groups to ensure that they are delivering and working towards their agreed 
outcomes within the means available, ensuring that new members are taken 
aboard and the maximum number of members benefit from the funding 
allocated. 

The performance of all groups was reviewed at the end of year one of the two 
year grant as a condition of receipt of the grant in year two.

5.3 Number of workshops delivered by the programme

  The 24 mental health service user led groups all provide at least one session 
every two weeks as a minimum requirement. These usually last between 2 
hours and half a day. 15 groups deliver sessions on a weekly basis, for 
example, BYM deliver exercise classes to Bangladeshi women every week. In 
addition most of the groups organise seasonal activities and specific social 
events which present added value. In the last two quarters of 2017/18, the 
current grant programme has delivered 494 sessions. This equates to 1,976 
sessions over the 2 years of the programme. The cost of these session is 
extremely good value for money at only £69 per session.

5.4 Number of people who attended these workshops 

The sessions delivered by the user-led groups reach a wide number of 
people. The groups range from 9 attendees to 30 attendees. The smaller 

6 http://www.neweconomics.org/page/-/publications/Co-Production_web.pdf

Page 80



7 | P a g e

groups, such as the group which offers support to people who self-harm, are 
purposefully kept smaller to better manage the specific needs of people within 
the group. In the first two quarters of 17/18 the current grant programme has 
delivered a service to 427 individuals with mental health problems. It is likely 
that this number will increase by the end of the final quarter as per previous 
years. Again this is demonstrable value for money. 427 people have been 
supported for 6 months at a cost of only £80 per person.  It is important to 
note, 182 (43%) live in their own homes, 180 (42%) have Learning and or 
physical disability. 

5.5 Choice and variety of different workshops and activities available

The model of this programme enables a variety of options and develops the 
social care market. The 24 groups each have a different offer. There are a 
range of activities including gardening; alternative therapies, healthy cooking 
and arts based groups. It also means that niche groups which can be difficult 
to incorporate in statutory services can have their needs met. The programme 
model encourages service users who have identified a need to form a user 
led group with the support of the local support service. For example, the 
Hidden Universe of Self-Harm is the only specific service for people who self-
harm in the borough. This has resulted in a more personalised level of support 
for people with specific needs.

5.6 Ability of the groups to offer services for hard to reach communities

An original driver of the programme was to target individuals with mental 
health support needs from vulnerable and hard to reach communities. Some 
communities have high levels of mental health problems but because of 
stigma and a lack of culturally appropriate services often only access services 
at point of crisis. 

The aim of this programme is to provide accessible, preventative services 
which harness the resources of the communities and to prevent mental health 
problems from escalating. The success of this programme can be seen in the 
captured equalities data in table 1 below. 

Page 81



8 | P a g e

Chart and table 1: Equalities Data of People Attending User Led groups from Q2 2017

The chart shows the diversity of attendance at the user led groups from a 
variety of different group’s representative of Tower Hamlets ethnic makeup. 
This is a result of the policy to encourage service users from these 
communities to lead their own groups that both meet culturally specific needs 
and are accessible to their community networks. The grants process 
specifically targets communities who are currently underrepresented to apply 
for grants and is able therefore to be flexible in response to any identified 
gaps or changing demographic needs.

5.7 Capacity to include people with multiple and complex needs

An important health agenda is the drive to address the needs of people with 
co-morbidities. A high proportion of people with a mental health need also 
have physical health problem. It is important to provide services which can 
meet the needs of people with multiple and complex needs. Monitoring data 
demonstrates that the groups are inclusive of this cohort and offer a service to 
people often designated as complex. In the last quarter 180 (42%) people 
attended the groups who in addition to mental health problem also had a 
physical or learning disability. It is important to have inclusive provision for 
these people then they don’t fall through the gaps.

5.8 Geographical distribution of groups in relation to need in the borough

The geographical distribution is broadly in line with the distribution of mental 
health need across the borough. This is demonstrated by the maps below.

Page 82



9 | P a g e

GP Practice SMI Register 

The distribution of mental health need in the borough is relatively fixed as it is 
connected to a number of demographic factors including deprivation, housing 
condition, age and ethnicity of the various communities in Tower Hamlets. It 
should also be noted that the supply of supported accommodation for people 
with mental health problems and hostels are focussed in the North West and 
centre of the borough, resulting in an increased prevalence of SMI in the 
North West and centre of the borough. The data detailed above relates to 
practice registration of service users, not their home address, though practice 
registration is a reasonable proxy for the locus in which the service users’ 
address is located, as service users tend to register with a GP practice close 
to home. 

Page 83



10 | P a g e

Mental health service users who receive commissioned social care

5.10 Broader delivery of preventative outcomes

The user led grants programme supports the delivery of a number of other 
key Council programmes and objectives, for example, physical health and 
healthy living. A high proportion of the user led groups were established with 
the firm foundation that they actively encourage and promote healthy 
lifestyles, focus on health promotion and endorse a positive outlook on the 
lives of service users through physical exercise and alternative therapies. For 
example, the Mauy Thai Boxing group not only develops skills to manage 
emotions and develop focus it also provides all the physical health benefits of 
a boxing club and an accredited qualification. 

In addition the user led groups deliver preventive services which increase 
wellbeing and keep people out hospital.7 Community-based peer support 
groups have been proven nationally to be effective, value-for-money ways of 

7 Repper, J and Carter T.(2011). ‘A review of the literature on peer support in mental health Services.’ Journal 
of Mental Health, August 2011; 20(4): 392–411

Page 84



11 | P a g e

keeping people well in the community.8 Evaluations of preventative programs 
are notoriously difficult to evaluate, however, data from the JSNA indicates 
the local success of peer support groups. Tower Hamlets has extremely high 
levels of mental health need in the borough. Despite this we have 
comparatively low numbers of people in hospital and an extremely high 
number of people living well within the community.9 Although a variety of 
factors influence this, positive conclusions can be drawn as to the 
effectiveness of our user-led community provision.

The user led groups are also instrumental in strengthening emotional 
resilience among service users, a key objective in the council’s plan to 
address mental health need. 

The promotion of social networks is an essential outcome to recovery in 
mental health. The groups provide friendship and support to people who can 
be socially isolated without friends or family. The Sunday Lunch club runs 
when the majority of services are closed and provides a lifeline at a time when 
people are particularly at risk. This is an example of how the grant programme 
enables service users to feel supported when statutory services are closed.  
Not only is decreasing social isolation an important outcome the social 
networks also deliver added value such as community cohesion, social capital 
and practical support. 

The benefit of the user led groups also extends to the facilitators who as a 
result of the responsibility of providing a community service, have an 
increased sense of self-worth in addition to being equipped with skills which 
increase their employability. 2017/18 KPI data indicates that 33 individuals 
have secured employment opportunities following engagement with the User 
Led Programme.  

5.11 Impact of User Led Groups

One of the original outcomes of the programme is to tackle the stigma of 
mental health. This is particularly difficult in Tower Hamlets as mental health 
has different meanings within different cultures. The groups offer people a 
place to tackle their problems and feel supported by people from their own 
community who have a culturally appropriate understanding of mental health. 
The programme includes groups who specifically work with, for example, the 
Bangladeshi Community amongst others. This also has the wider impact of 
challenging stigma within the communities by building the capacity of the 
communities to better understand mental health and making it less of a 
hidden issue. In terms of the preventative agenda the groups are gateways 
into information and advice from other partners to better manage mental 
health and signpost to alternative methods to deal with crisis as opposed to 
hospitalisation.

8 http://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/news/2013_peer_support_workers.aspx
9 JSNA

Page 85



12 | P a g e

The small sample size of the Tower Hamlets Mental Health User Led Groups 
and the current monitoring practices lack statistical power to incontrovertibly 
demonstrate their impact. 

Despite our current lack of outcomes-focused information, national studies of 
similar user led programmes allow for an evidence based discussion around 
the benefits of this type of programme. 

In 2015 Nesta reviewed over 1000 studies to analyse the impact of peer 
support. The study concluded that groups that use peer support such as our 
user led groups have been found to:

 Have the potential to improve experience, psycho-social outcomes, 
behaviour, health outcomes and service user among people with long-
term physical and mental health conditions;

 Be effective for improving health outcomes when facilitated by trained 
peers such as in our programme

 Be effective for improving health outcomes when it is based around 
specific activities (such as our groups) and focus on education, social 
support and physical support10 

In addition to the case study review there is a range of academic literature 
around services provided by people with mental health problems (peer 
support) that also informs the case for User Led Groups.

 People who support their peers and the people who are supported by 
their peers have greater confidence and self-esteem and a more 
positive sense of identity, they feel less self-stigmatisation, have more 
skills and feel more valued;’11

 The mutuality and reciprocity that occurs through people with mental 
health problems supporting each other builds social capital which in 
turn is associated with well-being and resilience;12

 Being supported by one’s peers can promote hope and belief in the 
possibility of recovery, empowerment and increased self-esteem, self-
efficacy, and self-management of difficulties, social inclusion, 
engagement and increased social networks;13

 Peer support reduces inpatient bed use;1415

10 Nesta (2015) Peer Support: What is it and does it work? 
https://www.nesta.org.uk/sites/default/files/peer_support_-_what_is_it_and_does_it_work.pdf
11 Repper, J. (2013). Peer Support Workers: theory and practice. London: Centre for Mental Health.
centreformentalhealth.org.uk/pdfs/ImROC_peer_support_workers_theory_practice.pdf
12 McKenzie, K. (2006). Social risk, mental health and social capital. In: McKenzie, K. & Harpham, T. (Eds) Social 
Capital and Mental Health. London: Jessica Kingsley Publishers.
13 Repper, J. & Carter, T. (2010). Using personal experience to support others with similar difficulties: A review 
of the literature on peer support in mental health services. London: Together/University of Nottingham/NSUN.
together-uk.org/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2011/11/usingpersexperience.pdf
14 Lawn, S., Smith, A. & Hunter, K. (2008). Mental health peer support for hospital avoidance and early 
discharge: an Australian example of consumer driven and operated service. Journal of Mental Health, 17, 498–
508.
15 Forchuk, C., Reynolds, W., Sharkey, S., Martin,M.-L. & Jensen, E. (2007). Transitional discharge based on 
therapeutic relationships: state of the art. Archives of Psychiatric Nursing, 21, 80–86.

Page 86



13 | P a g e

 Peer support improves the physical health of people with mental health 
problems;16

 Peer support is particularly effective in minority communities.17

6. Commencing the Grants Programme for 2018-20

6.1 In aligning the grant programme for 2018/20 with the delivery of the Mental 
Health Strategy we are recommending a number of key changes to the 
programme in the areas listed below: 

 Increased focus on outcomes: The groups are designed to deliver a 
series of co-produced outcomes. To enable us to measure the real 
impact of the programme, we have co-produced a list of key outcomes 
listed below which we will be a mandatory part of the 2018-20 MH 
grants programme. These will be reported on a six monthly basis.  
 

I. I feel more supported because of the group.
II. I feel more positive about the future because of the group 

III. I feel less socially isolated because of the group 
IV. I feel I have developed because of the group. 
V. I can better manage my mental health problems because of the 

group.

 Alignment to strategic priorities: We will invite grant applications 
from Organisations able to demonstrate they will deliver our core 
priorities of providing support out of hours for example weekends and 
evenings as well as meeting both mental and physical health needs 
and challenging social isolation.

 Provision of a tiered level of support:  we will ensure there is a 
tiered level of support available through our Co-production project to 
which enables established groups to support the establishment of new 
groups whilst enabling those more established groups to develop as 
social enterprises or independent groups in the future. Part of this will 
need to focus on the infrastructure support to develop business skills. 

 Formal pathways to increased skills and employability for group 
leaders. We wish to provide support to increase the skills of group 
leaders as part of a pathway to employment as peer support worker or 
other transferable roles. 

 The introduction of co-facilitator/s: during our consultation with 
group facilitators, one of the key challenges they raised was the need 
for additional support from their groups, they discussed the need for a 

16 Bates, A., Kemp, V. & Isaac, M. (2008). Peer support shows promise in helping persons living with mental 
illness address their physical health needs. Canadian Journal of Community Mental Health, 27, 21–36.
17 Faulkner, A. and Kalathil, J. (2012) The freedom to be, the chance to dream. London: Together.together-
uk.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/09/The-Freedom-to-be-The-Chance-to-dream-Full-Report1.pdf

Page 87



14 | P a g e

co-facilitator who will share the responsibilities, and assist in leading 
the groups when the lead facilitator becomes unwell. For the 2018-20 
MH Grant programme, applicants will be asked to have two facilitators. 
This will increase the sustainability of groups, as well as the number of 
individuals who will develop facilitation and leadership skills. 
Community Options will provide tailored trainings that would equip the 
co-facilitators to develop relevant skills. 

6.2 In order to develop this retargeted programme there is a need for us to work 
closely with the existing groups, the wider mental health service user 
community, the current support provider and any internal stakeholders. 

6.3 Based on the process used in previous years, the grant scheme advert will be 
published on the Service User Network (SUN) and East End Life on 19th 
December 2017 with closing date of 19th January 2018. 
 

6.4 The advert will highlight the ‘eligibility’ criteria which is fundamental to the 
evaluation process:
a. Support residents of Tower Hamlets with  identified mental health  needs 

aged over 18
b. Led by mental health service users
c. Provide peer support, therapeutic or social activities
d. Provide a quality service to an active membership
e. Priority will be given to groups that provide activities that take place out of 

hours
f. Priority will be given to groups that target users who are currently under 

represented in the overall funding scheme 
g. Priority will be given to groups who demonstrate a commitment to the 

agreed outcomes
h. Priority will be given to groups who demonstrate a commitment to 

sustainable development

6.5 Interested parties will be sent an application pack containing the following: 
 Application Timetable
 Funding Application Process Flowchart
 Guidance notes and eligibility criteria for applicants
 Application Form for the 2018-20 Small Grants User-Led Groups
 Draft Terms and Conditions of Grant
 Copy of the Mental Health User-Led Group ‘Quarterly Activities Return’ 

and ‘Quarterly Financial Return’ forms

6.6 The process will also be promoted during, and prior to the advert going to 
print, via the Community Options User Involvement Project, to ensure that all 
service users expressing an interest in applying for funding are aware of the 
forthcoming application process. In addition, the process will promoted within 
the SUN Network meetings organised by Community Options, as well as at 
the Voluntary Sector Network (VSN) meetings, where leads for all the 
Voluntary Sector. We will circulate the advert via email to all the stakeholders 

Page 88



15 | P a g e

who work with individuals with mental health difficulties as well as announce 
on our Tower Hamlets CCG website.

6.7 Applicants will be asked to submit a i) completed application form, ii) a 12 
month activity plan and iii) a 12 month budget.
Support from Community Options will be available throughout the application 
process including guidance on how to complete the application form, activity 
plan and budget. 

7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

7.1 This report is a request to continue the funding of the Mental Health User Led 
Grants Programme (MHULG), agree the criteria by which it is awarded and 
also to delegate the authority to award the grant for the period 2018-2020 to 
the Corporate Director for Health Adults and Communities.

7.2 The MHULG has an annual cost of circa £90k. Revenue budget is available 
for 2017/18 to fully cover the forecast cost of the programme for the period 
requested. This revenue budget allocation (£90k) is available to the 
programme for the duration of the current medium term financial strategy 
(2017-2020), pending any future changes to the MHULG Programme.

8. LEGAL COMMENTS 

 
8.1 This report concerns a proposal to continue the grant funding of the Mental 

Health User Led Grants Programme (MHULG Scheme) for 2017- 2018 and 
agree the criterion for the 2018-2020 MHULG Scheme.

Timeline for User Led Grants process
Dates Task
5th December 2017 Grants Determination Committee to consider Mental 

Health User Led Grants Programme

19thDecember 2017 Advertise
31st January 2018  Deadline for return all funding Applications
1st, 2nd and 5th February 
2018  

Assessment of applications

6th, 7th and 8th February 
2018

Telephone / meetings with new and/or existing 
applicants where necessary

16th February 2018 Recommendations Report to DMT 
26th February 2018 Call over period 
5th March 2018 Award confirmation letters to successful applicants 
April 2018 Payments processed

Page 89



16 | P a g e

Duties

8.2 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 (“the 2012 Act”) requires the Council to 
establish a Health and Wellbeing Board. Section 193 of the 2012 Act inserts a 
new s116A into the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007, which places a duty on the Health and Wellbeing Board to prepare a 
joint strategic health and wellbeing strategy in respect of the locals needs 
identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, so that future 
commissioning/policy decisions are evidence-based. The duty to prepare this 
plan falls on local authorities and the Clinical Commissioning Group, but must 
be discharged by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

8.3 Under Sections 1-7 of the Care Act 2014 the Council has a number of general 
duties, including to promote an individual’s well-being relating to their physical 
and mental health, emotional well-being and personal dignity. It places a duty 
on the Council to co-operate generally with those it considers appropriate who 
are engaged in the Council’s area relating to adults with needs for care and 
support, and there is a general duty to prevent needs for care and support 
from developing. Section 8 provides that those needs may be met in a number 
of ways, including providing advice and information, and that the Council may 
arrange for those services to be met by another person. 

8.4 The MHULG Scheme may be deemed to assist the Council in its attempts to 
comply with the various duties referred to in paragraphs 8.2 and 8.3 of this 
report. 

Grants

8.5 There is no strict legal definition of grant. However, a grant is in the nature of 
a gift and is based in trust law. Many grants are awarded by the Council for 
the purpose of discharging one of its statutory duties. However, as a grant is 
in the nature of a gift, there must be elements of discretion on the Council’s 
part as grantor as to whom a grant is made to and within appropriate 
conditions. If the Council is under a legal duty to provide a payment to a 
specific individual or organisation, and cannot lawfully elect not to make such 
a payment, that scenario may be one of a number of indicators that the 
arrangement should not amount to a grant.

8.6 The Council must operate a fair and open application procedure to process a 
request to obtain funding. Requests for grant funding for the MHULG Scheme 
should ordinarily be measured against a predetermined set of criteria which 
must be fair and transparent and documented within an appropriate grant 
agreement.

8.7 The grant agreement in relation to the MHULG Scheme should include a clear 
monitoring process against defined parameters for the purposes of the 
Council demonstrating either: that delivery is in line with the application and 
the grant achieved its purpose; or provide clear delineation where outcomes 
were not achieved and the reasons for such failure are apparent. Monitoring 

Page 90



17 | P a g e

should therefore include measuring performance against the expected 
outcomes.

8.8 When implementing the MHULG Scheme, the Council must ensure that no 
portion of the funds awarded represents a profit element to the recipients. The 
inclusion of or the opportunity to profit from the grant or third parties indicates 
that the grant is procurement activity which would otherwise be subject to the 
Council’s Procurement Procedures and other appropriate domestic and 
European law. These circumstances would entail the Council failing to abide 
by the appropriate internal procedures and external law applicable to such 
purchases.

Power to Award Grants

8.9 The Council has the power under section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 to “do 
anything that individuals generally may do” and that extends to doing things 
“for, or otherwise than for, the benefit of the authority, its area or persons 
resident or present in its area”. This power is referred to as the ‘general power
of competence’ and includes the award of grants. The MHULG Scheme and 
the award of grants proposed under it appear to be consistent with the 
Council’s statutory powers under the general power of competence. 

Best Value Duty

8.10 The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness which is referred to as the ‘Best Value’ duty. Best 
Value considerations have been articulated in section 10 of this report and the 
Council should be satisfied that the provision of grants for the MHULG 
Scheme would represent Best Value. 

State Aid

8.11 All the proposed grants under the MHULG Scheme appear to fall under the de 
minimis threshold for the purposes of European restrictions on State aid.

Equality

8.12 When making grants decisions in relation to the MHULG Scheme, the Council 
must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the 
Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need 
to foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not (the public sector equality duty - PSED). A 
proportionate level of equality analysis is required to discharge the PSED and 
information relevant to this is contained in section 9 of this report.

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

Page 91



18 | P a g e

9.1 An original driver of the programme was to target individuals with mental 
health support needs from vulnerable and hard to reach communities. Some
communities have high levels of mental health problems but because of 
stigma and a lack of culturally appropriate services often only access services 
at point of crisis.

9.2 The aim of this programme is to provide accessible, preventative services 
which harness the resources of the communities and to prevent mental health 
problems from escalating.

9.3 The previous paper showed the diversity of attendance at the user led groups 
from a variety of different group’s representative of Tower Hamlets ethnic 
makeup. This is a result of the policy to encourage service users from these 
communities to lead their own groups that both meet culturally specific needs 
and are accessible to their community networks. The grants process 
specifically targets communities who are currently underrepresented to apply 
for grants and is able therefore to be flexible in response to any identified 
gaps or changing demographic needs.

9.4 A number of areas outlined within ‘A healthy community’ are endorsed and 
promoted through the funding of the user-led groups. A high proportion of the
existing funded groups promote healthy eating, alternative therapies and 
physical exercise which clearly evidences positive effects on group members.
This in turn has enabled members to look at their lifestyles holistically and
improve, enhance and develop other areas of their lives which have a direct 
impact on their mental wellbeing.

9.5 There have also been a number of members who have felt confident enough 
to cease attending the groups and who have progressed onto volunteering 
and training opportunities. This not only gives confidence to the member/s 
who have moved-on and progressed, but also to existing members who may 
see this as direct encouragement and an insight into opportunities which they 
may not have necessarily have known about prior to being a group member. 

10. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 The best value duty is a duty to “make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to 
a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.” The Mental Health 
User Led Grants Programme demonstrates economy and efficiency in that it 
will significantly improve and increase the range and quality of services.

10.2 The Mental Health User Led Grants programme delivers a high volume of 
support within a limited envelope. This is demonstrated in relation to:
 the number of workshops delivered by the service; 
 the number of people who attend these workshops; 
 the choice and variety of different workshops and activities; 
 the ability of the groups to offer services to hard to reach communities; 

Page 92



19 | P a g e

 the capacity to include people with multiple and complex needs; and, 
 the equal geographical distribution of groups in relation to need in the 

borough.

10.3   The User Led Grants Programme is effective in that it enables us to meet 
priorities stated within the Tower Hamlets Mental Health strategy to:
 Reduce stigma and discrimination by offering alternatives to traditional 

segregated services 
 Support people to take control of their lives 
 Ensure that people are able to access support easily
 Promote service user involvement in developing and improving Services. 

10.4 User Led groups deliver preventive services which increase wellbeing and 
keep people out hospital.  They are effective value-for-money ways of keeping 
people well in the community.  Local JSNA data supports the success of the 
Tower Hamlets preventative approach in keeping people with mental health 
problems well in the community thus preventing more acute and costly care 
and support needs.

11. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

The proposals within the report do not specifically contribute to a sustainable
environment nor identify any environmental implications. Authors should 
explain how the proposals in the report will contribute to a sustainable 
environment and/or identify any environmental implications of the proposals 
and the action proposed to address these.

12. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

12.1 The increased focus on outcome, independence and sustainability will be a 
challenge for some of the service user groups with its accompanying 
increased responsibility. We will mitigate this risk by:
 Coproducing the mandatory outcomes and measurements with the 

groups to agree reasonable requirements
 Providing a tiered level of support from the Recovery and Wellbeing 

service that will develop sustainability within the groups and capacity to 
access alternative funding 

 Supporting the introduction of any new monitoring mechanism and the 
attainment of the quality assurance standard

 Providing training and skills development courses at the Recovery to 
support the pathway for group leaders

13 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

Page 93



20 | P a g e

By promoting and supporting recovery focused activities, the proposals seek 
to enable people to achieve their full potential encouraging participation in 
meaningful activities and reducing risk of contact with the justice system and 
anti-social behaviour.

 

14. SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS

14.1 Through the safeguarding training and ongoing support this programme is 
building understanding and capacity within the mental health service user 
community. This will enable them to better manage safeguarding issues 
amongst peers who otherwise may not have engaged with mainstream 
services. All support and training will be driven by Tower Hamlets 
Safeguarding strategies and procedures. 

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE 

Appendices
 NONE 

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

 NONE 

Officer contact details for documents:
N/A

Page 94



21 | P a g e

Appendix A

GROUPS NAME 2017/18 FUNDING 

AKENATUM- B (MIND) £2,500

ASPIRE2  AFFILIATE

ASUMJWE £3,900

BOYAAN ST HILDAS £3,969

BURCHAM STREET GARDENS £2,500

CAFÉ NIA £4,351

COOL TO BELIEVE £5,000

EXPRESSIONS WITH ART £4,800

FEEL GOOD FRIDAY £4,321

HANDY CRAFTS £2,971

KUSHI £1,971

MELODY MAKERS £3,169

HUSH – Hidden Universe of Self Harm AFFILIATE 

MINDFULLNESS PHOTOGRAPHY £3,169

NEW START PAMPER GROUP £3,111

PEACE OF MIND £5,000

PERFORMING ARTS AND CINMA GROUP £5,000

PHONENIX £3,000

SOHBA THAIBA £2,750

TIME TO TALK PEER SUPPORT £2,810

THAI BOXING FIGHTERS ACADEMY £5,000

THE SONGBIRDS £3,995

UPBEAT £5,000

URBAN RAMBLING £1,424

VIETNAMESE MENTAL HEALTH SERVICE £3,596

VOICES WITHIN £2,020

TOTAL £85,327

Page 95



22 | P a g e

Appendix B

Group name Description Place from where 
activities are run from

AKENATUM- B 
Akenutum B is a men’s 
and women mixed 
Caribbean music group 
for people who have 
limited to no experience 
playing an instrument.

13 Whitethorn Street, 
Bow, E3 4DA.

ASUMJWE Asumjwe is an African 
Caribbean women’s 
group that meets the 
needs of women of these 
cultural backgrounds and 
encourages them to be 
social, inclusive and 
network. The group 
provides a variety of 
women’s focused African 
and Caribbean culture, 
creativity, health and 
development activities.

13 Whitethorn Street, 
Bow, E3 4DA.

BOYAAN ST HILDAS Boyaan and Go are an 
Asian women’s support 
group that meet weekly to 
go to the gym and 
exercise and stay fit in 
order to help their 
physical and mental well-
being.

The group offers a door to 
door mini bus service for 
its members and runs in 
the community.

BURCHAM STREET 
GARDENS 

Burcham Street Gardens 
are a weekly gardening 
group that helps members 
improve their gardening, 
arts and crafts 
knowledge. The group 
inspire creativity and 
helps reduce social 
isolation.

96 Burcham St, E1 0S

CAFÉ NIA Café NiA are an African 
Caribbean mixed support 
group that takes place 
fortnightly

13 Whitethorn Street, 
Bow, E3 4DA.

COOL TO BELIEVE Cool to believe is a peer 
support/ therapy group for 
sharing experiences of 
living with paranoia, 

1 William Place, London, 
E3 5ED.

Page 96



23 | P a g e

distressing beliefs and 
related issues such as 
anxiety, isolation and 
depression.

EXPRESSIONS WITH 
ART 

Expressions with art are a 
mixed men’s and 
women’s art based group 
that meet once a week 
every Wednesday and 
also go on visits to the 
museum, art gallery and 
exhibitions.

437 Saints David square, 
Westferry road, E14 
3WH.

FEEL GOOD FRIDAY Feel Good Friday are  a 
lively social drop in group 
that meet every Friday 
week at Bowhaven day 
centre, members socialise 
with one another, make 
cakes, watch movies and 
cook a meal together 
every week.

1 William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

HANDY CRAFTS Handy crafts is a mixed 
group with mostly women 
the group is an ethnically 
and culturally diverse 
group that meet every 
Thursday once a week to 
do knitting, cake baking, 
basket weaving, jewellery 
making and candle 
making

Bowhaven day centre, 1 
William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

KUSHI Kushi group is an Asian 
women’s that meet every 
Tuesday to socialise, go 
to gym and spa and once 
a month outings and 
activities

Bowhaven day centre, 1 
William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

MELODY MAKERS Melody makers are a 
mixed men’s and 
women’s music group that 
support people through 
musical activities such as; 
singing, song writing, 
playing instruments, 
performing and learning.

Bowhaven day centre, 1 
William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

MINDFULLNESS 
PHOTOGRAPHY

Mindfulness photography 
is a mixed men’s and 
women’s photography 
group for social 
interaction offering the 

The group currently run in 
the community every 
Friday.

Page 97



24 | P a g e

opportunity to learn how 
to use creative skill to 
improve overall well-being 
and reduce social 
isolation.

NEW START PAMPER 
GROUP 

New Start Pamper are a 
women’s self-image 
pampering group that 
gives members a positive 
self-image using beauty 
therapy, manicures, 
pedicures, massages and 
alternative therapies by a 
professional.

1 William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

PEACE OF MIND Peace of Mind is a 
Bangladeshi Men’s social/ 
therapy group that help 
engage with the wider 
community. The group 
meet at Open House, 13 
Whitethorn Street, Bow, 
E3 4DA to discuss current 
affairs, discuss each 
other’s mental health 
problems and social 
activities. Members have 
benefited immensely from 
social interaction and 
peer support.  

Open House, 13 
Whitethorn Street, Bow, 
E3 4DA

PERFORMING ARTS 
AND CINEMA GROUP

Performing arts and 
cinema group are a 
community based mixed 
men’s and women’s 
social group that meet 
fortnightly to go to the 
cinema and theatre the 
group has helped 
members stay out of 
hospital and decreases 
social isolation.   

Community based. 

PHONENIX Phoenix is a mixed men’s 
and women’s peer 
support group for all 
forms of self-harm. The 
group meet once a week. 

Bowhaven day centre, 1 
William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

SOHBA THAIBA Sohba Thaiba is an 
Arabic women’s support 
group that runs in the 
community, members 

Idea store and community 
based locations.

Page 98



25 | P a g e

socialise over activities 
such as meeting in the 
idea store, charity events, 
and cinema and lunch 
once a month. Members 
of the group see life more 
positively.

TIME TO TALK PEER 
SUPPORT 

Time to talk is a mixed 
men’s and women’s 
therapy group that 
discusses individual 
mental health issues and 
experiences within a 
comfortable and familiar 
environment.

Bowhaven day centre, 1 
William Place, London, 
E3 5ED.

THAI BOXING 
ACADEMY

Thai Boxing fighter’s 
academy is a mixed 
men’s and women’s Muay 
Thai boxing group that 
helps members keep it.

Derbyshire St, Bethnal 
Green, Lomdon E2 6HG.

THE SONG BIRDS The songbirds are mixed 
men’s and women’s 
singing group who chose 
and write their own songs.

Toynbee Hall, Community 
Centre, 52 Old Castle 
Street, London E1 7AJ

UPBEAT Upbeat are a mixed 
men’s and women’s 
Pilates group that runs 
every Saturday at to help 
improve physical and 
mental wellbeing

10 Minerva Street, 
Bethnal Green E2 9EH

URBAN RAMBLING Urban rambling are a 
community based mixed 
men’s and women’s 
exercise group that meet 
to do bi-monthly exercise 
through walking, 
photography and 
socialising 

Community based

VIETNAMESE MENTAL 
HEALTH SERVICE

VMHS are a mixed men’s 
and women’s Vietnamese 
healthy eating, cooking 
and outings group that 
meet every. 

Thursday at 25 Fairstreet, 
London, SE1 2XF

VOICES WITHIN Voices within are a mixed 
men’s and women’s 
support group for people 
who hear voices, who 
may have other unusual 

Bowhaven day centre, 1 
William Place, London, 
E3 5ED

Page 99



26 | P a g e

perceptions as well as 
additional mental health 
needs.

Page 100



27 | P a g e

Appendix 2: Advert published 19/12/2017

2016-17: Small Grants for Mental Health User-Led 
Groups 
Grant Application for 2018/20
Grant Application for 2011/12
APPLICATIONS ARE REQUESTED FOR MENTAL HEALTH USER-LED GROUP FUNDING. 

To be eligible for a grant, your group must:

a. Support residents of Tower Hamlets with identified mental health needs aged over 18

b. Be led by mental health service users 

i) Existing funded groups:- to demonstrate performance (track record) of being a 

user-led group. 

ii) New groups:- to demonstrate experience or aspiration for being a user-led group 

iii) All groups should have a co-facilitator 

c. Provide peer support, therapeutic or social activities

d. Provide a quality service to an active membership

e. Priority will be given to groups that provide activities that take place out of hours

f. Priority will be given to groups that target users who are currently under represented in 

the overall funding scheme

g. Priority will be given to groups who demonstrate a commitment to the agreed outcomes 

and outputs

h. Priority will be given to groups who demonstrate a commitment to sustainable 

development

The maximum grant award to any user-led group is £5,000. Please note due to a finite 

budget for the small grants, the level of grant awards to successful groups will depend on the 

number of total applications.

Deadline for returning all small grants application is Wednesday 31st January 2018

For an application pack please contact:

Charlotte Spirgel-Sinclair (Co Production and Involvement Manager – 
Community Options) 
Telephone: t: 03300 538 122, m: 07703472588
E-mail: Charlotte.S-Sinclair@community-options.org.uk

Page 101



28 | P a g e

Page 102



29 | P a g e

Appendix 3: Application Timetable

Small Grants for Mental Health User-Led Groups 

Application Timetable 2018-20 Funding

19th December 2016 Advert goes out 

Wednesday 31st January 2018 
at 5pm

Deadline for return of all funding Applications to be emailed to: 
Charlotte.S-Sinclair@community-options.org.ukor

posted to:

Charlotte Spirgel-Sinclair

Community Options
86 Old Montague Street

London

E1 5NN

1st, 2nd and 5th February 
2018  

Assessment of applications 

6th, 7th and 8th February 
2018

Telephone / meetings with new and/or existing applicants where 
necessary

16th February 2018 Recommendation Report to DMT 

5th March 2018 Award confirmation letters to successful applicants 
15th February 2018 Successful applicants to return Signed Terms and Conditions and 

to confirm bank details 
Week beginning 9thApril 2018 Authorise payment to successful groups subject to the receipt of 

signed Terms and Conditions and confirmation of bank details 

For further information about the applications’ process, you can contact:

Charlotte Spirgel-Sinclair- Co-Production and Involvement Manager at Community Options
86 Old Montague Street, London, E1 5NN t: 03300 538 122,  m: 07703472588
Charlotte.S-Sinclair@community-options.org.uk 

Page 103

mailto:Charlotte.S-Sinclair@community-options.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Determination Sub Committee

5 December 2017

Report of: Ann Sutcliffe 
Classification:
Unrestricted 

Affordable Housing Grant Programme 2016-19 Second Round 

Lead Member Councillor Rachel Blake, Cabinet Member for 
Strategic Development and Waste.

Originating Officer(s) Mark Baigent
Wards affected All wards 
Key Decision? Yes
Community Plan Theme Great Place to live 

1. Executive Summary
1.1  In December 2015, The Commissioners agreed £7.06 million of retained RTB        
receipts could be used to set up a Local Housing Affordable Grant Programme for 
the period 2016/19 for the provision of affordable housing in Tower Hamlets.

1.2  At the same time the Commissioners endorsed the process and timetable within 
which the programme would operate, part of which included a framework for 
continuous market engagement to facilitate future expenditure of the retained 
receipts.

1.3  This report is intended to update the Sub Committee of any changes to the 
grant arrangements and timetable approved by Commissioners on 12th April 2016  
as well as provide details of the bids received as part of the continuous market 
engagement process.

1.4 The backstop date of December 2019 has so far proved to be a disincentive for 
Registered Providers (RPs) to apply for this funding. This report therefore seeks the 
Sub Committee’s approval to revise the backstop date to December 2020 thereby 
making this funding more attractive to RPs.

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 5.4



 

2. Recommendations

The Grants Determination Sub Committee is recommended to:  

2.1 Consider and endorse Officers’ recommendations to award, subject to the 
necessary budget approval by the Mayor in Cabinet in January 2018, Right To Buy 
grant funding for  the amounts listed to the Registered Providers outlined in point  4.3 
of the report. In addition, allow 10% uplift to the agreed amounts to take account of 
potential increases in build or acquisition costs.

2.2 Note the variations to the bid submitted by the Registered Provider Arhag that 
were subsequently approved by the Mayor on the 11th August 2017.

2.3 Note the change in the scheme completion date for 34-40 Bow Road E3 being 
delivered by Arhag.

2.4 In respect to an existing grant approval to East End Homes, approve the change 
in purchase completion date and the grant purpose to be extended to include the 
purchase of residential properties on the open market.

2.5 Authorise the Corporate Director of Place to agree extensions of time on 
schemes approved for grant funding, which shall not in any event exceed December 
2020. 

2.6 Authorise the Corporate Director, Place, to agree the terms of, and enter into, 
any contractual or ancillary documentation to give effect to the above 
recommendations, with recommendation 2.1 to be effected only upon budgetary 
approval by the Mayor in Cabinet in January 2018.

Page 106



THIS PAGE TO BE DELETED BEFORE PUBLICATION

Consultation and Version Control
[Please state version number and all changes must be tracked or report will not be 
accepted]
Version Number 1.0

[Please update]
Version Date 16/08/17

Name Title Date 
Consulted

Date 
Cleared

Version

Ann Sutcliffe Corporate Director
Department Finance 
Corporate Finance
Legal Services

Decision Type
Key 
Decision?

Urgent 
Decision?

Exempt from 
Call-In?

Restricted Report or 
Partially Restricted (e.g. 
appendix)?

Yes No Yes/No?* No

*If the answer is yes make sure the forthcoming decision on the website states this 
or else the decision cannot be taken.

Further details on the procedure for Urgent Decisions can be found in the Intranet 
Library and the What to Do with Your Decision If guidance note.

THIS PAGE TO BE DELETED BEFORE PUBLICATION 

Page 107

http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=FP3%20-%20Executive%20Decisions%20Urgency%20Procedures&ID=4604&RPID=2147812&sch=doc&cat=13011&path=13011
http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=FP3%20-%20Executive%20Decisions%20Urgency%20Procedures&ID=4604&RPID=2147812&sch=doc&cat=13011&path=13011
http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD4687&ID=4687&RPID=2147819&sch=doc&cat=13048&path=13048


3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

3.1 On 12th October 2015, the Mayor in Cabinet approved a capital programme to 
address the issues around the accumulated Right to Buy Receipts and the 
conditions for their expenditure. This included a range of measures, one of which 
was the provision of £7.06 million to Registered Providers towards the delivery of 
affordable housing units for rent for letting to housing applicants on the Council’s 
Housing Waiting List. The Commissioners approved this on 2nd December 2015.

3.2 An advertisement and bidding pack inviting Registered Providers to submit 
applications as part of the continuous market engagement process were placed on 
the Council’s website on the 15th February 2017. RPs were also formally advised 
individually.

3.3 To qualify to submit a bid, RPs were required to demonstrate their ability to 
satisfy the following criteria :-

a) Have knowledge of the Borough’s housing needs.
b) Be a signed up member of the Common Housing Register or be able to 

sign up to it.
c) Have a management arm based in the Borough.
d) Be easily accessible to their new tenants.
e) Have extensive experience of affordable housing development. 
f) Be included on the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) published list 

of RPs.
g) Have the financial liquidity needed to successfully deliver a development 

programme over period of the grant scheme
h) Consider the prerequisite that priority will be given to schemes with 

planning permission or in the planning process to enable them to meet the 
required deadline of December 2019 for completed schemes.

3.4 Interested bidders were advised full submissions must be received by 12 noon 
on 31st March 2017. Two detailed bids were received by the deadline from East End 
Homes and Swan Housing Association. 

3.5 The Bids were examined and a précis compiled by Officers against the criteria 
noted in the grant pack. Details of the summarised bids are attached as Appendix A. 

4 Approval Process 

4.1 Points of clarification and any areas of concern with the bids have been 
discussed with the respective RPs.

Page 108



4.2 Approval for grant funding was assessed on the basis that priority is given for 
schemes that meet the LBTH specific strategic criteria of :-

 Deliverability – This is of paramount importance. The scheme must be 
deliverable by December 2020.  Milestones will be set and the grant may 
be repayable if they are not achieved.  

 Affordability – preference is given to homes that are most affordable to 
local residents.

 Tenancies – preference is given to homes with longer tenancies as the 
RTB receipts fund permanent social/affordable rented accommodation.

 The grant element will represent a maximum of 30% of the scheme cost 
and can only be utilised for the replacement of Affordable Rented Units 
although this can be part of a larger mixed tenure development.

 Delivery of other strategic objectives of the Council and wider community 
benefits. 

 Accessibility – Homes for residents with disabilities will be fully accessible 
and preference will be for wheelchair housing located on the ground floor. 
Preference will also be given to schemes that assist the rehousing of 
households with disabled members. No less than 10% of the rented stock 
in the scheme will be wheelchair units.

 Schemes that fit in with the Planning or supported Borough Housing 
Investment Strategy e.g. Whitechapel Master Plan area

 Schemes that exceed the minimum planning requirements for the 
provision of Affordable Housing.

4.3 The process outlined above culminated in Officers recommending that Swan and  
East End Homes be awarded grant funding for the amounts detailed in the table 
below, subject to the necessary budgetary approval.

Registered 
Provider 

Scheme Num
Rent 

Num
Int.

Num 
Mar.

TH 
Living 
Rent

London 
Afford.
Rent 

Grant
   £

1 East End 
Homes 

Various 
sites on 
East End 
Homes 
existing 
land 

5 0 0 2 3 £375,000

Page 109



2 Swan HA Land 
bound by 
Watts  
Grove & 
Gale St 
E3

20 45 0 16 4 £2,439,760

(Grant requested will contribute 30% of scheme costs associated with the rented       
element).

4.4 Terms of the grant to RPs will be covered by a grant agreement that will be a 
contract between the parties for each scheme to ensure compliance.

5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

5.1 Doing nothing has been considered, However, this could result in the Council 
having to pay RTB receipts to central government with interest (compounded 4% 
above base rate), in line with the conditions of usage set down by the DCLG. 
Therefore, this programme could be considered to be an efficient use of the current 
available resources.  

5.2 In considering whether to repay the RTB receipts to central government, the 
Council has the duty to consider not only the financial impact on the HRA but also 
the provision of affordable housing, the acute housing need in the borough, and 
service enhancements made possible through the use of the RTB Receipts. 

5.3 Giving up the one-for-one RTB receipts would imply that the Council would not 
take the opportunity of exercising greater control over the provision of affordable 
housing.  Instead, funding affordable housing delivery by the housing association 
sector allows the Council to target its own priorities, without the restraints of the 
conditions of GLA grant and the requirements of the HCA Capital Guide.

6. DETAILS OF REPORT

6.1 ARHAG Re -Submission 

6.2 On 12th April 2016, the Commissioners approved £547,631 of grant funding from 
the Local Affordable Housing Grant programme to Registered Provider ARHAG, to 
deliver a small scheme on their land in Bow Road E3 with a completion date of 
December 2017.

6.3 The original scheme was to deliver 10, mainly 1 and 2 bedroom properties, 8 of 
which were to be charged at slightly higher than current social rents levels and 2 for 
market sale.

Page 110



6.4  ARHAG have since changed the original design in response to Planning 
comments and are now proposing a ground floor 3 bedroom wheelchair accessible 
home for rent, which is a better outcome than the original application.

6.5 The design changes have had a negative effect on the viability and timetable for 
completion of the scheme, resulting in ARHAG incorporating an additional 1 bed flat 
for private sale. They will now be selling 2 x 1 bed flats and 1 x studio unit.

6.6 The rents for the 1 and 2 bedroom flats will be £144.26 and £152.73 respectively; 
whilst the rent for the 3 bed wheelchair property will be £161.22, (all are at social 
target rent levels).

6.7 The proposed 10 unit scheme, approved by an Individual Mayor Decision on 11th 
August 2017, would therefore comprise 3 units for private sale and 7 for social rent, 
at the rents outlined above. The completion date will now be 31st December 2020.   

6.8 The original grant allocation approved by the Commissioners was £547,631; 
ARHAG are now claiming up to £428,605, which represents 30% of the new scheme 
costs for the revised 7 rented units. 

6.9 East End Homes

6.10 On the 12th April 2016, the Commissioners approved grant funding of £870,000 
for East End Homes to enable the purchase of 8 ex right to buy properties on a 
number of their estates.  

6.11 Various internal delays meant East End Homes were not in a position to sign 
the Grant Agreement until August 2017, which in turn, impacted on the timescale 
within which the properties could be purchased. They have therefore requested an 
extension until 31st December 2020 to complete the purchases.

6.12 East End Homes advise that the high value of properties on their estates has 
been prohibitive to purchasing ex- right to buy homes on their estates.  EEH have 
therefore asked for the original grant permission to be amended to allow them to 
purchase residential properties on the open market rather than just ex- RTB on their 
own estates. This will give them the flexibility to purchase homes in cheaper parts of 
the Borough. Once purchased, they will be let through the Common Housing 
Register at Tower Hamlets Living Rents.

6.13 Continuous Market Engagement  

6.14 The Council’s significant retained receipts from the disposal of properties under 
Right to Buy legislation must be used for the provision of new social housing in 
accordance with the terms of the agreements that the Council has entered into with 
the DCLG. One-for-one RTB receipts can only be used to fund up to 30% of the cost 
of Social Rented or Affordable Rented units.

6.15 The Council launched the continuous market engagement process in February 
2017 and received 2 applications. Summary details are provided below.

Page 111



6.16 East End Homes

Grant requested: £375,000 to provide 5 new infill properties on various estates in 
their ownership. 

Grant per unit = £75,000 

Unit Mix = 2x1B2P @£144.26pw = LAR

                 1x2B4P @ £152.73pw = LAR

                 2x1B2P @ £202.85pw = THLR

6.17 Swan Housing Association 

Grant requested: £2,439,760 to provide 20 units at Watts Grove E3, on vacant land 
in their ownership

Grant per unit   = £121,988

Unit Mix = 7x1B2P @ £202.85 =THLR

                 9 x2B3P @ £223.14 = THLR

                 4x 3B5P @ £161.22 = LAR

6.18 Swan are keen to introduce some rented units into the scheme. Their initial 
submission provided a 100% intermediate scheme. The right to buy grant will 
facilitate the provision of 20 affordable units and reduce the overall unit costs. 

7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

7.1 The Mayor in Cabinet on 6th October 2015 approved a programme to utilise the 
significant levels of Right to Buy receipts that the Council has retained for the 
provision of replacement social housing. It was agreed that £7.065 million of the 
receipts would be allocated towards a Local Affordable Housing Grant scheme for 
Registered Providers of Social Housing (RPs).

7.2 The Authority’s contribution is limited to 30% of the cost of the eligible 
expenditure incurred on replacement social housing, with the registered provider 
(RP) being responsible for funding the remaining 70% of the cost of the replacement 
social housing being built. Evidence of eligible expenditure must be submitted by the 
RP to the Council to ensure that all Government regulations for the use of retained 
capital receipts are met.

Page 112



7.3 Following the completion of the application process for the programme and 
subsequent Commissioner or Grants Determination Sub-Committee approvals for 
the funding of various projects, together with subsequent amendments to the 
schemes, the table below shows the current approvals in place. These include a 
contingency of up to 10% of the grant sum to allow for a possible increase in build or 
acquisition costs. This contingency will only be available to the RP if officers are 
satisfied that the costs are unavoidable.

 Revised Schemes - December 2017 Amount Contingency TOTAL
  
1 Commissioners meeting: April 12th 2016  
 ARHAG (new build scheme) £428,605 £42,861 £471,466
 East End Homes (buybacks) £870,000 £87,000 £957,000
  
2 Commissioners meeting: July 5th 2016  
 Peabody (new-build scheme) £1,940,732 £0 £1,940,732
 Family Mosaic (new-build scheme) £1,118,944 £40,000 £1,158,944
  
 New approvals sought in this report  
3 East End Homes (new-build scheme) *£375,000 *£37,500 £412,500
 Swan (new-build scheme) £2,439,760 *£243,976 £2,683,736
    
  £7,173,041 £451,337 £7,624,378

7.4 Approving all the new schemes would exceed the approved capital budget. It is 
therefore proposed that the Swan Housing Association scheme is approved at 
£2,439,760 with an ‘in-principle’ decision that the budget will be increased to 
£2,683,736 if additional funding is approved for the scheme as part of the 2018-19 
budget process. Similarly, an ‘in-principle’ decision is sought on the total East End 
Homes scheme pending subsequent budget approval. All the ‘in-principle’ approval 
items are marked with an asterisk in the table above, and when excluded reduce the 
approved grant commitments to £6.968 million i.e. within the approved capital budget 
of £7.065 million.

7.5 As the Council retains responsibility for spending a sufficient amount on 
replacement social housing within the required timescales, in the event that RPs fail 
to spend enough there is a risk that the resources will be payable to the 
Government, with the authority being liable for a significant interest penalty. It is 
therefore crucial that the Authority continues to closely monitor the progress on all 
replacement social housing projects funded by retained receipts, whether the 
expenditure is incurred by third parties or forms part of the substantial Council 
managed initiatives.

8. LEGAL COMMENTS 

8.1 The report sets out the recommendations to:

Page 113



 Award Right to Buy grant funding to two Registered Providers in the amounts 
set out at paragraph 7.3, subject to budgetary approval;

 Approve an amendment to an existing grant approval with East End Homes to 
extend the previously agreed completion date and to allow the funds to be 
used to purchase properties on the open market; and

 Approve extensions to the deadline by which schemes relevant schemes are 
to be completed, to be determined by the Corporate Director of Place, but with 
a longstop date of 31 December 2020.

Budgetary approval 

8.2 The Council’s Chief Finance Officer, for the purposes of section 151 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, has put in place financial regulations and 
procedures for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs.  
Pursuant to financial procedures FP 3.3(5) and 3.3(6), Chief Officers may only 
proceed with projects when there is a capital estimate adopted and adequate 
capital resources have been identified. 

8.3 Recommendation 2.1 seeks the approval to provide grant funding to two 
Registered Providers for the provision of affordable housing units. The funding 
is currently outside the approved capital budget and so the decision taken 
must be subject to budgetary approval, which is tabled for Cabinet in January 
2018.

Grant funding

8.4 Whilst there is no strict legal definition of grant, a grant is in the nature of a gift 
and is based in trust law. There will be many grants which are made by the 
Council for the purpose of discharging one or more of its statutory duties. In 
this case, the Council is not under a legal duty to provide these payments 
and, whilst the Council controls the purpose for which the payments are being 
spent, they are considered a grant discretionary in nature.

8.5 Affordable Housing Grants are supported by the Council’s general power of 
competence. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 gives the Council the power 
to do anything that individuals generally may do, subject to specified 
restrictions and limitations imposed by other legislation. There are no such 
restrictions and limitations and therefore the general power of competence 
can be applied.

8.6 The Council must operate a fair and open application procedure to process a 
request to obtain funding. Requests for grant funding should ordinarily be 
measured against a predetermined set of criteria and the criteria itself must be 
fair and transparent. The report sets out the application procedure and the 
criteria that apply to the grant funding.

8.7 The grant is supported by a contractual arrangement between the Council and 
the grant recipient. The grant agreement includes a clear monitoring process 
against defined parameters in order for the Council to demonstrate that 
delivery is in line with the application.

Page 114



8.8 The Council must ensure that no part of the funds issued represent a profit 
element to any of the recipients. The inclusion of profit or the opportunity of 
making a profit from the grant or third parties indicates that the grant is really 
procurement activity and would otherwise be subject to the Council’s 
Procurement Procedures and other appropriate domestic and European law. 

8.9 The Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union provides that certain 
government activities may be prohibited if they give an advantage in a 
selective way to certain entities, which may affect competition within the 
internal market. Those activities may amount to permitted or prohibited state 
aid, depending on the circumstances. In this case, the purpose of the grants is 
to provide affordable housing which would be “aid having a social character” 
and they are therefore permitted.

Amendments and extensions to grant funding

8.10 The report seeks authority to amend the terms of certain grant funding, 
including extending the timeframe within which expenditure must be incurred 
by the recipient. Any agreed amendments should be formalised in writing 
between the Council and the recipient, which may involve a contract variation. 

Best value and equalities

8.11 The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. These considerations have been addressed in 
paragraph 10 of the report.

8.12 When making decisions, the Council must have due regard to the need to 
eliminate unlawful, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need 
to foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not (the public sector equality duty). These considerations 
are addressed in paragraph 9 of the report.

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

9.1 The delivery of more affordable homes will help give households, particularly
those from black, Asian, or other minority ethnic backgrounds on low incomes
(many of whom are benefit dependent) a secure home. This has the potential
to create an environment for household members – particularly children – to
improve their educational attainment which will in turn help them access
sustainable employment in  the future. The delivery of more housing that is
wheelchair accessible and meets lifetime homes standards is a proven
method to help reduce inequalities.

9.2 The provision of additional rented schemes can potentially impact on
community cohesion. The amount of private housing developed for sale and
private rent has been particularly high in Tower Hamlets. However, the large

Page 115



majority of this housing is inaccessible to residents due to high house prices.
Therefore, maximising the amount of affordable housing for rent wherever
possible can contribute to community cohesion. This can be achieved by
reducing the number of households on the Common Housing Register waiting
for a home, whilst also giving an opportunity for local applicants to access low
cost home ownership opportunities.

9.3 The Local Affordable Housing Grant scheme directly makes a significant
contribution to the core Local Plan target of new affordable homes delivery.
The programme also makes a wider contribution to Community Plan
objectives, such as on increasing household recycling; reducing crime
(through Secure By Design standards); and increasing skills and training
opportunities. The proposal is a good ‘strategic fit’ with the Community Plan
and will help Tower Hamlets deliver both the housing and sustainable
communities priorities identified.

10. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This is a capital programme which proposes to make use of the Council
resources in order to fund partners in the delivery of affordable homes rather
than be required to pay interest to the government on unspent receipts. It
places the responsibility for 70% of the costs of building replacement one for
one homes on RPs, thereby protecting the borrowing margin of the Council
and making possible the delivery of larger programme. 

11. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

11.1 The schemes will comply with the Council’s requirements on the reduction of
carbon emissions, energy consumption along with green and sustainable
construction delivery.

12 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

12.1 A Grant Agreement has been will be drawn up by Solicitors and issued with
the bidding documents.
Bidders have provided proof of their ability to finance the scheme in the form
of a funder’s letter.

12.2 All bidders are Members of the Common Housing Register and to sign up to
the Standard Nominations Agreement so the Council will benefit fully from the
programme.

12.3 An audit of the programme is planned and provided for in the Legal
Agreement.

12.4 The scheme adopted an open book approach so the Council has been able to
scrutinise the project finance.

12.5 The qualifying criteria has provided safeguards against organisations that
would not have the capacity, expertise or financial stability to deliver the

Page 116



programme.  

13.0 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

13.1 The schemes proposed will be designed to Secure By Design Standards. The
conditions of the housing grant programme will include the need to meet the
London Housing Design Guide and other standards of building including
Secure by Design.

13.2 The impact on the local community and the local environment will be factors in
assessing the quality of a scheme proposal. RPs will be encouraged to identify
sites which if developed, would improve the safety and security of the local
communities.

13.3 The role of design in “designing out crime “will be part of the solution for
addressing community safety hot spots in the borough. In addition, the natural
surveillance offered by the new developments is likely to improve safety in the
respective areas.

14.0 SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS

14.1  N/A

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE

Appendices
 Appendix A: Summary of Affordable Housing Grant Bids

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

 NONE

Officer contact details for documents:
Name Title Contact for information
Jen Pepper Affordable Housing 

Programme Manager
020 7364 2528

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF LBTH AFFORDABLE HOUSING GRANT BIDS - 2ND ROUND CME MARCH 2017

East End Homes 
Grant Required £ 375,000
Scheme cost per unit £250,000
Grant amount sought per unit £75,000  =30%
Total Scheme Cost £1,250,000.00
Total Scheme Cost of rented units £1,250,000.00
Scheme outline various disused spaces on EEH estates. Gordon House,  

Glamis Estate E1 (2 units); Caretaker's store Loweswater Hse E3
Westferry Bungalow Aretheusa Hse E14; Roslyn Hse storage area 
Cable St E1 

Total Number of units 5
Num of affordable units grant req to fund 5

Wheelchair Units? 2X1b2P
W/C parking? No
Space standards Met? not provided 
Planning Status    Status No application submitted 
Intended Planning  submission date ? July/Aug 2017
Date Board Approved obtained? 23.3.2017
RP Owned land? yes
GLA approved funding requested? No
Additional funding arrangements £10m extended loan facility from Barclays 
Affordable mix/Rent details 2x1B2P @ £144.26pw = LAR

2x1B2P @ £202.85pw = THLR
1x2B4P @ £152.73 = LAR

Grant drawdown proposed Q2 (2017)  £31, 250
Q3                £93,750
Q4                £93,750
Q5                £93,750
Q6                £62,500

Scheme break even point Year 1 following completion 

London Plan design standards met? Yes 
Internal design & ER requirements met? Yes 
Proposed Start on site Jan-18
Proposed Practical Completion Sep-19

Page 119



Swan HA
£2,439,760
£406,630
£121,988 = 30%
£26,179,589
£8,132,595
Land bound by Watts Grove Bow E3

65
20 Remainder = 45 x S/O (18 x1B; 18X2B; 9x3B)

4 4 x 3B5P
2
yes 
Development Committee approval obtained  Oct 2017

Dec-15
yes
GLA have agreed to grant fund the S/O units @ £28k per unit 
Swan to fund with extended loan facility of £477m already received.
7x 1B2P @£202.85  = THLR
9x 2B3P @ £223.14 = THLR
4x3B5P  @ £161.22 = LAR (W/C)(W/C Units)

Q4 (2017)   £1,219,880
Q3 (2019)   £1,219,880 

Meets RPs approval criteria for appraisal. Break even 30 years from PC
at the point staircasing completes on all units. 
Yes
Yes 
Feb-18
Oct-19

SUMMARY OF LBTH AFFORDABLE HOUSING GRANT BIDS - 2ND ROUND CME MARCH 2017

Page 120



Grants Determination Sub Committee 
5th December 2017

Report of: Zena Cooke, Corporate Director Resources Unrestricted

Grants Register 2017/18 – Q1 and Q2 update

Originating Officer(s) Steve Hill - Head of Benefits Services 
Mohammed Ahad – Programmes Officer 

Wards affected All wards 
Key Decision? Yes
Community Plan Theme All

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of the Council’s Grants Register is to have a central database of all live 
Council grants. The register is updated on a quarterly basis and disseminated to grant 
managers for information.

The grants register was a recommendation of DCLG Commissioners who identified 
that a central database of grants wasn’t readily available when they arrived in 2015. 
Initially the register included details of grants and decisions made on the distribution of 
those grants. The register has gone through a number of iterations and now includes 
further information such as whether the grant is delegated, Cabinet Leads and spend 
to date. 

This report gives an update of the first two quarters of 2017/18 and details the current 
live grants and any decisions made against them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Grants Determination Sub Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the grants register and comment on what additional information the grants 
register could contain for future meetings.

1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.2 A decision is required so officers are clear on what additional information the 
grants register could include for future meetings.

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 Grants Determination Sub Committee could request further information or alter 
the recommendations.

Page 121

Agenda Item 5.5



3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1 The grants register was first devised in 2015 as a recommendation of DCLG 
Commissioners who identified that the Council didn’t have a central database of 
all grants and decisions with regards to those grants. The initial iteration of the 
grants register included a list of the grants, budgets, grant recipients, lead 
officers and decisions made. The register has however evolved and now 
includes details of spend, whether the grant has been delegated and the 
duration of the grant. The register continues to evolve with information regarded 
as useful being added on an annual basis. For example the 2017/18 register 
now monitors spend on a quarterly basis as this is something that KPMG 
request on an annual basis as part of their audit of Council finances. 

3.2 The register is sent out to lead Council officers and updated on a quarterly 
basis. It envisaged that it will be considered by the Grants Determination Sub-
Committee on a 6-monthly basis.

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

4.1   The grant register provides a framework in accordance with the 
recommendations of the DCLG Commissioners.

4.2 The register will promote good financial stewardship whilst aiding efficient 
resource management.

4.3 This report will have no financial impact on general fund resources.

5. LEGAL COMMENTS 

5.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from keeping a central list of live 
grants provided that the Council ensures that it does not release any 
information where the public onterest in knowing the information is outweighed 
by the public interest in maintaining the information as exempt for the purposes 
of the Council’s constitution and executive arrangements in accordance with the 
law.  However, it is unlikely that general information such as total amount of 
grant and specific items of expenditure / results of the expenditure would be 
required to be exempted from public disclosure.

5.2 Therefore, the final format and any subsequent changes as the table evolves 
should be agreed in consultation with the Council’s Monitoring Officer.

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

6.1. The grants register details grants to a number of sectors which promote the 
aspirations of One Tower Hamlets. This includes grants to individual residents 
and VCS organisations. 

6.2. The contribution of VCS Organisations helping to deliver One Tower
Hamlets objectives and priorities are explicitly recognised and articulated within 
the Council’s VCS Strategy. 

Page 122



6.2 VCS Organisations play a key role in delivering services that address 
inequality, improve cohesion and increase community leadership. The 
deliveries of these services are real examples of ‘One Tower Hamlets’ in 
practice.

7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The register gives a snapshot of grants that are currently live in the Council and 
allows greater analysis to identify best value in what’s being delivered.

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

8.1 There is no direct impact on sustainable action for a greener environment 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

9.1 A number of different risks arise from any funding organisations and individuals.  
The key risks are:

 The funding may not be fully utilised i.e. allocations remain unspent and 
outcomes are not maximised

 The funding may be used for purposes that have not been agreed e.g. in 
the case of fraud

 The organisation may not in the event have the capacity to achieve the 
contracted outputs/outcomes 

9.2 Individual departments of the Council have in place processes to ensure that 
risks are reduced where possible and mitigations are put in place. 

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There is no direct impact on crime and disorder reduction implications

11. SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS

11.1 No direct safeguard implications

Page 123



____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report:

 None

Appendices:
 Appendix 1 – GDSC Grants Register 2017/18 – Q1 & Q2 update

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

 None

Officer contact details for documents:

Steve Hill, Head of Benefits Services

Phone: 020 7364 7252 Email: steve.hill@towerhamlets.gov.uk

Page 124

mailto:steve.hill@towerhamlets.gov.uk


Page 1 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

1 Annual Street Count 750£                        -£                         10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

2 B&B budget – for rough sleepers 

where no other provision is available 

overnight

1,500£                     1,451.10£                10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

3 DAAT – Brook Drive Rehabilitation 

Centre 

7,000£                     361.00£                   10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

4 European Union and international 

reconnection budget 

5,000£                     59.25£                     10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

5 Extended Severe Weather Emergency 

Provision 

2,000£                     -£                         10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

6 Financial incentives for 

accommodation portfolio holders

200,000£                 28,400.00£              10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Private Landlords & Managing 

Agents

(13.06.17 update) Agreement to make two payments totalling £12,500 

for 17 properties delivered by Ample Properties and Ikon estates; 

payment has not yet been made, and will appear on next update.   

Allocation of 20% of incentive paid to BuildVantage 18/4/16 in 

respect of 5-year lease for 71 properties

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

7 Financial incentives for the issuing of 

Assured Short-hold tenancies

200,000£                 67,500.00£              10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

8 Personal service charge – Assessment 

beds provided by hostel 

accommodation as required for rough 

sleepers

2,200£                     -£                         10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

9 Personalised budgets for long term 

and entrenched rough sleepers 

10,000£                   1,083.93£                10158 01-Apr-17 31-Mar-18 Mark Baigent Housing Options Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

10 Ben Jonson Road Improvement Works 71,170£                   -£                         70106 01-Apr-17 01-Sep-17 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Executive Mayor John 

Biggs

No

11 WARMTH Project Phase 2 25,000£                   24,990.00£              70106 01-Apr-17 01-Sep-17 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Rachel Blake No

12 WARMTH Project Phase 3 160,000£                 -£                         70106 01-Sep-17 31-Mar-19 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Rachel Blake No

13 Schools Carbon Emission Reduction 

Programme

180,000£                 -£                         70106 01-Jun-17 31-Mar-19 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Schools RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION:

That grant funding of £240,000 to deliver the Schools Energy Retrofit 

Programme be approved.

Cllr Rachel Blake No

14 Schools Retrofit Programme 240,000£                 -£                         70106 01-Aug-17 31-Mar-19 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Schools Cllr Rachel Blake No

15 SME Carbon Reduction Project 200,000£                 -£                         70106 01-Oct-17 01-Oct-18 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Businesses Cllr Rachel Blake No

16 Zero Emissions Network 67,100£                   -£                         Paid via GLA grant 

and section 106 

from Hackney 

Council

01-Jan-17 31-Mar-19 David Tolley/Selina 

Talukdar

Environmnetal Health 

and Trading Standards

Businesses Cllr Rachel Blake Yes 

17 Ocean Regeneration Trust grant 

funding 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 

2016/2017

80,000£                   -£                         70318 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Rachel Blake Yes 

18 Private Sector Renewal Grants 

(includes : Home Repairs Grant, 

Empty Properties GrantDiscretionary 

Disabled Facilities Grant)

1,000,000£              £7,385.42 19927 - Home 

Repairs Minor 

Hazards - 19264 - 

Home Repairs Grant 

Adaptations

01 April 2016 31 March 2018 Mark Baigent Strategy, Regenerations 

and Sustainability

Residents Decsions made under delegated authority at the Home Improvement 

Agency Team Fortnightly Grants Panel.

Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

19 Historic Buildings Grants 193,901£                 -£                         55240 Owen Whalley Planning & building 

Control 

Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.35P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

12th SEPTEMBER 2017: 

DECISION

1. That the grant funding of £20,000 to the church as a contribution to 

vital repair works to the exterior of the tower be approved.

2. That the issue of a formal offer of grant to the church be approved.

3. That the Council’s contribution to the works be clearly publicised.

Cllr Rachel Blake No

21 Building Legacies Project  £                  25,000  £                          -   70107 01 June 2017 31 December 2018 Natasha Graham Enterprise Team East London Business Alliance No grant payments made as yet for 2017/2018 as yet  

1. First payment to be made on 31.10.2017 £9,000.00                            

2. Second payment to be made 30.04.18 £8,000.00                             

3. Third payment 31.10.18 £8,000.00                                

Cllr Joshua Peck No

59 ZEN Phase 2 90,000£                   -£                         tbc 01-Sep-17 01-Mar-19 David Tolley/Selina 

Talukdar

Environmnetal Health 

and Trading Standards

Businesses Approved in July MAB/IDB Cllr Rachel Blake Yes 

Place Directorate Sub-Total 2,760,621£              

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2

PLACE DIRECTORATE 

P
age 125



Page 2 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

47 Royal London Hospital Meanwhile Use 

Community Garden

 £                  40,222  £                          -   70413 Not  Yet Started Not  Yet Started Owen Whalley Planning & building 

Control 

Core Landscapes RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION:

That grant funding of £40,222 to Core Landscapes to enable the 

relocation and set-up of their community garden project in 

Whitechapel be approved.

Cllr Amina Ali No

50 Affordable Housing Grant 2016-19  The total budget 

here is £7,065,000 - 

a breakdown of 

these are in 53-58 

below 

 £        2,902,019.88  Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Registered Social Landlords RECORD OF THE INDIVIDIUAL MAYORAL DECISION ON 29th 

JULY 2017 to:

1. Approve the changes to the scheme

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Governance following 

consultation with the Corporate Director of Place to give effect to the 

changes and execute and enter into all necessary agreements; and

3. Direct that a noting report is provided to the forthcoming Grants 

Determination Sub-Committee meeting in respect of teh changes

4. Approve the extension of time

Cllr Rachel Blake No

51 Hackney Wick Station Improvements 1,000,000£              1,000,000.00£         70203 01 April 2017 31 March 2018 Owen Whalley Planning & building 

Control 

LLDC Cllr Rachel Blake Yes 

53 RP new build and buy-backs 428,605£                 -£                         19146 01 October 2017 31 March 2020 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Housing Provider - Arhag subsidiary of item 50 Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

54 RP new build and buy-backs 870,000£                 -£                         19146 01 October 2017 31 March 2020 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Housing Provider - East End 

Homes

subsidiary of item 50 Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

55 RP new build and buy-backs 1,940,732£              1,858,950.28£         19146 01 April 2017 31 March 2018 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Housing Provider - Peabody subsidiary of item 50 Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

56 RP new build and buy-backs 375,000£                 -£                         19146 01 April 2018 31 March 2020 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Housing Provider - East End 

Homes 

subsidiary of item 50 Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

57 RP new build and buy-backs 2,277,920£              -£                         19146 01 April 2018 31 March 2019 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Housing Provider - Swan subsidiary of item 50 Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

58 RP new build and buy-backs 1,151,950£              1,043,069.60£         19146 01 April 2017 31 March 2018 Mark Baigent Sustainability Service Housing Provider -Family 

Mosaic

subsidiary of item 50 Cllr Sirajul Islam Yes 

Place Directorate Sub-Total 8,084,429£              

Place Directorate GRAND TOTAL 10,845,050£            

PLACE DIRECTORATE CONT……

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2

P
age 126



Page 3 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

25 Ageing Well Small Grants  £                  20,000  £                          -   10242 N/A one-off payment, 

likely to be made in 

Q4 2017/18

N/A one-off payment, 

likely to be made in 

Q4 2017/18

Jamie Bird - Strategic 

Commissioning Officer

Keith Burns - Project 

Director: Special 

Projects (and manager 

of Ageing Well Team)

Integrated 

Commissioning

Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.35P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

12th SEPTEMBER 2017:  DECISION

1. That the reassignment of the previous ‘Small Grants for 

Pensioner’s Groups’ fund as the Ageing Well Small Grants fund be 

approved.

2. That it be noted that the value of the fund in 2017/18 is £25,000 

less £3,435 recommended to be retained for outstanding awards 

under previous years’ Small Grants for Pensioners scheme.

3. That it be approved that awards of eleven outstanding grants, 

totalling £3,435, from the 2015/16 and 2016/17 under Small Grants 

scheme be made from the newly formed fund.

4. That the process for inviting applications for the Ageing Well Small 

Grants fund 2017/18 be approved.

5. That the process for awarding the grant funding and subsequent 

monitoring arrangements be approved.

6. That responsibility for approving future awards from this fund be 

delegated to the Divisional Director Integrated Commissioning.

7. That an increase of grant payable from a maximum of £500 to a 

maximum of £600 be approved.

Cllr Denise Jones Yes

26 Mental Health User Led Grants 

2016/18

 £                  90,838  £                  33,969 33201 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-18 Carrie Kilpatrick Commissioning Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION

1. That the increased awards for the Mental Health Grants 

Programme which totals an additional £16,672 for the 2017-2018 

year of the programme be authorised.

2. The individual groups and renewed allocations listed below be 

noted (table detailed within minutes)

3. That the Mental Health User Led Grants recommended for the 

period 2017- 18 as set out at Appendix 1 to the report be noted.

Cllr Denise Jones Yes 

Health, Adults and Community 

Directorate GRAND TOTAL

110,838£                 

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2

HEALTH, ADULTS & COMMUNITY

P
age 127



Page 4 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

27 Free School Meals (Years 3 - 6, 

Primary Schools)

2,800,000£              -£                         Christine McInnes Residents Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs Yes 

28 Discretionary Awards: Budget Holding 

Lead Professional Attendance Support

21,000£                   -£                         Christine McInnes Schools Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs Yes 

29 School Clothing Grants  £                201,000  £                          -   Christine McInnes Residents RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION

2.1 That the provision by the Council of school clothing grants in 

2017/18 within the budget specified in paragraph 5.1 of the report be 

approved.

2.2 That the Corporate Director Resources or her duly authorised

representatives be authorised to be able to determine the granting of 

funds from that budget on a time for time basis for the purposes of 

carrying out the activities described in this report.

Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs No

30 Discretionary Awards:Council's Higher 

Education Awards 

600,000£                 -£                         Christine McInnes / 

Steve Grocott

Residents Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs No

31 Discretionary Awards:Tower Hamlets 

Educational Maintenance Allowance                                                                                                                 

370,000£                 -£                         Christine McInnes / Tim 

Wiliams / Sue Crane 

Residents Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs Yes 

32 Early Years Learning Programme - 

Capital

3,314,000£              -£                         Christine 

McInnes/Pauline Hoare 

Early years support providers Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs Yes 

33 Early Years Service Grant Funding 

(Training, Childminder Start-up, 

Additional Needs, Special Projects)

50,000£                   -£                         Christine 

McInnes/Pauline Hoare 

Early years support providers Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs Yes 

34 Discretionary Awards: 16 - 19 Travel 5,000£                     -£                         Christine 

McInnes/Terry Bryan

Early years support providers Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs Yes 

35 The Tower Hamlets Education 

Partnership (THE Partnership)

300,000£                 -£                         Christine McInnes Schools RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.07P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

9th MAY 2017: 

DECISION

1. That the progress in setting up the local model be noted.

2. The proposed framework for the discharge of future 

accountabilities be approved

Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs No

36 Event Fund 17/18 52,500£                   -£                         45502 Judith St John Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.07P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

9th MAY 2017: 

DECISION

That the following documents be approved:

Appendix A: - Event Fund Guidelines and Criteria

Appendix B: - EF1 Applications £501 to £2500

Appendix C: - EF2 Applications up to £500

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.35P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

12th SEPTEMBER 2017: 

DECISION

1. That the annual report of Event Fund grant applications submitted 

for Quarter 4 and the year as a whole from April 1st 2016 to March 

31st 2017, and awards approved by the Divisional Director, Sports, 

Leisure, Culture & Youth be noted.

2. That work to address communications issues identified by Grants 

Scrutiny Sub Committee be taken forward.

Cllr Abdul Mukith Yes 

37 Pocket Parks Programme  £                  30,000  £                          -   49520 Judith St John Registered Social Landlords Cllr Amina Ali No

Childrens Directorate Sub-Total 7,743,500£              

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2
CHILDRENS DIRECTORATE 

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

P
age 128



Page 5 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

46 Mayors Cup Community Grants  £                  17,250  £                          -   Judith St John Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.07P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

9th MAY 2017: 

DECISION

1. That it be noted that the Mayor’s Cup Community Grants are

funded through sponsorship money from the organisation of the

tournament.

2. That it be noted that the value of the sponsorship provided by the 

tournament sponsors is commercially sensitive and there is no 

agreement in place with sponsors to make this information publicly 

available.

3. That it be noted that 33 grant applications were received with 23 

being successful. A total of £17,250 was allocated in grant money, 

with each successful recipient organisation receiving £750.

Cllr Amina Ali No

22 School Active Grant 5,000£                     -£                         53211 01 April 2017 31 March 2018 Bola Akinfolarin Development, 

Compliance & 

Commissioning

Schools No grant payments made for 2017/2018 as yet - funding amount 

changed due to amended amount being received from TfL

Cllr Amina Ali Yes 

23 School Travel Plans Implementation 

Grants

10,000£                   -£                         53211 01 April 2017 31 March 2018 Bola Akinfolarin Development, 

Compliance & 

Commissioning

Schools No grant payments made for 2017/2018 as yet - funding amount 

changed due to amended amount being received from TfL

Cllr Amina Ali Yes 

Childrens Directorate Sub-Total 32,250£                   

Childrens Directorate GRANT 

TOTAL

7,775,750£              

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

CHILDRENS DIRECTORATE CONT…. 

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2

P
age 129



Page 6 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

38 NDR Discretionary Relief 13,000,000£            -£                          Reduction in NNDR 

Income 

Roger Jones Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr David Edgar Yes 

39 Crisis and Support Grants 700,000£                 427,815.00£            23415 01/04/2017 31/03/2018 Steve Hill Benefits Services Residents Cllr David Edgar Yes 

40 Discretionary Housing Payments 1,812,716£              844,829£                 10668 01/04/2017 31/03/2018 Steve Hill Benefits Services Residents Cllr David Edgar No

41 Emergency Funding (Revenue - 

Funding from Corporate Match 

Funding Budget)

250,000£                 151,107£                 21310 01/02/2015 On-going until funds 

are used

Steve Hill Benefits Services Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF MAYORAL INDIVIDUAL DECISION ON 29th AUGUST 

2017: 

DECISION - The Mayor is recommended to approve the officer 

recommendation not to award emergency funding based on the 

analysis set out in paragraph 5.3 of this report.

Executive Mayor John 

Biggs

No

42 Tower Hamlets ESF Community 

Grants  2016-2019

225,000£                 -£                         01/12/2017 31/03/2020 Steve Hill Benefits Services Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.35P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

12th SEPTEMBER 2017: 

DECISION

That it be agreed that organisations funded through the ESF

Community Employment Programme and are based in or using a

Council building must have an appropriate property agreement in 

place before payments can be released to them, as is the case with 

all new grant programmes going forward.

Executive Mayor John 

Biggs

Yes 

43 VCS and New Innovation Fund 220,000£                 -£                         21384 01/09/2017 £120,00 for the 

Innovation Fund 

which is on-going 

until funds are used

£100,000 contract to 

THCVS for 3 years

Steve Hill Benefits Services Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.07P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

9th MAY 2017: 

DECISION

1. That the process for awarding match-funding for crowdfunded 

projects through the Innovation Fund as detailed in paragraph 3.8 

and 3.9 be agreed.

2. That the Corporate Director Resources, be authorised, after

consultation with an officer panel including an external grant funder, 

to determine all match funding issues and to report quarterly to the 

Grants Determination Sub-Committee.

3. That the criteria for the Innovation Fund and related information set 

out in the fact sheet for the Innovation Fund as detailed in Appendix 

A be approved.

Executive Mayor John 

Biggs

No

44 Mainstream Grants - 15 to 18 

Programme (2015/2016)

3,106,000£              1,354,238£              21310 01/09/2015 31/03/2019 Steve Hill Benefits Services Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.07P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

9th MAY 2017: 

DECISION - Decisions can be found within the minutes to this 

meeting

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION - Decisions can be found within the minutes to this 

meeting

RECORD OF MAYORAL INDIVIDUAL DECISION ON 29th AUGUST 

2017: 

DECISION - Decisions can be found within the Premises Update 

Report.

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.35P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

Executive Mayor John 

Biggs

No 

49 Grant Support to Oxford House 

(Bethnal Green)

250,000£                 -£                         Neville Murton Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION

That grant funding of £250k as a contribution to Oxford House in 

support of their refurbishment project be approved.

Cllr David Edgar No

Resources Directorate GRAND 

TOTAL

19,563,716£            

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2
RESOURCES DIRECTORATE 

P
age 130



Page 7 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2016/17
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED?

FORWARD PLAN - Grants 

Decision Making Meeting

45 Syrian Vulnerable Persons 

Resettlement Programme (SVPRS)

28,889£                   -£                         Sharon Godman Residents Executive Mayor John 

Biggs

No

Law Probity & Governanace 

Directorate GRAND TOTAL 

28,889                     

TOTAL BUDGETED GRANTS 2017/2018
NO  DIRECTORATE TOTAL

1 PLACE 10,845,050£            

2 HEALTH, ADULTS & COMMUNITY 110,838£                 

3 CHILDRENS 7,775,750£              

4 RESOURCES 19,563,716£            

5 LAW, PROBITY & GOVERNANCE 28,889£                   

GRAND TOTAL 38,324,243£            

LAW, PROBITY & GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 ( Updated 30/09/2017)

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER (LIVE GRANTS)  Q1 & Q2

P
age 131



Page 8 of 8

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED? DATE OF CHANGE / REASON

46 Mayors Cup Community Grants  £                  17,250 -£                                           Judith St John Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 5.07P.M. ON TUESDAY, 

9th MAY 2017: 

DECISION

1. That it be noted that the Mayor’s Cup Community Grants are

funded through sponsorship money from the organisation of the

tournament.

2. That it be noted that the value of the sponsorship provided by the 

tournament sponsors is commercially sensitive and there is no 

agreement in place with sponsors to make this information publicly 

available.

3. That it be noted that 33 grant applications were received with 23 

being successful. A total of £17,250 was allocated in grant money, 

with each successful recipient organisation receiving £750.

Cllr Ayas Miah No Added to register after the 

18/04/2017 GDSC PAP 

meeting

47 Royal London Hospital Meanwhile Use 

Community Garden

40,222£                   -£                                           Mahbub Anam Core Landscapes RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION:

That grant funding of £40,222 to Core Landscapes to enable the 

relocation and set-up of their community garden project in 

Whitechapel be approved.

48 Schools Energy Retrofit Programme 240,000£                 Abdul J Khan Schools RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION:

That grant funding of £240,000 to deliver the Schools Energy Retrofit 

Programme be approved.

49 Grant Support to Oxford House 

(Bethnal Green)

250,000£                 -£                                           Neville Murton Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE GRANTS DETERMINATION 

(CABINET) SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 6.10P.M. ON MONDAY 10th 

JULY 2017: 

DECISION

That grant funding of £250k as a contribution to Oxford House in 

support of their refurbishment project be approved.

50 Affordable Housing Grant 2016-19 7,065,000£              -£                                            Mark Baigent Registered Social Landlords RECORD OF THE INDIVIDIUAL MAYORAL DECISION ON 29th 

JULY 2017 to:

1. Approve the changes to the scheme

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Governance following 

consultation with the Corporate Director of Place to give effect to the 

changes and execute and enter into all necessary agreements; and

3. Direct that a noting report is provided to teh forthcoming Grants 

Determination Sub-Committee meeting in respect of teh changes

4. Approve the extension of time

59 ZEN Phase 2 90,000£                   -£                                           tbc 01-Sep-17 01-Mar-19 David Tolley/Selina 

Talukdar

Environmnetal Health 

and Trading Standards

Businesses Approved in July MAB/IDB Cllr Shiria Khatun Yes 

REF NO. NAME OF GRANT BUDGET 2017/18
SPEND TO DATE 

(UPTO 30/09/2017)
COST CENTRE

GRANT START 

DATE
GRANT END DATE

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
SERVICE RECIPIENTS DECISIONS MADE LEAD MEMBER DELEGATED? DATE OF CHANGE / REASON

20 Whitechapel High Street Fund 6,000£                     70413 ALL SPENT PRIOR 

TO 17-18 - REMOVE

ALL SPENT PRIOR 

TO 17-18 - REMOVE

Owen Whalley Planning & building 

Control 

Voluntary & Community 

Organisation

Cllr Joshua Peck No

24 School Walking Grants -£                         53211 Bola Akinfolarin Schools Grant rebadged and included as part grant ref 22 which is now as 

part of newly titled 'School Active Grants' rather than seeprate 

walking and cycle grants 

Cllr Amina Ali Yes 

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 CHANGE CONTROL LOG (NEW GRANTS IN FOR Q1 & Q2) - UPDATE BETWEEN (01/04/2017) AND (30/09/2017)

LBTH CORPORATE GRANTS REGISTER 2017/18 CHANGE CONTROL LOG (GRANTS OUT FOR Q1 & Q2) - UPDATE BETWEEN (01/04/2017) AND  (30/09/2017)  

P
age 132


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5.1 Event Fund Report for Applications Received Quarters 1 – 3 2017-18
	APPENDIX A-GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA QTRS 1&2, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX B- APPLICATIONS RECEIVED QUARTERS 1-3, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX C MONITORING INFORMATION FOR QUARTER 1 APPLICATIONS, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX D - VENUES AND WARDS QUARTERS 1-3, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX E- APPLICATION QUESTIONS QTRS 1&2, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX F- APPLICATION QUESTIONS QUARTER 3, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX G - EQUALITIES ANALYSIS, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX H - EQUALITIES CHECKLIST, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee
	APPENDIX I - GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA QUARTER 3, 05/12/2017 Grants  Determination (Cabinet) Sub-Committee

	5.2 Mental Health User Led Grants Programme 2018-20
	5.4 Tower Hamlets  Affordable Housing Grant - Continuous Market Engagement
	FINAL_ 2nd Round CME Summary of bids

	5.5 Grants Register
	Appendix 1 - GDSC Grants Register 2017-18 Q1 &  Q2


